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CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
HHME

RESULTS
Revenue
Profit attributable to owners of the Company

EBITDA

PER SHARE DATA

Basic earnings per share (HK cents)

Total dividends per share (HK cent)

— Interim dividend paid per share
(HK cent)

— Proposed final dividend per share
(HK cent)

Dividend payout ratio

Revenue (Hk$ million)
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Basic earnings per share (HK cents)
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (CONTINUED)
HHMEE)

Revenue percentage by business segments
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Ka Shui
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am
pleased to present you the audited annual results of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for
the year ended 31 December 2017 (the “Year”).

For the Year under review, the Group’s overall revenue slightly
decreased by 0.2% year-on-year to approximately
HK$1,738,738,000 (2016: HK$1,742,476,000). The decrease in
overall revenue was mainly caused by the less favourable
market conditions in the notebook computer industry, which
affected the Group’s magnesium alloy die casting business.
Primarily due to an increase in the cost of sales, the
appreciation of Renminbi, and the one off general and
administration expenses incurred in the overall integration of the
Group’s production facilities, the Group’s profitability was
adversely affected. However, despite of the aforementioned,
profit attributable to owners of the Company was approximately
HK$33,998,000 (2016: HK$59,243,000) as the Group

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

FE®E(E)

completed the disposal of the entire equity interest of MG
Technology (Shenzhen) Company Limited (“the Disposal’), the
Group’s former subsidiary, in July 2017 with a gain on disposal
in the amount of approximately HK$96,011,000. During the
year under review, the Group recorded income tax expense
of approximately HK$16,845,000 related to the Disposal.
As a result, the Group’s adjusted loss for the year ended
31 December 2017 was approximately HK$17,339,000
(For computation method, please refer to the “Financial
Review” section of Management Discussion and Analysis
of this report). The Group’s EBITDA, computed as profit
before tax, depreciation, amortisation of intangible assets
and finance costs, amounted to approximately
HK$185,282,000 (2016: HK$214,143,000).

The Board of Directors recommended the payment of a
final dividend of HK1.0 cent (2016: HK1.0 cent) per share
for the Year after due consideration of the future business
development as well as financial position of the Group. The
dividend payout ratio for the Year would be 26.3% (2016:
15.1%).

2017 was a challenging year for the Group. The notebook
computer industry was less favourable than expected and
this had created an adverse impact on the Group’s
magnesium alloy die casting business, which focuses
primarily on producing notebook and ultrathin computer
casings. During the Year, the cost of raw material
increased and the Renminbi also appreciated against the
United States Dollar. However, the Group did not fully
pass on such additional costs to its customers as we
need to remain flexible in its pricing to retain our market
share. Despite of the aforementioned, the Group with over
35 years of experience in serving world-renowned brands,
continues to be one of the major suppliers to segments
such as 3C (communication, computer and consumer
electronics), personal care, automobile and household
products. Leveraging on continuous dedication in
innovation for its product solutions, namely magnesium,
aluminium and zinc alloy die casting and plastic injection
moulding, the Group has an advantage in providing a
diverse range of one-stop solution services to its
customers.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Particularly for our alloy die casting businesses, the Group
has been proactively exploring new material and
technology innovations with wider applications and better
equipment to expand its business opportunities and
economies of scale. In November 2017, the Group
together with KOCEL Intelligent Foundry Industry
Innovation Center Limited and the China Foundry
E-commerce Network Technology (Beijing) Company
Limited agreed to invest in the Intelligent Foundry Industry
Light Alloy Innovation Center (“Light Alloy Innovation
Center”). To match with the PRC national policy to
promote new material innovation and huge demand of light
metal, | believe that the Light Alloy Innovation Center will
be an effective platform to enhance the development of
light alloys, to promote light weight of larger and precise
foundry products and to encourage the formation of a
comprehensive supply chain. The Light Alloy Innovation
Center is expected to commence in the Ka Shui (Huizhou)
Science and Technology Park in the second half of 2018.
Given the Group’s leading industry position and technical
expertise together with the extensive resources support
under the PRC national policy, the Group will strengthen
its development of the light alloy supply chain in both
upstream and downstream, enhance its regional light alloy
supporting capability, promote its production development
and applications of new materials and technologies, thus
accelerating the industrial transformations and developing
new business opportunities. | am confident that this will lay
a stronger and wider foundation for Ka Shui’s expansion to
provide a broader spectrum of light weight solutions to
customers, which will enable the Group to tap into new
markets.

Benefitting from the segment’s diversified product portfolio,
the Group’s plastic injection segment achieved stable
growth with a year-on-year increase in revenue of 18.5%
for 2017. On top of the stable growth in 3C accessories
and personal care products driven by certain new models
launched during the Year, the sales of plastic components
for automobile industries including components for hybrid
and electric-powered cars continued to grow. The Group
successfully increased the market share in the automotive
sector and established a stronger presence by supplying a
number of parts to automotive customers. The Group
believes that this segment will continue to be a growth
driver for the Group as there is expected to be launches
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

FE®E(E)

of new mobile devices and also increased activities in both
new and replacement markets in the automotive segment
for the next few years. In view of this, the Group will
continue to offer higher quality functional and competitive
solutions to customers in order to seize more orders from
plastic injection customers. In addition, the Group will
carry on its enhancing technologies that advances its
capabilities in precision moulding and injection materials to
solidify its market position.

For the Year under review, the revenue of lighting business
achieved a satisfactory growth of 26.4% as compared with
the previous year. In particular, the B2B LED lighting
business achieved a good growth in terms of sales and
geographical expansion of its sales network. The Group
will endeavour to widen its sales network across the
United States so as to explore more potential business
opportunities.

To match with the growing global trend and the national
policy “Made in China 2025”, the Group has been working
in upgrading and transforming its businesses including
further investment in automation and building smarter
facilities towards “Industry 4.0”. Better management
intelligence and real time data as well as advanced
production technologies will enable the Group to achieve
higher production efficiency and quality. The Group is
devoting resources and making good progress for drafting
the new phase of its technology park in Huizhou to
establish a smart model manufacturing base in the
industry and this is expected to be financed by the
Group’s internal resources and/or bank borrowings.

During the Year, the Group was awarded a Gold Medal in
the 45th International Exhibition of Inventions in Geneva,
Switzerland, for its collaborative development of germ-
repellent polyethylene resins that can be applied in a wide
range of consumer and commercial products. This
recognised the Group’s devotion and capability in
innovation and research to offer value-added solutions to
customers and the industry. Also, the Group had been
awarded with the “Best in Class Die Casting” in the 12th
China International Die-casting Industry Exhibition during
the Year, recognising its leadership and expertise in the
fields of metal die casting as well as plastic injection.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Looking forward to 2018, the Group is cautiously
optimistic towards its development despite the
continuously challenging market environment. With better
integration of its production facilities, increased automation
in production, the Group expects that its operational
efficiency will be improved while at the same time achieves
greater economies of scale. To keep abreast with the
latest market trend, the Group will continue to pursue
product advancement with its expertise accumulated over
35 years in the industry and offer customers innovative
and cost-effective service solutions. In addition, the launch
of the light alloy projects will allow the Group to speed up
in the future development of new materials applications
and production technologies, as well as to open up new
business streams in the light alloy supply chain with first
mover advantages. The Group is determined to elevate its
competitiveness in all aspects to remain its strong foothold
in the industry and create greater values for its
shareholders.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to
express my deepest gratitude for the persistent support
from our customers, suppliers and business partners; and
salute our dedicated management and staff for their
devotion and commitment during the Year.

Lee Yuen Fat
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2018
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWE DM

(A)

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group’s
overall revenue slightly decreased by 0.2% to
approximately HK1,738,738,000 (2016:
HK$1,742,476,000) when compared with last year.
The decrease in overall revenue was primarily
attributable to the less favourable market conditions
in the notebook computer industry, which affected
the Group’s magnesium alloy die casting business.
As a result, the Group’s overall gross profit margin
decreased from 22.5% in 2016 to 17.8%.

Primarily due to an increase in the cost of sales, the
appreciation of Renminbi against the United States
Dollar, and the one-off general and administration
expenses incurred in the overall integration of the
Group’s production facilities, the Group’s profitability
was adversely affected. However, despite of the
aforementioned, profit attributable to owners of the
Company was approximately HK$33,998,000 (2016:
HK$59,243,000) as the Group completed the disposal
of the entire equity interest of MG Technology
(Shenzhen) Company Limited (“the Disposal”), the
Group’s former subsidiary, in July 2017 with a gain
on the Disposal in the amount of approximately
HK$96,011,000. During the year under review, the
Group recorded income tax expense of
approximately HK$16,845,000 related to the
Disposal. As a result, the Group’s adjusted loss for
the year ended 31 December 2017 was
approximately HK$17,339,000 (computed as profit
for the vyear of HK$36,131,000 (2016:
HK$59,902,000) less gain on the Disposal of
HK$96,011,000 and add (i) capital gain tax arising
from the Disposal of HK$13,727,000; (ii) withholding
tax arising from dividend payment of a disposed
subsidiary of HK$3,118,000; and (i) the one-off
general and administration expenses incurred in the
overall integration of the Group’s production facilities
of HK$25,696,000). The Group’s EBITDA, computed
as profit before tax, depreciation, amortisation of
intangible assets and finance costs, amounted to
approximately HK$185,282,000 (2016:
HK$214,143,000).
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(B)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

BUSINESS REVIEW

Magnesium alloy die casting business

As a result of the slowdown in the global shipment
of notebook computers primarily, the revenue of the
magnesium alloy die casting business for the year
ended 31 December 2017 decreased by 14.8% to
approximately HK$588,843,000 (2016:
HK$691,194,000), accounting for approximately
33.9% of the Group’s overall revenue (2016:
39.7%). Apart from notebook computer casings, the
Group will continue to explore additional
applications of magnesium alloy especially in the
automotive component industry with a view to
enlarge its market share and to expand its customer
base.

Plastic injection moulding business
Benefitting from the flourishing demand of new mobile
devices in 2017 and a stable growth of plastic
automotive parts, the revenue of this business segment
had recorded an increase of 18.5% to approximately
HK$712,210,000 (2016: HK$601,267,000), which
accounted for approximately 41.0% (2016: 34.5%) of
the Group’s overall revenue. In order to capture the
potential growth for plastic injection products and
components, the Group is committed to focus on
the research and development of new production
technology to further enhance its product quality
and application.

Zinc alloy die casting business

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the revenue
of the zinc alloy die casting business was
approximately HK$203,685,000 (2016:
HK$230,614,000), representing a decrease of
approximately 11.7% when compared with that of
2016. This business segment accounted for
approximately 11.7% of the Group’s overall revenue
(2016: 13.2%). It is expected that the zinc alloy die
casting business will continue to act as a stable
revenue contributor for the Group in the coming
year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEEENWR DN (E)

Aluminium alloy die casting business
During the year under review, the revenue of the
aluminium alloy die casting business slightly
increased by 3.1% to approximately HK$201,928,000
(2016: HK$195,763,000) when compared with that of
the previous year. The segment’s contribution to the
Group’s overall revenue had also grown from
approximately 11.2% in 2016 to approximately
11.6% in 2017.

Others

The revenue of the others business increased by
35.7% to approximately HK$32,072,000 (2016:
HK$23,638,000) during the year. The increase was
primarily derived from the sale of LED lighting
products to customers in the United States.

PROSPECTS

Looking ahead, it is expected that the business
environment will continue to be challenging for the
Group in 2018 due to possible trade conflict with
the United States, the exchange rate fluctuation as
well as the increase of cost of sales. Under such
environment, the Group will place high priority on
product diversification, increasing operational
efficiency and liaison with customers in order to
strengthen its resilience to cope with different
economic cycles.

In 2018, it is expected that the global traditional
computer shipment will continue to decrease
whereas the shipments for premium ultra-mobile
device will surge by 18.6% and reach 70 million
units according to a research by Gartner Inc.. Being
one of the core suppliers of magnesium alloy
notebook casing to the world-renowned computer
brands, the Group is positive towards a stable order
book of its magnesium alloy die casting segment in
2018. The Group will continue its exploration in the
technical applications of rare-earth alloy and other
new materials, with the aim to produce thinner,
lighter and more durable products to support its
customers’ new product designs.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

As one of the leaders in alloy die casting industry,
the Group has devoted itself to innovations on
material and technology and product application
extension over the years. With the agreement for the
set up of the Light Alloy Innovation Centre signed in
November 2017, the Group will further consolidate
market resources and expertise to develop a more
comprehensive and efficient supply chain for light
alloy and promote new material and technology
development, with wider applications and better
equipment to expand business opportunities. In the
first phase, the Group will promote the application
of light alloy to the industry through the Light Alloy
Innovation Centre, aiming to lay a stronger foundation
for the industry upgrade and transformation in new
materials, green manufacturing, application of automation
and service-driven development in the future.

For the plastic injection segment, the Group
continues to supply 3C accessories, personal care
and automotive parts to the renowned brands in the
market and holds good hope in achieving
satisfactory results in 2018. According to Gartner
Inc., the global shipment of smartphones is
expected to grow by 2.6% with the total amounting
to 1.9 billion units in 2018. It is expected that the
demand for plastic mobile device accessories will
rise accordingly. In response to the promising
market, the Group will continue to upgrade product
designs and provide value-adding solutions to stay
competitive in the market. On the other hand, the
Group will carry on advancing its technologies in
precision moulding and injection materials in order to
seize more orders for automotive parts and deepen
its penetration into the automobile sector.

In terms of operational efficiency, the completion of
production lines relocation to the Group’s integrated
technology park in Huizhou is expected to reduce
production lead time, shorten production lifecycle,
reduce transportation and storage costs as well as
labour costs and administration costs, hence
improving the Group’s operational efficiency. The
Group will continue to adopt stringent cost control
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEEENWR DN (E)

measures and increase automation in production in
order to remain cost-effective in all divisions. Further
investment in automation, real time data and
management intelligence will empower smarter
facilities towards “Industry 4.0”. In particular, the
new phase of the Group’s technology park in
Huizhou is planned to include a smart model
manufacturing base.

With its over 35 years of experience and expertise
in the die casting and plastic injection moulding
industry and its continuous pursuit of raw material,
technology as well as product innovations, the
Group is ready to embrace the challenges and
opportunities brought forth by the industry upgrade
and transformation, with the aim of achieving a
sustainable development, as well as bringing fruitful
returns for the Company’s shareholders.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
As at 31 December 2017, the Group had restricted bank
balances as well as bank and cash balances of
approximately HK$247,228,000 (2016: HK$297,572,000),
most of which were either denominated in US dollars,
Renminbi or Hong Kong dollars.

The total interest-bearing borrowings of the Group as at
31 December 2017 were all bank loans of approximately
HK$368,278,000 (2016: HK$565,952,000). All of these
borrowings were either denominated in Renminbi or
Hong Kong dollars (2016: US dollars, Renminbi or
Hong Kong dollars) to which the interest rates
applied were primarily subject to floating interest
rate. The bank borrowings with maturities falling due
within one year, in the second to fifth year with
repayment on demand clause and in the second to
the fifth year without repayment on demand clause
amounted to HK$245,364,000, HK$81,247,000 and
HK$41,667,000 respectively (2016: HK$413,763,000,
HK$44,945,000 and HK$107,244,000 respectively).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2017, the net gearing ratio (a
ratio of the sum of the total bank borrowings less
the pledged bank deposits, restricted bank balances
(if any) and bank and cash balances divided by the
total equity) of the Group was approximately 14.0%
(2016: 34.8%).

As at 31 December 2017, the net current assets of
the Group were approximately HK$158,547,000 (2016:
HK$91,082,000), which consisted of current assets of
approximately HK$984,571,000 (2016: HK$1,021,954,000)
and current liabilities of approximately HK$826,024,000
(2016: HK$930,872,000), representing a current ratio of
approximately 1.2 (2016: 1.1).

SIGNIFICANT FINANCIAL JUDGEMENTAL
AREAS

As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amount of the
Group’s leasehold land was approximately
HK$202,030,000 (2016: HK$244,474,000). The
Group appointed an independent professional valuer
to perform the valuation and the leasehold land was
measured at fair value. The management had
assessed the valuation methodologies the valuer
used and the appropriateness of the key
assumptions and comparables. A surplus on
revaluation, net of tax of approximately
HK$13,441,000 (2016: HK$36,962,000) and a deficit
in revaluation of approximately HK$578,000 (2016:
Nil) had been recognised in other comprehensive
income and profit or loss respectively.

As at 31 December 2017, the allowance for
inventories was approximately HK$18,564,000 (2016:
HK$22,774,000). The Group identified obsolete and
slow-moving inventory items that were not probable
for use in future production or to be sold out. The
identification was based on forecasts of customers’
future orders and future market conditions and the
assessment had been reviewed by the
management.

EXPOSURE TO FOREIGN EXCHANGE
RISK

Most of the Group’s transactions were conducted in
US dollars, Hong Kong dollars or Renminbi. As
such, the Group is aware of the potential foreign
currency risk that may arise from the fluctuation of
exchange rates between US dollars, Hong Kong
dollars and Renminbi. The Group will closely monitor
its overall foreign exchange exposure with a view to
safeguarding the Group from exchange rate risks.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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(G)

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2017, the Group had no
material contingent liabilities.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s banking
facilities were secured by guarantees given by the
following assets: (a) all monies assignment of rental
over the property situated in Hong Kong owned by
the Group; (b) a property situated in Hong Kong
owned by the Group; and (c) corporate guarantees
provided by the Company and certain subsidiaries
of the Group.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had
approximately 4,600 full-time employees (2016:
5,400). Total salaries, bonuses and allowances for
staff in 2017 were HK$437,643,000 (2016:
434,674,000). The Group attributes its success to
the hard work and dedication of its staff as a whole,
therefore, they are deemed to be the most valuable
assets of the Group. In order to attract and retain
high caliber staff, the Group provides a competitive
salary package, including a retirement scheme,
medical benefits and bonuses. The Group’s
remuneration policy and structure are determined
based on market trends, the performance of
individual staff as well as the financial performance
of the Group. The Group has also adopted a share
option scheme and a share award scheme as
incentives and rewards for those qualifying staff who
have made contributions to the Group.

The Group provides regular training courses for
different level of staff and holds various training
programs together with PRC institutes and external
training bodies. Apart from academic and technical
training, the Group also organises different kinds of
recreational activities, including New Year gathering,
various sports competitions and interest groups. The
aim is to promote interaction among staff, establish
a harmonious team spirit and promote a healthy
lifestyle.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lee Yuen Fat, aged 62, founded the Group in 1980
and is the Chairman of the Group. Mr. Lee was appointed
as an Executive Director of the Company since 2 June
2007 and is a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. He is also a director of Precisefull Limited,
which is the controlling shareholder of the Company.
Mr. Lee is responsible for the formulation of the overall
business strategies of the Group. He has over 35 years of
experience in the die casting industry. Mr. Lee holds a
Master of Science Degree in Materials Engineering from
the Yanshan University. He was conferred an award of
Honorary Fellowship and Fellowship of Management and
Business Administration by the Professional Validation
Council of Hong Kong Industries and is the Vice
Chairman of the Professional Validation Council of Hong
Kong Industries. Mr. Lee has been appointed by the
Foundry Industry Association, Guangdong Province as an
Expert of the Casting Industry and is selected for its
Expert Database.

Mr. Lee was one of the founding members and was the
Chairman of the Hong Kong Diecasting Association (now
become the Hong Kong Foundry Association (the
“HKFA”)) in 1989. He was elected as the first Chairman of
the HKFA and Hong Kong Federation of Innovative
Technologies and Manufacturing Industries (formerly
known as Federation of Hong Kong Machinery and Metal
Industries) in 2008 and 2011 respectively. Mr. Lee is
currently the Chairman of Hong Kong Federation of
Innovation Technologies and Manufacturing Industries,
Vice Chairman of the PRD Council of Federation of Hong
Kong Industries, Shenzhen Division, a member of the
Fourth Industry Training Advisory Committee of
Manufacturing Technology (Tooling, Metals & Plastics) and
a member of Vocational Training Council Manufacturing
Technology Training Board. Mr. Lee is the Rotating
Chairman of Die Casting Branch of the China Foundry
Association, Executive Director of the China Foundry
Association, Deputy Director of Semi-Solid Processing
Technologies Specialties Committee, Technology of
Plasticity Branch of Chinese Mechanical Engineering
Society, Vice-Director General of the Guangdong Foundry
Industry Association, the Vice-Director General of the
Guangdong Mechanical Engineering Association Die
Casting Branch. Mr. Lee is currently the Deputy Director
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
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of Sub-committee 4 on Die Casting of National Technical
Committee 54 on Foundry of Standardization
Administration of China, the Deputy Secretary General and
member of Sub-committee 2 on Metal Hot-forming
Branch of National Technical Committee 186 on Foundry
Machinery of Standardization Administration of China, the
Deputy Director of the Fifth Die Casting Technical
Committee, Foundry Institution, Chinese Mechanical
Engineering Society and a member of the Light Alloy
Industry Technology Innovative Alliance Expert Committee
of Guangdong Province. Mr. Lee is the brother-in-law of
Ms. Chan So Wah, the director of operations of the
Group.

Mr. Wong Wing Chuen, aged 56, joined the Group in
1988 and was appointed as an Executive Director and
Vice Chairman of the Company on 2 June 2007 and
1 January 2017 respectively. He is a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Wong is also the
Director of Manufacturing of the Group currently and is
responsible for the Group’s manufacturing activities.
Mr. Wong has over 30 years’ experience in die design
and manufacturing and the die casting industry. He is an
Associate of the Professional Validation Council of Hong
Kong Industries.

Dr. Wong Cheong Yiu, aged 64, joined the Group in
2015 and was appointed as an Executive Director and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company on 1 June 2015.
He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. Dr. Wong is primarily responsible for the overall
management, as well as supervision of the execution of
the overall business strategies of the Group. Dr. Wong
holds a doctorate degree in engineering from the
University of Warwick and a master degree in business
administration from the University of Hull. Dr. Wong was
appointed as an Industrial Fellow of the University of
Warwick in 2006. He is a retired fellow of the Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and the Hong
Kong Institute of Companies Secretaries and a life
associate member of the Chartered Institute of Bankers.
Dr. Wong has over 40 years’ working experience in Hong
Kong and overseas and held various senior positions in
different private and publicly listed companies.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Professor Sun Kai Lit CIliff BBS, JP, aged 64, was
appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of
the Company on 2 June 2007. He is the chairman of the
remuneration committee as well as the nomination
committee of the Company. Professor Sun has over 30
years of experience in the household products
manufacturing industry. Professor Sun was appointed the
Justice of the Peace in July 2003 and was awarded the
Bronze Bauhinia Star by the Hong Kong Government in
July 2006. He had been a member of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference of Shenzhen,
Ningbo & Zhejiang Committee for over 20 years. He is
currently the Honorary President of the Federation of
Hong Kong Industries, Honorary Chairman of The Hong
Kong Exporters’ Association, Honorary Chairman of the
Hong Kong Q Mark Council, the Honorary President of the
Hong Kong Plastics Manufacturers Association, Chairman
of the ICAC Business Ethics Development Committee, the
President of Shenzhen Overseas Chinese International
Association and an Adjunct Professor of the City
University of Hong Kong. Professor Sun is currently an
independent non-executive director of Wisdom Education
International Holdings Company Limited (Stock Code:
6068), which is listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
He was a non-executive director of China South City
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1668) from September
2009 to July 2017; and a non-executive director of Ming
Fai International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 3828) from
July 2007 to March 2016.

Ir Dr. Lo Wai Kwok sBs, MH, JP, aged 65, was appointed
as an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company on 2 June 2007. Ir Dr. Lo holds a doctorate
degree in engineering, master degrees in engineering and
business administration respectively and a bachelor
degree in engineering. He is a Chartered Engineer and
Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Engineers. Ir Dr. Lo
was awarded with the “Young Industrial Awards of Hong
Kong” and the “Ten Outstanding Young Persons
Selection” in 1992, the “Medal of Honour” of the Hong
Kong Government in July 2001, and was appointed
“Justice of the Peace” of the Hong Kong Government in
July 2004. Ir Dr. Lo was awarded the Bronze Bauhinia
Star in July 2009 and the Silver Bauhinia Star in July
2015 by the Hong Kong Government respectively.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

ESKEREEZAE(R)

Ir Dr. Lo is currently a member of the Legislative Council
of Hong Kong, representing the Engineering Functional
Constituency. He has over 30 years of experience in the
electronic and power supply industry. He is an Adjunct
Professor of the City University of Hong Kong and a
Honourary Professor of the Open University of Hong
Kong.

Mr. Andrew Look, aged 53, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on
16 December 2009. Mr. Look holds a bachelor of
commerce degree from the University of Toronto and has
over 25 years’ experience in the equity investment
analysis of Hong Kong and China stock markets. From
2000 to 2008, Mr. Look served in Union Bank of
Switzerland (“UBS”) as the head of Hong Kong research,
strategy and product. He was rated as the best Hong
Kong strategist and best analyst by the Asiamoney
magazine, a leading monthly financial and capital markets
publication for corporate and finance readers and
investors, in 2001, 2002, 2003, 2005, 2006 and 2007.
Mr. Look is currently the Chief Investment Officer of the
asset management business of Tou Rong Chang Fu
Group Limited (Stock code: 850), a company listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Mr. Look is also currently an
independent non-executive director of Hung Fook Tong
Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1446), Citic
Resources Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1205), Union
Medical Healthcare Limited (Stock Code: 2138) and
Cowell e Holdings Inc. (Stock code: 1415), all of which
are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. He was an
independent non-executive director of TCL Communication
Technology Holdings Limited (a company delisted on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange on 30 September 2016) from
September 2010 to September 2016 and an independent
non-executive director of Man Sang Jewellery Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 1466, a company listed on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange) from September 2014 to December
2016.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Mr. Kong Kai Chuen, Frankie, aged 54, was appointed
as an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company on 11 May 2015. He is the chairman of the
audit committee of the Company. Mr. Kong is an
associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a fellow member of the Chartered
Association of Certified Accountants (the United Kingdom).
He is currently the Chief Financial Officer and Joint
Company Secretary of Futong Technology Development
Holdings Limited (Stock code: 465), a company listed on
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and has accumulated
over 26 years’ experience in accounting, auditing,
corporate finance and project administration mostly from
Hong Kong listed companies and multinational business
conglomerates. Mr. Kong is also currently an independent
non-executive director of Auto Italia Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 720, a company listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lo Hin Fai, aged 55, joined the Group in 2012 and
is currently the director of finance and corporate strategy
of the Group. He is primarily responsible in overseeing the
Group’s finance, investment, strategic development and
capital market financing activities. Mr. Lo holds a MBA
degree in Finance, Corporate Accounting and
Organization from the University of Rochester, USA. He
has over 25 years of experience in banking, corporate
finance and investment. Prior to joining the Group, he has
served finance, investment and management functions
within both financial institution and corporate business,
working closely with different multinational and local
companies in Asia, covering mergers and acquisitions,
equity and project investments.

Ms. Chan So Wah, aged 59, joined the Group in 1999.
She is the director of operations of the Group and is
primarily responsible for overseeing the overall operations
of the Group. Ms. Chan has over 25 years’ experience in
sales, marketing and management. She is an Associate of
the Professional Validation Council of Hong Kong
Industries and is the sister-in-law of Mr. Lee Yuen Fat.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EEREREEAE(E)

Mr. Chan Sin Wing, aged 45, joined the Group in 2004
and is the director of research and development of the
Group. He is primarily responsible for overseeing the
research and development of the Group. Mr. Chan holds
a master degree in industrial engineering and industrial
management and a bachelor degree in engineering from
the University of Hong Kong. Prior to joining the Group,
he worked as a senior consultant of the Hong Kong
Productivity Council for over 9 years.

Mr. Wong Wai Chung, Peter, aged 63, joined the Group
in 2012 and is the chief marketing officer of the Group.
He is primarily responsible for overseeing the Group’s
sales and marketing activities. Mr. Wong holds a bachelor
degree in engineering from the McGill University, Canada
and is a Fellow of the Professional Validation Council of
Hong Kong Industries. He has over 35 years’ experience
in plastic, metal and electronics manufacturing and
management.

Mr. Chan Man Fu, aged 46, joined the Group in 2016
and is currently the financial controller of the Company.
Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Chan has held senior
financial positions in different listed companies in Hong
Kong and has over 20 years of experience in the areas of
audit, finance and treasury management. He holds a
master degree in Business Administration from the Hong
Kong Baptist University and is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) have
pleasure in submitting their report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of Ka Shui
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in the sale and
manufacture of zinc, magnesium and aluminium alloy die
casting, plastic injection products and components which
are mainly sold to customers engaging in the household
products, 3C (communication, computer and consumer
electronics) products, automotive parts and precision
components. The activities of the subsidiaries are set out
in note 20 to the financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group, together with
a description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing
the Company, particulars of important events affecting the
Group that have occurred since the end of the financial
year 2017 as well as indication of likely future
development in the business of the Group are set out in
the sections “Business Review” on pages 13 to 14,
“Principal Risks and Uncertainties facing the Company” on
pages 52 to 53 and “Prospects” on pages 14 to 16 of
this report respectively. An analysis using financial key
performance indicators is set out in the sections
“Segment Information” on pages 154 to 158 and “Five-
Year Financial Summary” on page 216 in this report.

As an innovative high-tech enterprise, the Group is
committed to offering one-stop solutions and professional
services to meet the various needs of our customers,
while building an environmentally-friendly corporation that
pays close attention to conserving natural resources. The
management will review the Group’s environmental practices
from time to time and will consider implementing further
ecology friendly measures and practices in the operation to
enhance environmental protection and sustainability.

During the year, as far as the Board is aware, there was no
material non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations
by the Group that has a significant impact on the Group’s
business and operations.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
EEEHRE(H)

The Board recognises that our employees are valuable
assets contributing to the Group’s future success. The
Group provides competitive remuneration package to attract,
motivate and retain our employees. The Board also regularly
reviews the remuneration package of our employees and
makes necessary adjustments to conform to the prevailing
market practices. The Board also recognizes that
maintaining good relationships with our customers and
suppliers is vital to achieve the Group’s long-term goals.

Detailed discussions on the environmental policies and
performance, compliance with the relevant local laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group
and the account of the key relationships of the Group with
employees, customers and suppliers are set out in the
section headed “Environmental, Social and Governance
Report” on pages 56 to 86 of this annual report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY AND RETIREMENT
BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group’s emolument policy, including salaries and
bonuses, is in line with the local practices where the
Company and its subsidiaries operate. The Group has
also adopted a share option scheme and share award
scheme as incentive and reward for those qualifying staff
who have made contribution to the Group. The
Remuneration Committee of the Company make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure for the remuneration of directors and senior
management. It also reviews and determines the terms of
remuneration packages, the award of bonuses and other
compensation payable to directors and senior
management of the Group, having regard to the Group’s
financial performance, individual performance and
comparable market statistics.

The Group has joined a mandatory provident fund
scheme (“MPF Scheme”) for all employees (including the
executive directors of the Company) in Hong Kong. The
MPF Scheme is registered with the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Authority under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance. Under the MPF Scheme, the
employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the MPF Scheme at rates specified in the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The employees of the
Company’s subsidiaries established in the PRC are
members of a state-managed retirement scheme operated
by the PRC government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute certain percentage of payroll costs to the
retirement benefit scheme. No forfeited contribution is
available to reduce the contribution payable under the
above schemes.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 94.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has recommended the payment of a final
dividend of HK1.0 cent per share for the year ended
31 December 2017 to the shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on
Friday, 8 June 2018. Subject to the approval of the
shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming annual
general meeting to be held on Monday, 28 May 2018, the
final dividend will be paid on or about Friday, 15 June
2018.

The register of members of the Company will be closed
from Wednesday, 23 May 2018 to Monday, 28 May
2018, both days inclusive, during which no transfer of
shares will be registered. In order to be eligible to attend
and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company, all share transfer documents accompanied by
the relevant share certificates and transfer forms must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at 17M Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30
p.m. on Monday, 21 May 2018.

The register of members will be closed from Tuesday,
5 June 2018 to Friday, 8 June 2018, both days inclusive,
during which no transfer of shares will be registered. In
order to qualify for the final dividend, all share transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates
and transfer forms must be lodged with the Company’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at 17M Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 4 June
2018.
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DlRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
$é$&¢ (n\ﬁ)

RESERVES
Movements in reserves during the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 98.

As at 31 December 2017, the Company’s reserve
available for distribution amounted to approximately
HK$245,739,000 (2016: HK$247,709,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year are set out in note 19 to the
consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
During the vyear, the percentage of the Group’s major
customers attributable to the Group’s total sales was as
follows:

Sales
— the largest customer 29.8%
— five largest customers combined 70.7%

During the year, the Group purchased less than 30% from
its five largest suppliers combined.

None of the directors, their associates or any
shareholders (which to the knowledge of the directors
owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had
an interest in the Group’s five largest customers and
suppliers.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results of the Group for the past five
financial years ended 31 December 2017 and assets and
liabilities of the Group as at 31 December 2013, 2014,
2015, 2016 and 2017 are set out on page 216.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company
during the year are shown in note 32 to the financial
statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option scheme and share award
scheme described below, the Group has not entered into
any equity-linked agreements during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other
donations amounting to approximately HK$927,000 (2016:
HK$:106,000).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association and the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and
exemption available to the shareholders of the Company
by reason of their holding of the Company’s securities.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY
During the year, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities of the Company.

THE BOARD
The directors of the Company during the year and up to
the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lee Yuen Fat (“Mr. Lee”) (Chairman)

Mr. Wong Wing Chuen (Vice Chairman)

Dr. Wong Cheong Yiu (Chief Executive Officer)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Professor Sun Kai Lit, Cliff BBS, JP

Ir Dr. Lo Wai Kwok SBS, MH, JP

Mr. Andrew Look

Mr. Kong Kai Chuen, Frankie

The biographical details of the directors are set out on
pages 19 to 24 of this annual report.

During the year under review, no director resigned from
his office or refused to stand for re-election to his office
due to reasons relating to the affairs of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
EEEHRE(H)

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association,
Mr. Lee, Mr. Wong Wing Chuen and Mr. Kong Kai Chuen,
Frankie will retire at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the
directors is currently in force and was in force throughout
the financial year.

The Company has taken out and maintained directors’
liability insurance throughout the vyear, which provides
appropriate cover for the directors of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting do not have any
service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER’S INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Continuing
Connected Transactions” and “Connected Transaction”
set out on pages 41 to 43, there were no transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance, to which the
Company, its holding company, any of its subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a director
and the controlling shareholder of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
during or at the end of the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.21 OF
THE RULES GOVERNING THE LISTING OF
SECURITIES ON THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF
HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “LISTING
RULES”)

In accordance with the requirements under Rule 13.21 of
the Listing Rules, the Board reported the following details
of loan facilities which exist at any time during the year
ended 31 December 2017 and up to the date of this
report and include covenants requiring specific
performance obligations of the controlling shareholder of
the Company.

(i) On 22 September 2017, Ka Shui Manufactory Co.,
Limited (the “Borrower”), the indirect wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into the facility
agreement with a bank comprising the following
facilities up to an overall limit of HK$160 million to
the Borrower:

(@)  Trade related facility and revolving loan facility
up to an aggregate maximum amount of
HK$80 million, with a sub-limit of () HK$20
million for the revolving loan facility; and (i)
HK$40 million for the aggregate outstanding
amount for the utilisation of import invoice
financing by PRC value added tax invoices.
The life of these facilities are not specified, but
is subject to the bank’s overriding right of
repayment on demand;

(b)  Term loan facility of HK$40 million (the “1st TL
Facility”). The Borrower had drawn down
HK$40 million since 7 May 2015 under the 1st
TL Facility and the outstanding loan balance
was approximately HK$5.7 million as at
31 December 2017. The life of the 1st TL
Facility is not specified, but is subject to the
bank’s overriding right of repayment on
demand; and

(c)  Term loan facility of HK$40 million (the “2nd TL
Facility”). The purpose of the 2nd TL Facility is
to finance the Group’s working capital
expenditures with a loan period of 36 months
from the date of the 2nd TL Facility being
made available.
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(i

(i)

The facility agreement contains a specific
performance obligation that Mr. Lee, a controlling
shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) and an
executive director of the Company, shall remain as
the single largest shareholder of the Company. A
breach of the aforesaid specific performance
obligation will constitute an event of default under
the facility agreement. If an event of default under
the facility agreement occurs, the bank may
terminate the facility agreement and liabilities
payable under the facility agreement and the
relevant security documents shall become
immediately due and payable.

On 2 January 2015, the Borrower entered into the
facility agreement with a bank to finance the
Group’s capital expenditures for a term loan facility
up to HK$150 million consisting of two tranches,
both repayable by sixteen equal quarterly
instalments commencing the 15th month after the
first utilisation date. The facility agreement contains
a specific performance obligation that Mr. Lee must
at all times maintain substantial shareholdings
(directly or indirectly) interest in the Borrower. A
breach of the aforesaid specific performance
obligation will constitute an event of default under
the facility agreement. If an event of default under
the facility agreement occurs, the bank may
terminate the facility agreement and liabilities
payable under the facility agreement and the
relevant security documents shall become
immediately due and payable.

On 9 November 2015, the Borrower entered into the
facility agreement with a bank to refinance its
existing facilities for a term loan facility up to HK$50
million repayable by eleven equal quarterly
instalments commencing the 6th month after the first
utilisation date. The facility agreement contains a
specific performance obligation that Mr. Lee must at
all times maintain substantial shareholdings (directly
or indirectly) interest in the Borrower. A breach of
the aforesaid specific performance obligation will
constitute an event of default under the facility
agreement. If an event of default under the facility
agreement occurs, the bank may terminate the
facility agreement and liabilities payable under the
facility agreement and the relevant security
documents shall become immediately due and
payable.
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(iv)  On 20 June 2017, the Borrower entered into the
facility agreement with a bank to finance its working
capital for a term loan facility up to HK$130 million
repayable by 36 months after the first utilisation
date. The facility agreement contains a specific
performance obligation that Mr. Lee (including
shares under his family trust) must maintain as the
major shareholder (with at least 50% shareholding)
of the Company. A breach of the aforesaid specific
performance obligation will constitute an event of
default under the facility agreement. If an event of
default under the facility agreement occurs, the bank
may terminate the facility agreement and liabilities
payable under the facility agreement and the
relevant security documents shall become
immediately due and payable.

Save as disclosed above, the directors are not aware of
any circumstances which would give rise to a disclosure
obligation pursuant to the requirements under Rule 13.18
of the Listing Rules as at 31 December 2017 and as at
the date of this report.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the directors and the top five
highest paid individuals of the Group are set out in notes
15 and 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2017, the interests and short
positions of the directors and chief executives of the
Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) which were
required to be notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
pursuant to Divisions 7 to 9 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions in which they are
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO); or were required, pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or
were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies
(the “Model Code”) in the Listing Rules were as follows:
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Long Positions in the Shares

Name of Directors

EENS

Capacity

51

Executive Directors

ﬂ%m

k#HzRE

Approximate
percentage of
interest in
the Company
EERATHER
BoE st

Number of
Shares

8 E

BITES
Mr. Lee Interest in controlled company 480,000,000 53.71%
FhE SRS A AR

Founder of a discretionary

trust®

FREEFEZ B A® 127,980,000 14.32%
Mr. Wong Wing Chuen Beneficial owner 11,050,000 1.24%
moKE L E EmEE A
Independent Non-Executive

Directors

BAFRITES
Mr. Andrew Look Beneficial owner 8,800,000 0.98%
B 5 5E 4 EmEBE A
Dr. Lo Wai Kwok sBS, MH, JP Beneficial owner 1,000,000 0.11%

E B B 1% +sBS, MH, A P&+

Note:

EmfEA A

Mr. Lee holds the entire issued share capital of Precisefull Limited
(“Precisefull”). As such, Mr. Lee is deemed to have a controlling
interest in Precisefull and is therefore deemed to be interested in
the interests of Precisefull in the Company.

The 127,980,000 shares, in which 77,980,000 shares and
50,000,000 shares are held by Beautiful Crystal Development
Limited (“Beautiful Crystal”) and Beautiful Colour Assets Limited
(“Beautiful Colour”) respectively (both companies are wholly-owned
by YF Lee Family Trust). YF Lee Family Trust is a discretionary
trust set up by Mr. Lee as settlor and UBS TC (Jersey) Limited
(“UBS TC”) as trustee on 20 February 2014. The discretionary
objects are family members of Mr. Lee. Mr. Lee is the settlor of YF
Lee Family Trust and is deemed to be interested in the
127,980,000 shares held by Beautiful Crystal and Beautiful Colour
under the SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none
of the directors and chief executives of the Company had
any interests or short positions in shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 to 9 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions in which they are taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO); or were required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein; or were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange, pursuant to the
Model Code in the Listing Rules. In addition, save as
disclosed above, at no time during the year ended
31 December 2017 was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
directors of the Company or any of their spouses or
children under the age of 18 to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company or any other body corporate.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2017, the following persons, other
than the directors or chief executives of the Company,
who had interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 to 5 of Part XV of the SFO or, who were,
directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the
nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights
to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of the
Company, or which were required, pursuant to Section
336 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein, were as follows:
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Long Positions in the Shares

Capacity

51

Precisefull
EmnEEAD

Beautiful Crystal
KB AL

Beautiful Colour

BEmEAAQ
UBS TC Trustee®
ZEEAQ
Note:
1. Mr. Lee holds the entire issued share capital of Precisefull. As such,

Mr. Lee is deemed to have a controlling interest in Precisefull and
is therefore deemed to be interested in the interests of Precisefull
in the Company.

2. 77,980,000 shares and 50,000,000 shares are held by Beautiful
Crystal and Beautiful Colour respectively (both companies are
wholly owned by YF Lee Family Trust). The YF Lee Family Trust is
a discretionary trust set up by Mr. Lee as settlor and UBS TC as
trustee on 20 February 2014.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year, the
directors and the chief executive of the Company were
aware of any other persons (other than the directors or
chief executives of the Company) who had interests or
short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 to 5 of Part
XV of the SFO, or, who were, directly or indirectly,
interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any
class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all
circumstances at general meetings of the Company, or
which were required, pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred to therein.
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480,000,000 53.71%
77,980,000 8.73%
50,000,000 5.59%
127,980,000 14.32%
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme (the “2007 Share Option Scheme”)
was adopted pursuant to the written resolutions passed
by the shareholders of the Company on 2 June 2007.
The 2007 Share Option Scheme has been terminated
upon adoption of a new share option scheme (“New
Share Option Scheme”) by ordinary resolution of
shareholders of the Company at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 19 May 2017. Upon
termination of the 2007 Share Option Scheme, no further
options of the 2007 Share Option Scheme can be offered
thereunder but the provisions of the scheme shall remain
in force to the extent necessary to give effect to the
exercise of any options granted prior to its termination
and options granted prior to such termination shall
continue to be valid and exercisable.

The purpose of the New Share Option Scheme is to
provide incentives and rewards to selected eligible
persons for their contributions to the Group. The New
Share Option Scheme will remain valid until 18 May 2027
and the amount payable on acceptance of all options
granted is HK$10.

The participants of the New Share Option Scheme may
include directors, employees, consultants, professionals,
customers, suppliers, agents, partners, advisors and
contractors of the Group or a company in which the
Group holds an interest or a subsidiary of such company.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon the exercise of all options to be granted under the
New Share Option Scheme and under any other share
option scheme(s) adopted by the Company must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in issue as at the
date of approval of the New Share Option Scheme. In
addition, the maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon the exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the New Share
Option Scheme and any other schemes involving the
issue or grant of share options by the Company must not,
in aggregate, exceed 30% of the shares in issue from
time to time.
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The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options already granted or to be granted
to each participant under the New Share Option Scheme
and any other share option scheme(s) of the Company
(including exercised and outstanding share options) in any
12-month period up to and including the date of such
grant should not exceed 1% aggregate of the shares in
issue as at the date of such grant. Any grant of further
options above this 1% limit shall be subject to approval of
the shareholders of the Company at general meetings,
with such participant and his associates abstaining from
voting.

The total number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the New Share Option Scheme
shall be 89,376,140 shares, representing approximately
10.0% of the issued share capital of the Company as at
the date of this annual report.

The period within which the options must be exercised
will be specified by the Board at the time of the offer of
grant, and must expire no later than 10 years from the
date of grant. There is no general requirement on the
minimum period for which an option must be held or the
performance targets which must be achieved before an
option can be exercised under the terms of the New
Share Option Scheme.

The subscription price for any share under the New Share
Option Scheme will be a price determined by the Board
and will be not less than the highest of:

(i) the closing price of a share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of
grant of the relevant option, which must be a
business day;

(i) an amount equivalent to the average closing price of
a share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the
relevant option; and

(i) the nominal value of a share on the date of the grant.
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On 13 March 2008, the Company granted 20,102,000 RZZEZENF=ZA+=A ARaRE-_ZFZT
share options to the Group’s employees under the 2007 +FERER B M A & E & 8 % 120,102,000
Share Option Scheme at an exercise price of HK$0.415 HERE TEEABRAISETL - RAFE
per share. A summary of movements of share options of W ARAIBREZEHHRAT

the Company during the year is set out as below:

Number of share options

EREYE
Lapsed/
Exercise Granted Exercised Cancelled Outstanding
Category of Price Exercise As at during during during as at
Grantee/Name Date of grant (HK$) Period 01/01/2017 the year the year the year 31/12/2017
®
» —E—tFf
REBAE TEE —F—tHE n&EAR +=BA=+—H
2 (Bx) 1 —B—H REREH RERNTHE K/ 18 K 1T €
Employees 13/03/2008 0.415 13/03/2009- 40,800 — — — 40,800
EE 12/03/2018
Employees 13/03/2008 0.415 13/03/2010- 20,600 — — — 20,600
EE 12/03/2018
Employees 13/03/2008 0.415 13/03/2011— 40,600 — — - 40,600
(=] 12/03/2018
Total 102,000 — — - 102,000
EEE
Note: Wiz -
1. The vesting period of the share options is from the date of grant 1. BRESBHEMAARL BHEEITE MG A
until the commencement of the exercise period. ke
2. The closing price of the share immediately before the date of grant 2. EEEERERL BB ZATMHKTE RGBT -

was HK$0.415.

3. The fair values of options granted and the respective accounting 3. EEENEREATFTEREARZ G BEHRN GRS
policy adopted are set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial B T 3R R BT 535 ©
statements.
There were no options granted under the New Share BMERENENR_Z—LEFRATNLEER
Option Scheme since its adoption on 19 May 2017. LA PR - I R R AR RE o
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 10 January 2013 (the “Adoption Date”), the Board
adopted a share award scheme (the “Share Award
Scheme”) under which the shares of the Company (the
“Awarded Shares”) may be awarded to selected persons
to recognise the contributions by certain employees and
persons to the Group and to provide them with incentives
in order to retain them for the continual operation and
development of the Group and to attract suitable
personnel for further development of the Group. The
Share Award Scheme will be valid and effective for a term
of ten years commencing on the Adoption Date until
9 January 2023.

The participants of the Share Award Scheme may include
executives, officers, employees, directors of the Company
or any of its subsidiary, any business or joint venture
partner, investor, consultant, adviser or agent of any
member of the Group.

The Share Award Scheme shall be subject to the
administration of the Administration Committee in
accordance with the rules of the Share Award Scheme
and the terms of the Trust Deed.

Pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, the Board shall
select the eligible persons for participation in the Share
Award Scheme and determine the number of shares to be
awarded. Shares will be acquired by an independent
trustee at the cost of the Company or shares will be
allotted to the independent trustee under the general
mandate granted or to be granted by the shareholders of
the Company at general meetings from time to time and
be held in trust for the awarded persons until the end of
each vesting period. Vested shares will be transferred at
no cost to the awarded persons.

Where any Awarded Shares are proposed to be offered to
a connected person of the Company (as defined under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules), such offer of Awarded
Shares has to be first approved by the independent non-
executive directors of the Company and the Company will
comply with the applicable requirements of Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules in respect of such offer (including but
not limited to the obtaining of independent Shareholders’
approval if necessary).
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Based on the 890,435,400 Shares in issue as at the
adoption date, the maximum number of Awarded Shares
under the Share Award Scheme would be 44,521,770
shares and the maximum number of shares which may be
awarded to an awarded person under the Share Award
Scheme would be 8,904,354 shares.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, no Awarded
Share was granted pursuant to the Share Award Scheme.

COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the directors of the Company had any interest in
any competing business with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries during the year under review. Each of Mr. Lee
and Precisefull (the controlling shareholders (within the
meaning of the Listing Rules) of the Company) has
provided a written confirmation, which has been reviewed
and confirmed by the independent non-executive directors
of the Company, confirming that they have complied with
the terms of a Deed of Non-competition entered into
between them and the Company for the year ended
31 December 2017.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
On 7 December 2015, the Group entered into a renewed
master agreement (the “Renewed Master Agreement”) with
Chit Shun Machinery Limited (“Chit Shun”) for a term of
three years commencing from 1 January 2016 to
31 December 2018, in relation to the purchase of
equipment, machineries and parts (together with the
maintenance services). Chit Shun is a limited liability
company incorporated in Hong Kong and beneficially
owned by Mr. Lee and an independent third party, in
equal share. Mr. Lee has nominated a director to the
board of Chit Shun. Since Mr. Lee is a director and
controlling shareholder of Chit Shun, Chit Shun is a
connected person of the Company (as defined in the
Listing Rules). Accordingly, the transactions between the
Group and Chit Shun constitute continuing connected
transactions (the “Chit Shun Transactions”) of the Group.
At the board meeting held on 7 December 2015, the
Board had approved (i) the Renewed Master Agreement
and the transactions contemplated thereunder; and (ii) the
proposed annual caps for each of the three years ending
31 December 2018.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017, Chit Shun
Transactions totalled approximately HK$5,088,000 (2016:
HK$2,417,000).

The independent non-executive directors of the Company
have reviewed the Chit Shun Transactions, assessed the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s internal
control procedures in relation to them, and confirmed that
they have been entered into:

1. in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

2. on normal commercial terms or better; and

3. in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders
of the Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with the Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits
or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued his
unqualified letter containing his findings and conclusions
in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed by the Group on pages 41 and 42 of this report
in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A
copy of the auditor’'s letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

On 24 October 2016, The Group entered into an equity
transfer agreement with Forever International Development
Limited (the “Purchaser”), pursuant to which the Group
had conditionally agreed to sell and the Purchaser has
conditionally agreed to acquire the entire equity interest of
MG Technology (Shenzhen) Company Limited (“MG
Technology”), the Group’s wholly-owned subsidiary, at a
consideration of HK$290,000,000. As of the date of the
relevant agreement, since the Purchaser was wholly-
owned by Mr. Lee, a controlling shareholder and an
executive director of the Company, the Purchaser was a
connected person of the Company. Accordingly, the
disposal constituted a connected transaction of the
Company under the Listing Rules.

42 Ka Shui International Holdings Limited = B ZRER AT

BHE-_Z—+F+-_A=1+—RBILtEE #41
X5 7 HEEEH 55,088,000 T (ZE — KN F
2,417,000 7T) °

ARRBYFATESCEHRARS - A
HERRZERGNARAMEZERGNE R
- THERZERS

1. EXREENREEBREL:

2. BE-BABEAIBEEGRTET &

3. REEEXZERZHZEBMHGIET
MERATFEE  WEFEARBRED
R Be %U 25 o
e = janil

ARRZEBECEBREBEE LSRG HEM
B(E B E TIEAER) 30005k (KRERTEX
SEMELMBER AN ZETIEI 2R
BSR40 [ R B ACEM R
BREXZNRBE RG] BEAERENTE
BER S - A ERE TR R FE14A5604
BHHERB R MR EXBENHERE
AEBEAREFNRNREBEBENFTERER
SR EBR MW o AR E 8z A KRR
KEBERPT -

R-ZF-AF+A-FTHBE AKEHAEEZR
RERBERRARTESDIILREE R B
Bl ARECERERAEHERENES B
HREBEARAZ2EMBRAE XN
(FYINARRA(TAISEMZ]) 2 2 B
z 0 A B /290,000,000 7T > 1A A B 1 & B
H ARETHERRRFATEETFTALER
BHA WETRARAZHAEANL - Bl
REBELTRA HEFEBUARA ZHER
5 o



DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

Details of this transaction were disclosed in the
Company’s announcement dated 24 October 2016 and
the circular dated 22 November 2016 (the “Circular”). As
stated in the Circular, the directors are of the view that
the disposal of the entire equity interest of MG
Technology (the “Disposal”) will allow the Group to
consolidate its production facilities, improve its operational
efficiency, achieve cost savings due to lower labour costs
in the Huizhou area, reduce operating costs by integrating
production facilities within the Huizhou Industrial Complex,
reduce the Group’s leverage and enhance the Group’s
financial position by repaying part of its bank borrowings,
realise the fair value of the Group’s investment in the land
and property with a gain, and enjoy a premium based on
the consideration to be received by the Company for the
Disposal. The transaction was approved by the
independent shareholders of the Company at the
extraordinary general meeting held on 7 December 2016.

On 12 July 2017, the Company completed the Disposal.
Upon completion, MG Technology has ceased to be a
subsidiary of the Company and the financial results of MG
Technology will no longer be consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements of the Group.

The Board confirms that the Company has complied with
the disclosure requirements as required by the Listing
Rules in relation to the aforementioned connected/
continuing connected transactions.

Apart from the aforesaid continuing connected
transactions and connected transaction, related-party
transactions entered into by the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2017 which do not constitute
connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions under the Listing Rules are disclosed in Note
39 to the consolidated financial statements.

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float required under the
Listing Rules, based on the information that is publicly
available to the Company and within the knowledge of the
directors.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
On 26 March 2018, the Board has recommended the
payment of a final dividend of HK1.0 cent per share
(2016: HK1.0 per share) for the year ended 31 December
2017 to the shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on Friday, 8 June
2018. Subject to the approval of the shareholders of the
Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting to be
held on Monday, 28 May 2018, the final dividend will be
paid on or about Friday, 15 June 2018.

AUDITOR
At the Company’s last general meeting, RSM Hong Kong
was re-appointed as auditor of the Company.

RSM Hong Kong shall retire and being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment, and a resolution to this
effect will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

OTHER CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’
INFORMATION

Other changes in directors’ information since the date of
2017 Interim Report are set out below:

1. Mr. Kong Kai Chuen, Frankie, an independent non-
executive director of the Company, was appointed
as the Chief Financial Officer and Joint Company
Secretary of Futong Technology Development
Holdings Limited (Stock code: 465), a company
listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, on
16 October 2017 and 17 November 2017
respectively.

Save as the information disclosed above, there is no
change in directors’ information required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

By order of the Board
Lee Yuen Fat
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2018
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”)
believes that good corporate governance practices are
essential for promoting investors’ confidence and
maximising shareholders’ returns. The Board is committed
to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance
and reviews its corporate governance practices on a
regular basis.

With the above in mind, the Company has applied the
principles and adopted corporate governance practices as
set out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
(the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) in its corporate governance. For the year
ended 31 December 2017, the Board is of the view that
Company is in compliance with all the applicable code
provisions of the CG Code.

THE BOARD

The Board is collectively responsible for formulating the
Group’s overall business strategies, monitoring and
evaluating its operating and financial performance and
reviewing the corporate governance standard of the
Company. The day-to-day management, administration
and operation of the Company are led by the chief
executive officer of the Company. The Board has
delegated a series of responsibilities to the senior
management of the Company, which include the
implementation of decisions of the Board, the co-
ordination and direction of day-to-day operation and
management of the Company in accordance with the
management strategies and plans approved by the Board,
formulating and monitoring the production and operating
plans and budgets, and supervising and monitoring the
control systems. The Board has the full support of the
senior management to discharge its responsibilities.

As at 31 December 2017, the Board comprised seven
members as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lee Yuen Fat (Chairman)

Mr. Wong Wing Chuen (Vice Chairman)

Dr. Wong Cheong Yiu (Chief Executive Officer)
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ERERES ()

Independent Non-executive Directors
Professor Sun Kai Lit Cliff, BBS, JP

Ir Dr. Lo Wai Kwok, sBS, MH, JP

Mr. Andrew Look

Mr. Kong Kai Chuen, Frankie

Biographical details of the directors of the Company
(“Directors”) as at the date of this report are set out on
pages 19 to 24 of this annual report.

The Board members have no financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationships with each other.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has
confirmed in writing his independence from the Company
in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. On this
basis, the Company considers all such Directors to be
independent.

All the independent non-executive Directors were
appointed for a specific term of two years and are subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual
general meeting of the Company in accordance with the
provisions of the Articles of Association of the Company.
To further strengthen the standard of corporate
governance, the Company follows the CG Code and
requires any re-appointment of an independent non-
executive Director who has served on the Board for over
nine years to be subject to a separate resolution to be
approved by shareholders. In such cases, the Board will
set out in the annual report or circular the reasons why it
considers such Director to continue to be independent
and should be re-elected.

The Board conducts four regular scheduled meetings a
year on a quarterly basis and ad hoc meetings are
convened when circumstances require. Notice of at least
14 days is given to all Directors for all regular Board
meetings and all Directors are given opportunity to include
matters for discussion in the agenda. Draft minutes of
Board meetings are circulated to all Directors for
comments. Minutes of Board meetings with details of
matters considered by the Board and decision reached
are kept by the Company Secretary and open for
inspection by the Directors.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

During the year, four Board meetings and one annual
general meeting were held and details of attendance of
individual Directors are set out in the table on page 50 of
this annual report.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Pursuant to Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the
roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer should be
separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. The roles of chairman and chief executive
officer of the Company are segregated and are not
performed by the same individual. Mr. Lee Yuen Fat, the
Chairman, is responsible for the leadership and effective
running of the Board while Dr. Wong Cheong Yiu, the
Chief Executive Officer, is responsible for the overall
management and supervision of the execution of the
overall business strategies of the Group.

LIABILITY INSURANCE FOR THE
DIRECTORS

The Company has in force appropriate insurance
coverage on Directors’ and officers’ liabilities arising from
the Group’s business. The Company reviews the extent of
insurance coverage on an annual basis.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

The Directors are regularly briefed on the amendments to
or updates on the Listing Rules, corporate governance
practices, applicable regulatory regimes and the business
development of the Group. To keep abreast of the
responsibilities of the Directors and infuse them with new
knowledge, an in-house seminar was conducted during
the year and all Directors attended the seminar. Apart
from what the Company had arranged, some of the
Directors also attended other external training seminars.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee in June
2007. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to
review the Company’s financial reports, make
recommendations on the appointment, removal and
remuneration of independent auditor, approve audit and
audit-related services, supervise the Company’s internal
financial reporting procedures and management policies,
and review the Company’s risk management and internal
control systems as well as the internal audit function. The
Audit Committee comprises four independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Kong Kai Chuen, Frankie,
Professor Sun Kai Lit, Cliff 8BS, Jp, Ir Dr. Lo Wai Kwok sBS,
MH, JP and Mr. Andrew Look and is chaired by Mr. Kong
Kai Chuen, Frankie, a qualified accountant with extensive
experience in financial reporting and controls.
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During 2017, the Audit Committee held two meetings to
review the financial statements of the Group, review the
Group’s financial controls, risk management and internal
control systems and to make recommendation to the
Board on the re-appointment of the auditors of the
Company.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was set up in June 2007 and is
mainly responsible for reviewing the structure, size and the
composition of the Board and making recommendations on
any proposed change to the Board to complement the
Company’s corporate strategy; assessing the independence of
independent non-executive Directors; making recommendations
to the Board on the appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors. The members of the Nomination
Committee are Professor Sun Kai Lit, Cliff 8BS, Jr, Ir Dr. Lo
Wai Kwok sBs, MH, JP, Mr. Andrew Look, Mr. Kong Kai
Chuen, Frankie and Dr. Wong Cheong Yiu. Professor Sun
Kai Lit, Cliff BBs, JP is the Chairman of the Nomination
Committee.

During the year, the Nomination Committee held one
meeting to review the structure, size and the composition
of the Board.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the
“Board Diversity Policy”) during the year as required by
the CG Code which sets out the approach to achieve
diversity on the Board. The Company recognises that
increasing diversity at the Board level will support the
attainment of the Company’s strategic objectives and
sustainable development. The Company seeks to achieve
Board diversity when selecting candidates from a number
of perspectives through the consideration of a number of
factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The
Company will also take into consideration its own
business model and specific needs from time to time in
determining the optimum composition of the Board.

The Nomination Committee will review and monitor the
implementation of the Board Diversity Policy to ensure its
effectiveness as appropriate.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee in
June 2007. The major duties of the Remuneration
Committee are to make recommendations to the Board on
the Company’s policy and structure for the remuneration
of Directors and senior management. It also reviews and
determines the terms of remuneration packages, the
award of bonuses and other compensation payable to
individual Directors and senior management with reference
to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives. The
Remuneration Committee consists of Professor Sun Kai
Lit, Cliff BBS, Jr, Ir Dr. Lo Wai Kwok SBS, MH, JP, Mr. Andrew
Look, Mr. Kong Kai Chuen, Frankie and Dr. Wong
Cheong Yiu. The Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee is Professor Sun Kai Lit, CIiff BBS, JP, an
independent non-executive Director.

During 2017, the Remuneration Committee held two
meetings to review the bonus and salary adjustment of
the executive Directors and senior management of the
Company.

The remuneration of the members of the senior
management by band for the year ended 31 December
2017 is set out below:
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HK$1,500,001-HK$2,000,000

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION
The Board is responsible for the corporate governance
functions with the following duties:

° to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations on changes and updating;

o to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors;
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ERERES (F)

° to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

° to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees and Directors; and

o to review the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report.

ATTENDANCE OF MEETINGS

A summary of attendance of Board meetings, committee
meetings and general meetings in 2017 are detailed in the
following table:
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Number of attendance/Number of meetings

Audit

Committee
Board meeting

meeting

B

ESEE

Executive Directors

BITEE

Mr. Lee Yuen Fat 4/4
FTERELE

Mr. Wong Wing Chuen 4/4
BXEEE

Dr. Wong Cheong Yiu 4/4
EEREL

Independent Non-Executive
Directors
BIAEBRITES
Professor Sun Kai Lit, 4/4
Cliff BBS, JP
HRER P HiBBS, AT+
Ir Dr. Lo Wai Kwok sBs, MH, JP 3/4
[E B B8 T sBS, MH, AT+
Mr. Andrew Look 4/4
PSR L4
Mr. Kong Kai Chuen, Frankie 4/4
LR L&
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES

TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Having made specific
enquiry of all Directors, all Directors have confirmed that
they have fully complied with the required standard set
out in the Model Code throughout the year under review.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the
preparation of the financial statements of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2017. The statement of the
external auditor of the Company in relation to their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the
Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on
pages 91 and 93.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining and
reviewing the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group in order to
safeguard the Group’s assets and shareholders’
investments. The systems of risk management and
internal control of the Group are designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
corporate objectives and only provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in fulfilling its role
in reviewing the Group’s financial, operational and
compliance controls and reviewing the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions, and the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s internal control
procedures on the continuing connected transactions.

The management assists the Board in the implementation
of the Group’s policies, procedures and limits within the
Board’s approved risk appetite by identifying and
assessing the risks faced and monitoring the design and
operation of the relevant internal control measures to
mitigate and control these risks.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

ERERES ()

During the year, the Group has engaged an external
independent professional firm to review its internal control
system covering all relevant financial, operational and
compliance control functions within an established
framework. Reports prepared by this firm are submitted to
the Audit Committee of the Company twice a year for
review to ensure that an effective and adequate internal
control system is in place.

The Group has also engaged an independent professional
consultant to identify, evaluate and prioritise the significant
risks exposed to the Group through reviewing the
implemented system and procedures, including areas
covering financial, operational and legal compliance
controls and risk management functions. In addition, a
structured approach to risk management was adopted
and a risk-based three-year internal audit plan was
introduced through restructuring of internal control system
in order to address the significant risks identified and
assessed by the Group.

During the year, the Board has conducted a review on the
effectiveness of risk management and internal control
systems through the Audit Committee and the outsourced
internal auditor. The scope of review was previously
determined and approved by the Audit Committee.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Board
considered that the Company’s internal control and risk
management systems are adequate and effective and the
Company has complied with the code provisions on
internal control and risk management of the CG Code.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
FACING THE COMPANY

Foreign Exchange Risk

Most of the Group’s transactions were conducted in US
dollars, Renminbi or Hong Kong dollars. As such, the
Group is aware of the potential foreign currency risk that
may arise from the fluctuation of exchange rates between
US dollars, Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars. The Group
will closely monitor its overall foreign exchange exposure
with a view to safeguarding the Group from exchange
rate risks.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORTl(gONTINUED)

Competition Risk

Competition risk arises from the emergence of a number
of competitors in the industry. Price cut from competitors
intensifies the risk. The Group believes that the provision
of quality products and after sales service to customers
are the only way to gain and maintain customer
confidence and loyalty.

PROCEDURES AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
FOR HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF
INSIDE INFORMATION

The handling and dissemination of inside information of
the Group is strictly controlled to avoid unauthorised use
of inside information. All staff are required to sign the
employee confidentiality agreement and access to inside
information is restricted to employees on a need to-know
basis. In addition, the Group also set out procedures for
inside information identification, reporting and disclosure.
The Group will review the effectiveness of the current
procedures from time to time to ensure the compliance of
the relevant regulatory requirements.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The total auditor’'s remuneration in relation to statutory
audit work and non-audit services of the Group payable to
the Company’s external auditor, RSM Hong Kong, is set
out as follows:
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Non-audit services! T Z RO 443 399

Total B 2,193 2,059

Note: et -
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interim results and tax advisory services.
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ERERES (F)

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary of the Company is a full time
employee of the Company. For the year ended
31 December 2017, the Company Secretary has duly
complied with the relevant professional training
requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for convening extraordinary general
meeting on requisition

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, an extraordinary general meeting may be
convened on the requisition of one or more shareholders
holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less
than one tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
having the right of voting at general meetings. Such
requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the
Company Secretary for the purpose of requiring an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition. Such meeting shall be held within two months
after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of
such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do
so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by
the Company.

Procedure for putting forward proposals at
general meeting

A shareholder shall make a written requisition to the
Board or the Company Secretary at the Company’s office
in Hong Kong, specifying the shareholding information of
the shareholder, contact details and the proposal he/she
intends to put forward at the general meeting regarding
any specified business and its supporting documents.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Shareholders’ enquiries

Shareholders should direct their questions in relation to
their shareholdings to the Company’s share registrar.
Shareholders may at any time make a request for the
Company’s information to the extent that such information
is publicly available. Shareholders may send written
enquiries to the Board by writing to the Company
Secretary at the Company’s Hong Kong office at Room A,
29th Floor, Tower B, Billion Centre, 1 Wang Kwong Road,
Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

Constitutional Documents
There is no change in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year ended 31 December 2017.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

B - HGRERRE

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited (“Ka Shui” or the
“Company”), as a leading company specialising in
magnesium, aluminium and zinc alloy die casting, and
plastic injection moulding, understands that a sustainable
business must be both environmentally and socially
responsible. To achieve this goal, we have continued our
commitments to sustainable business development, and
prepared the Environmental, Social & Governance (“ESG”)
report covering the period from 1 January 2017 to
31 December 2017 (the “Reporting Period”). This is also
the first time for us to disclose environmental key
performance indicators (“KPIs”), marking significant step in
our sustainability performance tracking.

The ESG Report was prepared in accordance with
Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited,
and has been reviewed and approved by the Board of
Directors. The scope of the ESG report is confined to the
Company and its major subsidiaries (collectively, the
“Group”), and is as listed below:

— Ka Shui International Holdings Limited

— Ka Fung Industrial Technology (Huizhou) Company
Limited

— Ka Yi Technology (Huizhou) Company Limited

—  Ka Shui Technology (Huizhou) Company Limited (“Ka
Shui Technology”)

Looking ahead, Ka Shui will continue to invest for
sustainable growth, and work towards our vision to
develop into a leading green and high-tech enterprise. If
you have any feedback or suggestions, please send them
through email at enquiry@kashui.com. Your valuable
feedback and suggestion would greatly help us to
continuously improve our sustainable performance.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

STAKEHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT AND
MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

Realising stakeholders’ importance in the whole ESG
management, we value the process of stakeholders
engagement and materiality assessment in order to gather
information to refine our strategies. We have conducted
an online survey to gather views from our key
stakeholders, including employees, suppliers, customers
and non-governmental organisations, to identify issues that
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are most important to our business, as well as having the
highest concerns from our stakeholders.

Through the survey, 20 corporate social responsibility BRALE BOEEL_tTHEGCELGECE
(“CSR”) issues were rated by stakeholders and the result ([tEHeEEDBE BRIINOT KA
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stakeholders so as to meet their expectations.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

B HEHEEARE (H)

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
MANAGEMENT

“Respecting people, honouring customers, fostering
innovation, and supporting continuous improvement” are
Ka Shui’'s key operating principles. With the vision of
pursuing sustainability, we have formulated a group-level
CSR Policy with five core commitments: safeguarding
employees’ rights and interests, maintaining employee
physical and mental health, reducing environmental
footprints, complying with regulatory requirements, and
operating in line with business ethics.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Guided by this management framework, we incorporate
these corporate values into our daily practices. Various
tools, including CSR Code of Conduct and 7S
Management, are developed at the subsidiary level with
reference to international and industry-specific standards,
such as Social Accountability International SA 8000,
Electronic Industry Citizenship Coalition (“EICC”) Code of
Conduct, relevant ISO standards and Forest Stewardship
Council (“FSC”).

The 7S Management

The 7S Management has been originated from the 5S
management, and its building blocks are the most
powerful lean manufacturing tools. The 5S come from

Japanese terms beginning with the letter “S” — Seiri,
Seiton, Seiso, Seiketsu and Shitsuke, and together with
two additional phrases — “Safety” and “Save” to

complete our management approach. It is particularly
used for successfully guiding our employees over the
years to maintain a healthy and safe workplace to
manufacture quality products and to conserve resources
through behavioural changes.

A. BUSINESS ETHICS

Pursuing Excellence in Business

Whilst providing quality production and service, we
aim to go one step further by practising ethical
business and sustainable value creation with our
business partners and the community. Complying
with all applicable laws and regulations in our
operation, we strive to pursue excellence in our
business.
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Anti-Corruption

Ka Shui upholds the principle of “Compliance,
Integrity, Fairness, and Anti-corruption” seriously and
stands against any forms of bribery in order to do
business ethically and responsibly. To implement
this strong commitment, we strictly prohibit our
employees from receiving, directly or indirectly, any
forms of benefits such as presents and money by
stating clearly in our anti-corruption policy and staff
handbook. Whistling-blowing channels are also set
up for reporting any suspicious case of corruption.

Externally, we have established strict rules for all our
business partners which are detailed in our code of
conduct and anti-corruption policy. We require all
suppliers to follow the content stated in the
declaration of integrity; otherwise, they will be
blacklisted and may be subject to legal prosecution.
During the Reporting Period, there was no violation
of relevant laws and regulations relating to bribery,
extortion, fraud or money laundering.

Intellectual Property Rights

We value and respect intellectual property rights. At
Ka Shui, there are patents and trademarks held for
our technologies and developed materials. As the
owner of these patents, we understand the
importance of intellectual property to business.
Therefore, we strictly adhere to our confidentiality
and data protection policy, by clearly specifying in
our employee handbook and the employment
agreement the need for all employees to strictly
follow all the rules and regulations related to
intellectual property rights within the Group, striving
to best protect the Group and our customers’
interests in intellectual properties.
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Customer Satisfaction

As a provider of one-stop service backed by our
strong technology and innovation expertise, it is our
primary goal to deliver value-added services and
products to our customers. Aiming to satisfy our
client’s expectations and identify room for
continuous improvement, we conduct customer
satisfaction surveys twice a year. In case of any
dissatisfaction or return of product from customers,
we will investigate the reasons and set up
improvement plans on our production and service.
Constant follow-ups procedures are implemented to
prevent recurrence of the same deficiency.

Customer Privacy

Strict rules are set up to ensure proper handling of
any confidential information of clients and the
Group. For example, we sign confidentiality and
non-disclosure agreements (“NDAs”) with our clients
to protect all customers’ confidential business
information and product information.

Product Responsibility

Ka Shui aims to satisfy customers’ expectations and
comply with all applicable laws and regulations. To
achieve this goal, we have established quality
management systems certified with the international
standard ISO 9001. We actively take the lead in
ensuring the safeness and quality of our products
by setting up procedures to identify and evaluate
risk factors of our services and products; and thus
effectively control those risks. All of our employees
are devoted to working according to their job
responsibilities defined in the quality system and do
the best to satisfy our customers.

Supply Chain Management

In addition to our internal operation, we hope to
convey our CSR values to business partners that we
interact with and build mutual trust. All new
suppliers are required to go through a thorough
supplier assessment which consists of not only
criteria linked to product quality, but also a wide
range of CSR-related aspects, such as environmental
protection, Occupational Health and Safety (“OHS”),
intellectual property rights, privacy, and labour
standard and welfares.
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Suppliers have to sign the Supplier Environmental
Agreement to ensure they understand our CSR
policy and are committed to accomplishing our
expectations according to ISO 14001 Environmental
Managing System. Since we strictly follow the RoHS
and REACH standards, suppliers are required to
declare that their supplying materials are complying
with the standards, and also to submit testing
reports performed by third-party for verification of
the compliance. For instance, chemical suppliers are
required to submit Material Safety Data Sheet
(“MSDS”) to disclose the health and safety hazard
information of the chemicals and corresponding
health and safety measures. We will request
improvement plans in case of discovery of violation.
Ka Shui may terminate the business relationship if
no corrective or preventive actions are taken.

Apart from managing our suppliers, we also look
closely at the ethicality of our procurement activities.
For raw materials, minerals such as tantalum, tin,
tungsten, and gold in particular, we do not source
minerals from whose extraction and trade in
unstable regions affected by armed groups such as
the Democratic Republic of Congo or adjoining
countries, which have been known for perpetrating
human right abuses.

EMPLOYEE

Respecting Our People

Ka Shui upholds the values of “Respect, Passion,
Integrity, Teamwork and Initiative”. They have been
major elements in our business philosophy since the
beginning of our business back in 1980, and is one
of the key reasons to the success of our business.
We believe that people can bring us continuous
innovation and improved productivity. Our employees,
in particular, are whom we profoundly respect as
they are the backbone supporting the growth of Ka
Shui. With this in mind, it is our goal to create a
harmonious workplace and a mutual relationship
with our employees.
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Employment

A successful business should maintain a motivated
environment at work. Our people are remunerated
with attractive wages, fixed working hours,
comprehensive insurance coverage, and statutory
holidays, which are in line with national regulations
and also other standards including SA8000 and
EICC code of conduct. We also provide incentives
to employees with outstanding achievements and
performance in various aspects of work.

Beyond these, we nurture our corporate culture
“Praise, Home & Love” with the aim to turn Ka Shui
into a workplace treasured as a second home by
our employees. Our regular publication “Window of
Ka Shui” serves literally as the window of the home,
in which we advocate the four values (Learn,
Operate, Value, and Effective) by not only
announcing company’s latest news in the
publication, but also sharing knowledge regarding
health, working skills or any interesting stories to our
people.
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Equal Opportunity

The Group is committed to providing a working
environment that is free from discrimination. We
grant fair and equal employment opportunities based
on the qualifications and abilities of employees. In
respect of recruitment, promotion, performance
evaluation, and salary management, we will not take
unfair and differentiated treatment due to differences
on the ground of nationality, age, gender, sexual
orientation, gender identity, ethnicity, disability,
pregnancy, political inclination, and/or other forms of
difference that is unrelated to the job requirements.

We respect diversity and freedom of association,
and we prohibit any forms of discrimination,
harassment, and victimisation at the workplace. At
the same time, to build unity and mutual trust, we
operate an anonymous whistle-blowing system to
encourage the reporting of misconduct while
respecting the privacy of the whistle-blowers.

Labour Rights

Ka Shui cares about children’s health, safety,
education, and development; therefore, we strictly
prohibit child labour in all our subsidiaries by checking
staff’'s identification documents and having regular
investigations. We have remedy procedures in place in
case we discover child labour in our factories. We will
send the children back home, followed by providing
medical health check and sufficient living expenses
until they are 16 years old. We aim to offer as much
assistance as possible and alleviate potential negative
impacts on them. In addition, we also ensure our staff
work consensually, and are free from any forced
labour in the workplace. During the Reporting Period,
the Group does not have any non-compliance with
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact relating to preventing child and forced labour.
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Occupational Health and Safety

Ka Shui takes full responsibility to provide a healthy
and safe workplace for our employees. We have
taken effective OHS protection measures such as
organising physical examination for all staff every year
and for newly recruited employees. Comprehensive
OHS training is also provided to our staff to enrich
their knowledge on occupational health, and the
correct ways of using protective equipment. Based on
employees’ job natures and needs, we provide extra
training to ensure their complete acknowledgment to
all the potential hazards and dangers in their own
workplace, and are competent to safely perform all
activities.

As a company with manufacturing processes such
as metal alloys die casting and plastic injection
moulding, there are probable work-related hazards
that have the potential to cause injury, illness, or
other adverse health effects. We have therefore set
up our health and safety policy and a safety
management system to control these OHS risks.
Apart from complying with all relevant regulations
and laws, we are committed to identifying,
monitoring, and controlling the risks through
conducting regular occupational hazard factor
inspection, and formulate suitable action plans to
mitigate the corresponding risks.

Accidents, however, may still happen even with all
the preventive measures in place. We therefore have
first-aiders in the subsidiaries as required in related
legal provisions for any immediate first-aid support.
In order to cope with emergency situations, we have
developed an emergency procedure plan. Drills for
fire and other emergency situations are also
periodically conducted and reviewed to increase
staff’s safety awareness and response efficiency in
case of emergency events.
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Staff Development

We always view the talents of our employees as our
most valuable asset. To let our people fully
understand the Group’s core values and business
principles, we provide a series of training
programmes based on industry-wide standard EICC
requirements, covering issues related to reinforcement
of labour rights, ethics, as well as OHS, so that these
concepts can be internalised and contribute to building
of unity and mutual trust within the Group.

Since 2005, our Ka Shui Enterprise Academy has
contributed significantly to enhance the quality and
skills of our employees and promote corporate
culture exchange. The academy collects the demand
of training from each department and formulates an
annual training plan for individual employees
accordingly. Through lectures and relationship-
building activities, our people at different job
positions and levels can have chances to nurture
our rich corporate culture and develop in both
personal and professional domains.
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The Group also established an apprenticeship
programme to train and develop our technical
personnel, as well as to enhance the sense of
belonging among employees. Experienced mentors
are assigned to help and guide new employees in
terms of job skills, professional ethics, and personal
development.
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Ka Shui’s efforts has been recognised by the
“Learning Enterprise Award” by the Professional
Validation Council of Hong Kong Industries and the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University for two consecutive
years. This award demonstrates our commitments
and outstanding performances in pursuing to be an
innovative, knowledge-based, talent-based, and
sustainable enterprise.
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Employee Relationships

We strive to maintain a harmonious working
environment and good relationship with our
employees by setting up a multi-channel
communication system for staff, union, and the
management. By means of meetings, forums, sports
competitions, and other activities, we are committed
to strengthening the interactions between management
and employees, and improving employee satisfaction.
We listen to their voices and complaints via placing
an internal opinion box, and has committed to
handling them timely and impartially.

In addition, a wide range of recreational and
relationship building activities are organised to
nurture a strong sense of belonging to the Group
among the employees, such as monthly birthday
parties, basketball and singing competitions as well
as Chinese New Year gathering and Mid-Autumn
Lantern Carnival, on a regular basis. We also
provide physical fithess rooms, library, internet
rooms, and badminton courts in workplaces to
foster work-life balance. These, all together, can give
our staff’'s mind the necessary rest from daily stress
and re-energised them for upcoming tasks.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
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C. ENVIRONMENT

Group Environmental Policy

observe all applicable national and local laws
and regulations strictly

establish, implement and strengthen our
environmental management system, as well as
setting of goals for environmental achievements
introduce cleaner production in steps; striving
to conserve resource uses and reduce waste/
effluent

provide trainings and education to promote the
idea of sustainable development across the
supply chain

provide channels for relevant interested parties
and the public to get access to our
environmental performance tracking
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Protecting the Environment

As a leading green and high-tech manufacturer, we
try our best to achieve sustainable development in
our business, and integrate environmental protection
as our core duty. We have an indivisible bond with
the natural environment, as from which we strongly
rely on the natural resources to manufacture our
products, and thus it is our core responsibility to
protect and conserve our environment. Apart from
implementing all green measures across our
operations within our offices and factories,
additionally, we proactively explore opportunities to
achieve our environmental goals and reduce our
carbon footprints by following RoHS and REACH
standard strictly, as well as maintaining our
environmental management system which is certified
to the international recognised ISO 14001
Environmental Management System Certification.
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With limited amount of resources and increasing
environmental pollution issues on our planet, Ka Shui
places high importance on reducing the
environmental footprints of our products to create
values for our customers and other stakeholders.
We strive to look for opportunities to deliver quality
products that bring less impact to the environment.

Apart from instilling the culture of environmental
protection within the Group, we strive to step
forward to exert influences on and raise awareness
of other parties associated with Ka Shui, in order to
further minimise the impacts on the environment and
natural resources. Related parties, including
transportation providers, waste collectors, raw
material suppliers, chemical suppliers, and canteen
operators, are all required to comply with our
“Environmental Requirements of Related Party”. For
example, raw material suppliers are required to use
recyclable packaging as far as possible and waste
collectors are required to obtain relevant permits and
qualifications. In case of violation, Ka Shui will follow
the issues seriously and may terminate the business
relationship if there are no improvements.

As a one-stop service provider, we also engage in
research and development of the best environmentally
friendly materials and technologies applied in the
industry so as to create green values for our
stakeholders. Apart from the pursuit of quality, we
also aim to foster innovation on the use of
materials, products and technologies, leading to
higher energy efficiency for the end products, higher
resource utilisation efficiency in the manufacturing
process, and less impact to the environment.
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The Group promotes sustainable technology and
innovation so as to achieve sustainable growth. We
collaborated with Nano and Advanced Materials Institute
Limited (“NAMI”) on the research of the biocide-free
germ-repellent plastic polyethylene resin, which was
awarded the Gold Medal in the 45th International
Exhibition of Inventions in Geneva and Gold Medal in
2017 Chinese International Invention Expo. It is an
advanced material technology and is able to prevent
antimicrobial germs from adsorbing and colonising on the
surface to avoid cross-transmission of germs. The
awarded plastic is bleach-free, non-toxic, and will not give
rise to drug-resistant “superbugs”. This is a testament of
the research and innovation capability of the Group.
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Waste Management

We strive to minimise our environmental footprints
and we reduce our waste generation and disposal
with our three waste management actions: reduce,
recycle, and dispose. “Reduce” refers to the
reduction of raw and office material consumption by
increasing their efficiency, and is the most
preferable option in our waste management. We
continuously improve on the efficiency of the
production process in order to lower the demand on
raw materials and reduce product failures.

Separation of waste is important for proceeding into
“Recycle” and “Dispose”. We separate waste into
three categories — valuable waste, hazardous
waste, and non-hazardous waste — by placing
them in different bins with clear labels. This is a vital
step in the management to isolate hazardous waste
which requires different approaches to handle, and
to scavenge the valuable waste for recycling.

“Recycle” refers to the recycling of valuable waste
such as metals from the leftover in production,
which can be recycled back into the production.
“Dispose” refers to the disposal of waste to landfill.
Although this is the least preferable option in waste
management, there is some waste which
unavoidably ends up with being disposed of. Only
qualified collectors are appointed to handle the
waste as it is our duty to ensure that waste,
especially hazardous waste, is disposed of in strict
compliance with national laws and regulations.
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Regarding hazardous waste, each department
records its generation quantity monthly, as a basis
for continuous improvement. During the Reporting
Period, the Group disposed of a total of 348.65
tonnes of hazardous waste and 902.81 tonnes of
non-hazardous waste, and the breakdown is as
follows:

Type of Waste BE¥ITE4E Quantity B &

Hazardous waste HZE Y
Chemical waste 1t 22 F
Other H fib

Total &5t

Intensity (per million HKD revenue)
BE(EAESBETRA)
Intensity (per million pieces of product)

BE (BASMHEM)

Non-hazardous waste HEEEEY
Domestic waste 5 A RE 4
Total #2851

Intensity (per million HKD revenue)
wE(EEE8BTEN)
Intensity (per million pieces of product)

BE(BEERHFEM)

346.37
2.28
348.65
0.28

0.37

902.81
902.81

0.71

0.96
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tonnes ‘A I
tonnes ‘A WA
tonnes ‘A

tonnes per million HKD revenue
AW/ BEEBETRA

tonnes per million pieces of product
AW/ BEEHEMD

tonnes A M
tonnes ‘A I§

tonnes per million HKD revenue
NMEHEHEBETRA

tonnes per million pieces of product
R/ BABMHER
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Air & Greenhouse Gas Emissions

There is a certain amount of air pollutants produced
in our manufacturing processes such as exhausts
from moulding and dust from scrapping. To reduce
our emissions, we have installed filtering devices for
our major air pollutants, such as volatile organic
compound (“WYOC”) and particulate matter (“PM”),
along our production chain to ensure the emission
level complies with the national regulations.
Monitoring of the air quality is conducted by third
parties regularly to ensure the level of pollutants are
controlled properly and does not exceed the
threshold limit. The Group’s emissions where we
have available records during the Reporting Period
are as follows:

Air Pollutants

ERERY
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Emission

HRE

VOCs E#HMEAHILEY

PM REKL P
Nitrogen oxides — &1k i
Dust EEI&

Benzene &
Hydrogen chloride &1L &
Toluene and xylene A A& F1 = B &

4,719.60 kg AT
2,067.00 kg AfT
1,241.02 kg AT
262.53 kg AFF
37.87 kg AfF
457.00 kg AT
2,649.60 kg AT

Total 45t

B>
=

11,434.62 kg
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In view of the challenge due to climate change, we
pay special attentions to the Group’s greenhouse
gas (“GHG”) emission and are committed to
reducing our impact on the environment by
implementing various policies and measures. We
have conducted a GHG emission assessment to
understand the Group’s emission pattern and we
found that the consumption of natural gas, gasoline,
refrigerant, and electricity are the major con-
tributors of our GHG emissions. During the
Reporting Period, the total amount of GHG emission
is 37,630.46 tCO,e, which the breakdown is as
follows:

Greenhouse Gases

il E AR HE

Scope 1 &iE—
Stationary fuel [& 7 ¥4 £
Vehicle fuel B2 & Ak}

VA 7.75\|

Refrigerant #l /% %l

Scope 2 &iE =
Electricity &

Total 43t

Intensity (per million HKD revenue)
BE(EBESBETRA)

Intensity (per million pieces of product)
wRE(BEE8HEM)

To reduce our carbon footprints, the Group is
working on the setting of reduction targets based on
our emission data and is committed to implementing
corresponding measures in the future.

Emission

HRE

3,982.54
121.86
461.66

32,964.40
37,530.46

29.69

39.82
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Use of Resources

To effectively manage our resources and energy
use, we have set up the Energy and Resource
Consumption Control Procedure. It clearly outlines
the responsibility of each department on managing
each resource type, including electricity, fuel, water,
raw materials, and packaging materials.

Energy Use

The main types of energy resource consumed are
electricity, natural gas for boilers, and gasoline for
vehicles. During the Reporting Period, the Group
consumed a total of 38,022,918.59 kWh of
electricity, 2,106,545.10 m?® of natural gas and
45,814.49 litres of gasoline which the details are as
follows:

Type of Resources

Consumption

HEE

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
= .

&iRF A

AT AR E R R AP EY B IR BE IR A A

ﬁzﬁE?&iﬁEﬁ&éﬁﬁﬁ% %lﬁir ;%

BB g EBrINERESEER

WEE BEED  BE K R EA
BEMEL

gEiRF A

EREENEEBRBEAE N ARIRED
i%ﬂ*ﬂﬁﬁﬁ/\/lﬁmfb/ﬂﬂ EA#E:':E@F?
AN BHRE T 42£38,022,918.59F FL /) VB
T 712,106,545.1032 77 K X 28 & M
45,814,497 )58 - D EEWT ¢

Electricity E 75

38,022,918.59

Intensity (per million HKD revenue) 30,077.25
BE(BEEBTRA)

Intensity (per million pieces of product) 40,347.30
RE(BESHER)

Natural gas X4 R 2,106,545.10

Intensity (per million HKD revenue) 1,666.34
BE(BEEBTHKA)

Intensity (per million pieces of product) 2,235.32
RE(BESHER)

Gasoline /X 45,814.49

Intensity (per million HKD revenue) 36.24
BE(BBEEBTHRA)

Intensity (per million pieces of product) 48.62

BE(EBaBEHE®)
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KWh F B /N

kWh per million HKD revenue
FTROE/SAEETRA

kWh per million pieces of product

FTRNK /" Sa8HER

m3 37 75 K

m? per million HKD revenue
NAEK/BEEET

m?3 per million pieces of product

NHKR/BEEBHER

litres F+

litres per million HKD revenue
Ft/BEEBBETRA

litres per million pieces of product
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We are committed to utilising energy efficiently and
thus to reduce our greenhouse gas emissions by
monitoring our energy usage. Our production
facilities are installed with electricity meters at
specified locations to record the electricity use, and
hence we can understand the pattern of energy use
and can identify areas for further improvement.

Apart from monitoring, we always look for feasible
opportunities to lower our energy usage. Beginning
from procurement, we tend to purchase machineries
and electrical appliances which are certified with
energy-saving labels. In the office context, while
meeting the operation needs of lighting and air
conditioning, reminders are placed next to power
switches to remind staff members to avoid
unnecessary consumption of electricity. Staff are
reminded to switch off electrical equipment, such as
computers, printers, and shredders when not in
use.

For vehicle fuel, we conduct regular maintenance
and annual inspection to ensure vehicles are always
operating in good condition.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
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Water Resources

We endeavour to implement an effective water
management through efficient water use and water
recycling. Our primary goal is to reduce the water
consumption by monitoring our water use,
inspecting water pipes constantly to prevent any
water leakage, and promoting water-saving
behaviours to all staff. In case of water leakage,
maintenance will be conducted timely to avoid
wastage. For domestic water use, “water saving”
signs are placed near water taps to remind our staff
to treasure water resources. In addition, we strive to
reuse and recycle our water resources as much as

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
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REBRKERER - RPN EZEEZ
BBERAKE  KEREKE EEM
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o RERMOBE IR EKER - LI
RALHEREEAMOUKER Bt
MIAEEE TREHKAE - RIEH
- AN E 48 K8 7309,067.3132 K
HI7K o

possible such that employees are encouraged to
propose water-saving initiatives. During the
Reporting Period, the Group consumed a total of
309,067.31 m® of water.

Type of Resources

Consumption

AREE HIEE

Water 7K 309,067.31  md 35K

Intensity (per million HKD revenue) 244,48 m?3 per million HKD revenue
wE(EBAREEBTHEAN) SR/ BEBEBBEITRA

Intensity (per million pieces of product) 327.96 m? per million pieces of product

BE(BaEMFEM) AR/ BEEBHER
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Through our strict control on production and
domestic wastewater, we ensure that the discharge
of wastewater complies with relevant laws and
regulations, as well as the requirements of local
environmental protection authorities. We also made
efforts on water reclamation, for example, a
wastewater treatment system was installed at Ka
Shui Technology’s factory to process industrial
wastewater, and 60% of the treated water is
successfully recycled in our manufacturing process.
The total quantity of wastewater discharged during
the Reporting Period is 61,788.81 me.

Discharge

HHE

Wastewater EEk

Intensity (per million HKD revenue)
BRE(EBBBESBETRA)

Intensity (per million pieces of product)

BE (BEEMHEM)

61,788.81

48.88 m? per million HKD revenue
SNHK/BEEBBEITRA

65.57 m? per million pieces of product

MAK/BEBHER
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Wastewater treatment system in Ka
Shui Technology’s factory
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Raw Materials

We aim to use sustainable raw materials which
bring less harm to the environment and human
throughout the product life cycle; therefore, we
strictly manage the raw materials of our product in
compliance with international standards, including
RoHS and REACH to govern the use of the
regulated hazardous substances and chemicals in

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
R #H8HERERE (&)

E#H#E
BMPWEZERFAASEERNEMR
EEREEMBHERRDHIREMNAEN
EE AL BMBEBERRERIE
ROHSKREACH) ' BRIE BB EM M EREM
BomEEERERFEREEDE ML
TEM Wi RMEEZFE R KR
FSCIEE  RBEHMMEEBREFFEAD
REMBBREUTFEFER TR -

production. In addition, we also follow the FSC
standard as requested from our clients to ensure
the wooden material we use in production are
sourced from sustainable origins.

The major types of raw material consumed are BEMEHEEEEESER #6568 8|4
plastic, magnesium alloy, aluminium alloy, and zinc EMEEE - BARD EMHEFHEE’JE
alloy. Our approaches to reduce raw material usage EEERALEERE BLEERRE M
include upgrading production equipment, optimising B TRMEEN - AW E HBEESR A&

the production process, offering training to our VT EERREEEESRRETERER
employees, recycling scrapped products, and better BN - RIREERE - NEBEETRH

strategic planning to control and minimise the 530,489.81 AW R A kL - 3BT ¢
occurrence of unqualified products. During the

Reporting Period, the Group consumed a total of

530,489.81 tonnes of raw materials and details are

as follows:

Type of raw material

Consumption

RHEER HIEE

Plastic #8 & 10,534.61 tonnes A M

Magnesium alloy %4 & 2.70  tonnes A MWA

Aluminium alloy $84& & 1,234.50  tonnes AMA

Zinc alloy # & & 518,718.00  tonnes A MNA

Total 485t 530,489.81  tonnes A

Intensity (per million HKD revenue) 419.32 tonnes per million HKD revenue
wE(EBAREEBTHEAN) DM BEEBETHA

Intensity (per million pieces of product) 562.92 tonnes per million pieces of
RE(GEEHER) product

DM BEBMHE®
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

RE HSHEARHRE(E)
Packaging Materials BERHHE
Our operations include the use of various packaging T EE &}E{EFH LHEBERMBBEM
materials for containment and protection of REEmM -RMEMAERMEFEAHRIE
products. The types and amounts of the majority DEEMBHBEMEEHEFOT

packaging materials that we have utilised during the
Reporting Period are summarised as follows:

Type of packaging material Consumption

BEMHES HER

Carton box #&#4 171.95  tonnes A WA

Plastic 22 & 39.07  tonnes ‘A MA

Sticker 8f 4K 27.18  tonnes WA

Other £ 26.25  tonnes A WA

Wood 7K #F 58.95  tonnes A MA

Total 485t 323.40  tonnes AMA

Intensity (per million HKD revenue) 0.26 tonnes per million HKD revenue
BE(BESBTKA) AW BEEBETRA

Intensity (per million pieces of product) 0.34 tonnes per million pieces of
BE(BESHE®R) product

AW/ BEEBHER

Noise Generation IR

During our operation, noise is generated from L& E R - B8 A 4% 25 10 5% B 4 0 R 48 %
vehicles and machineries such as generators and GEARE - BRE E%Q—%?&ﬂﬂﬂﬁfﬁﬁ
compressors. To reduce the noise level and R FAPTE T PR R S A RE RO M 85 R
nuisance to the surroundings, we strive to opt for AR ﬁiﬁﬁiﬂﬁﬂxﬁ INFERE BT
high-efficient machineries to reduce the operation RIFRAREE - BB ERTTE - BB
time and conduct regular maintenance to ensure the BTFTBINE] THREZLE-

equipment is in good condition. By the above
means, we strictly comply with the noise standards
set by the government.
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COMMUNITY

Engaging Our Community

We are committed to giving back to our community
and have made substantial and increasing
contributions to the community throughout the
years. We always encourage our staff to involve in
the community by establishing a volunteer team
which arranges activities continuously. We have
actively participated in community education
projects, poverty and disaster relief initiatives as well
as charity events, as supporting the people in need
is one of our prime objectives in community
investment.

As a leader in developing special alloys, vehicle
weight reduction, renewable energy, and green
applications, we hope to make good use of our
industry knowledge to support local education
projects. To support the development of renewable
energies, we have been sponsoring students of the
Hong Kong Institute of Vocational Education (“IVE”)
to develop a solar-powered vehicle since 2015. In
the World Solar Challenge 2017, the total weight of
the sixth generation of solar-powered vehicle
(“SOPHIE VI"), the solar-powered vehicle developed
by IVE students, has been reduced by 1/4
compared with the previous generation. It is the first
time to apply rare-earth magnesium alloy in car
suspension system which was sponsored and made
by Ka Shui. This reduces the vehicle weight for
power efficiency and also provides stronger
suspension system with better corrosion resistance.

84 Ka Shui International Holdings Limited 5B IZERER AT
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
BRig - HERERKRE ()

Ka Shui sponsored IVE's “SOPHIE VI” in
the World Solar Challenge 2017
EmENBEEZEHNE 28 2 SOPHIE
VI Bt R OK RS B = Bk B &E2017)

Application of rare-earth magnesium alloy
in car suspension system of “SOPHIE VI”
FEAM L4 €M SOPHIE VI 2 98B &
HEZ

Ka Shui supported the Youth Programme, which aims to RN XFHRAEAIXEETERRBEIRR
let students understand industrial development trends in BPNBTLFE BEESEBRBALOT
Mainland, organised by The Professional Validation XREBE -

Council of Hong Kong Industries and Vocational Training

Council.
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RE -HEHEEREE(E)

Ka Shui volunteer team participated in
“New Year Couplets Writing Activity”
EhEIK2ENERETRD

Ka Shui sponsored “2017 Hong Kong Golf
Tournament for All” organised by Hong
Kong Blind Sports Federation
EmEDBRASEABEASEND
[2017F BB GRARMS R RIKE]

Industry Training Advisory Committees of
Qualifications Framework Hong Kong
organised the “Experience Day” activity for
high-school students to visit Ka Shui
el ¥ " Technology Park

0 EZEE - ERERRBZOERIFREZEEERS
PERBTIERA] NFRHARE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

29th Floor, Lee Garden Two, 28 Yun Ping Road,

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
KA SHUI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Ka Shui International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 94 to
215, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2017, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 December 2017, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the "HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

B % BE
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RSMHongKong  thinE# (FiE) GBS
FREEERTE_+/\5%

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong FEZEA -+ FE
T+8522598 5123 EiE +8522598 5123
F+85225987230 {HH +85225987230

www.rsmhk.com www.rsmhk.com
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
B A RS (F)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS EREXSE
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our HAREZFEEREBERMOFZEAG - HAH
professional judgment, were of most significance in our MaEEVBERRNBEZEAEENSEH S

FHRERMEZERRAMBREALRLAR
REETREN MEMTIEHELIHEHR

audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the

context of our audit of the consolidated financial EENER - BEMENENEREZSTER
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion e

thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. The key audit matters we identified are:

1. Fair value measurement of land 1. THAFEMNFE
2. Allowance for inventories 2. TGFEEE

Key Audit matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit matter

AEEREE BHEEZPHASEZSENREEAR
1. Fair value measurement of land
THAFENFE

Refer to notes 5(e), 7 and 19 to the Our procedures in relation to the fair value measurement of
consolidated financial statements. land included:

2B 4R A MBS W &Ebe) ~ 7R19 - BT AFENFEETHNRFEE:

The Group measures its land at fair value —  Evaluation of the independent external valuer’s

using a market approach. The valuation is a
level 3 fair value measurement as it involves
adjustments to market comparables to
reflect the particular characteristics of the
land, including location and plot sizes,
which are based on unobservable inputs
that are subjective. The value of land is
sensitive to these inputs. In order to
determine an appropriate fair value of the
land, the Group appointed an independent
professional valuer to perform the
assessment.

EXBEERmHE BAFTEFERE L
o hERE=ZEQATEFE HAREF
BRHEMSAIELRERNETRAE AR
BT eERBEYE BRI RIEX
N TIAEBTAEEN 28 RER - +
W BEHZE28BE - REETZ L
WREATE ESEEEEBEYEXMGE
B HETT AT A o
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competence, capabilities and objectivity;
EB L AEMNER I REEIG

Assessing the valuation methodologies used and the
appropriateness of the key assumptions and
comparables;

HEFAEETEAAREEBERRAUBELBENESR

/‘A-‘é.‘-;
A =

Checking the accuracy of the observable inputs;
MEABR2HEEER:

Reviewing the appropriateness of those adjustments
which were based on unobservable inputs; and
RAIRTABRL2EAERABRESRE &

Assessing the adequacy of the disclosures in respect of
the fair value of land.
AT AT EMERESSTEH -



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit matter
HREREIR

2. Allowance for inventories

FEREG

Refer to notes 5(a) and 24 to the
consolidated financial statements.
S B4R A W 1% W E M 515(a) K24 ©

At the end of the reporting period, the
Group identifies obsolete and slow-moving
inventory items that are not probable for
use in future production or to be sold out.
It also identifies any other inventories with
net realisable value below cost. The
identification is based on forecasts of
customers’ future orders and future market
conditions, and involves subjective
estimation. The allowance has impact on
the carrying amount of inventories and the
profit or loss for the year.

RI|BERKR EXEB R TATBIERK
GAEXELNBRIFHFEEE o KT

BYZHE®RE(H)

EREEXSEE)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit matter

BAESERPHRAKERTENEELR

Our procedures in relation to the allowance for inventories
included:

B FERFEETHNIEF B

— Reviewing inventory ageing analysis to identify obsolete
or slow-moving inventories;
EHFEEREON BRI BRI FHTE

—  Testing whether the net realisable value of major items
of inventories exceeded cost by reviewing sales after
the reporting date; and
EHREARENHEE AN FTEFEHEENATER
FERGERMKAE K

— Reviewing the appropriateness of the allowance for
inventories by reference to information about
subsequent sales or usage.

S2EABERHEELAEANEN BEHFERBRED

HAA R FEEAKRANEMEAMT BE o

E-ZHEARATBAZTE RKTE KKK

TGN BERE - W R EE LT - BREE

BHFAGTERABREZARE -
OTHER INFORMATION H fth & &
The directors are responsible for the Other Information. EEFHHMENBE EMERBERE B2
The Other Information comprises all of the information AZE—tEtFFHMAEAINE2HER (TERE
included in the 2017 annual report of the Company other AV REEEBEMUL LB LOZEMES) -

than the consolidated financial statements and our

auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does BMEFEe M BRENBERLMREHEMER
not cover the Other Information and we do not express NBEMIT T EEMEREREAEANRELS
any form of assurance conclusion thereon. B
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

B A RS (F)

OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the Other
Information and, in doing so, consider whether the Other
Information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this Other
Information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

90 Ka Shui International Holdings Limited =B IZERER AT
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
B A RS (F)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on
the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit
Committee, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Mr. Liu Eugene.

RSM HONG KONG

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong
26 March 2018
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
REBEBER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #iZ — T —+F T+ A =+—HILFE

2017 2016
—ET—tHF —E—RF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
ks F#ET FET
Revenue (' PN 8 1,738,738 1,742,476
Cost of sales iz R DN (1,428,969) (1,350,744)
Gross profit EH 309,769 391,732
Other income H A 9 16,670 25,677
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEAX (30,465) (29,318)
General and administrative expenses  — & M 1T X (271,500) (262,526)
Other operating expenses and income H fth 4 8 5 & & g A 11 (22,052) (3,157)
Profit from operations HERH 2,422 122,408
Finance costs A& B AR 12 (16,115) (17,489)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary el =N By 36(b) 96,011 —
Gain on deemed disposal of RAEE E M B QA
subsidiaries I 2= 36(c) - 4,635
Share of loss of associates oM ENRIEE 22 (325) (3,400)
Profit before tax B %t A it2 F1 81,993 106,154
Income tax expense FriS ®iF = 13 (45,862) (46,252)
Profit for the year FERNiEF 14 36,131 59,902
Attributable to: LT ALREMGRELS :
Owners of the Company PAYNESIR X ES RN 33,998 59,243
Non-controlling interests FE 1% IR = 2,133 659
36,131 59,902
HK Cents HK Cents
B JE
Earnings per share SEEF 18
Basic K 3.80 6.63
Diluted #E 3.80 6.55
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GERBERAMEZERER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ - L —+F+-_A=+—HILtFE
2017 2016
—E—tF —ZE—RHEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F T FAEIT
Profit for the year ERiEF 36,131 59,902
Other comprehensive income: Hithzmiss:
Items that will not be reclassified BT EEH D EE Bz
to profit or loss: ZIHA :
Surplus on revaluation of leasehold land fﬁ ErHEBEEER2BH 15,017 45,146
Income tax on items that will not be EENMOEEER
reclassified to profit or loss ZIE B 2SR (1,576) (8,184)
13,441 36,962
Items that may be reclassified to AE D EEEm s HE -

profit or loss:

Exchange differences on translating foreign & 8N ¥ E £

operations ZIEHEF 48,061 (62,402)
Share of translation reserve of associates  # 9 Bt & N 7] [E X & (16) -
Exchange differences reclassified ENOEEERCRIE

to profit or loss on deemed disposal HEBINETS 2 [

of foreign operations EH - (37)
Exchange differences reclassified to profit = %ﬁ SEEBHZZEED

or loss on disposal of a foreign operation & /EINEK ZE X Z5 6,118 —

54,163 (62,439)

Other comprehensive income for the FhkBEEbEZERE

year, net of tax 67,604 (25,477)
Total comprehensive income FhEzEkEEE
for the year 103,735 34,425
Attributable to: MTALTREE#EE:
Owners of the Company AAREZFAA 97,081 34,248
Non-controlling interests FEVE IR HE 2 6,654 177
103,735 34,425
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

mE BRI R

At 31 December 2017 W =T —tF+=-A=+—H

2017 2016
—ET—tHF —E—RF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
ks FETT FET
Non-current assets ERENEE
Property, plant and equipment M MR RRE 19 770,592 834,389
Club membership gMgE 21 718 718
Investments in associates REtERE Z2I_E 22 1,336 1,678
Available-for-sale financial assets AR EemERE 23 - —
Deposits paid for acquisition of TENEEYE #ER
property, plant and equipment REBEzEE 10,569 6,635
Deferred tax assets BRI IEE &= 31 310 373
783,525 843,793
Current assets RENEE
Inventories FE 24 252,406 196,162
Trade receivables 2 5 EWHIE 25 415,392 457,414
Prepayments, deposits and other TENHIE e REAM
receivables FE W FR A 69,545 66,069
Due from associates JE W Bt & N B RUIB 22 - 2,346
Current tax assets BUERRI 1B & &= - 2,391
Restricted bank balances BIRHIETER 26 3,234 1,564
Bank and cash balances RIT NI Hk 26 243,994 296,008
984,571 1,021,954
Current liabilities RENEE
Trade payables g 5 EMRIE 27 367,394 313,088
Deposits received Bz e 12,615 41,519
Other payables and accruals H e T3R8 &
EETE A 27 83,069 87,364
Due to associates FE {7 Bt &2 R B BB 22 617 636
Due to a related company JE S BE B A R FR0E 28 4,465 2,020
Bank borrowings RITE N 29 326,611 458,708
Current tax liabilities BV EAR 18 B & 31,253 27,537
826,024 930,872
Net current assets RBEEEE 158,547 91,082
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)
GEMBERRRE)

At 31 December 2017 A= —tF+=-HA=+—8

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RHEF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
N3 F T FAEIT
Total assets less current liabilities ZEEZAEBRE A& 942,072 934,875
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Bank borrowings RITE R 29 41,667 107,244
Deferred tax liabilities BRI IE B & 31 33,762 56,124
75,429 163,368
NET ASSETS BEFE 866,643 771,507
Capital and reserves BEXRGHE
Share capital [N 32 89,376 89,376
Reserves 1 34 761,946 673,803
Equity attributable to owners EATIEEZFEAN
of the Company FE {1 28 851,322 763,179
Non-controlling interests FEERR LS 15,321 8,328
TOTAL EQUITY BB 866,643 771,507
Approved by the Board of Directors on 26 March 2018 LEEFERN - \F=ZA=Z+BHE I
and are signed on its behalf by: HUTEERERESE
Lee Yuen Fat Wong Cheong Yiu
FEE =B
Director Director
EZE EZE
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GERZRDXR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #iZ T —tF+-_A=+—HILFE

_

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

At 1 January 2016 RZ%-~E-f-B 89,376 204,650 276,256 2,116 (9931) 14,461 3 7728 144,244 728,931 2,569 731,500
Total comprehensive income M2 AUELE

for the year - - 59243 - - (61957) - - 36,962 34248 177 34425
Fifect of deemed disposal of ~ BfEHEHBRT 2

subsidaies ye - - (6659) 6,585 - - o - - - 2.350) 2.350)
Adusiment of non-controling ~ KEHERATEZR(A

interest arsing from the BB

issue of shares of a EkakER

subsidiary for the seftlement El

of contingent consideration - - - - - - - - - - 5,966 5,966
Trensfer fo staiutory resene BB ZEERE - - (17429) - - - - 17429 - - - -
Captal contrbution from REFRREGZER

non-controling interests BA - - - - - - - - - - 197 197
Changes in equity for the year ~ EREZZE - - 35,55 6,566 - (61,957) ] 17429 3,962 34,048 5759 40007

At 31 December 016end ~ R=F-AE+ZA

1 January 2017

Total comprehensive income £ AUELE

for the year

Reclassfication of resene upon R EMBATEHR

disposal of a subsidiary
2016 final dividend paid

Ra
Captal contrbuton from REFRRER ER
non-controling interests BA

wHZF-RERE

=t-BR=%
—t£-A-8

R

Changes in equity for the year ~ EREZ2E

At 31 December 2017 Rz

LA

=t-8
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ T —+F+_A=+—HILFE

2017 2016
—ET—tHF —E—RF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
ks FET FET
NET CASH GENERATED FROM HEXBMRAS
OPERATING ACTIVITIES B 36(a) 24,282 82,990
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING HBEFHZHERKE
ACTIVITIES
Decrease in pledged bank deposits B BIRITF ZOR D = 194
Settlement of cash component of EREIARBZER
contingent consideration 715 - (1,200)
Disposal of a subsidiary & B A A 36(b) 219,814 —
Deemed disposal of subsidiaries BAEREMH B A A 36(c) - (1,630)
Deposit received for the disposal of a T UWHEWE AT 2
subsidiary Hika 39(d) = 40,000
Interest received 2 A B 354 868
Proceeds from disposals of property, HE¥E  HERKRE
plant and equipment 494 255
Purchase of property, plant and EEME KBENELE
equipment (60,020) (33,461)
Repayment to a former subsidiary for EEAIHE QA AEE
purchase of property, plant and Yz e R EE
equipment other than land and (T R E YR HN)
buildings (22,810) —
Increase in amount due to JE 1<) B B 1 &) FRIE 18 0
a related company 2,042 —
Deposit paid for the acquisition of BRI MR R RE
property, plant and equipment 28 & (10,245) (2,641)
Net cash generated from investing RZEEFHHEZERSL
activities FEH 129,629 2,385
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING RIEFHZRLKEE
ACTIVITIES
Dividend paid B E (8,938) —
Capital contribution from REFEERER 2EXR
non-controlling interest ‘A 339 1,971
Net short term bank loans (repaid)/ (1B®) /Fi R T
raised BERERE (184,221) 73,741
Advance to associates B RNEIE-E S § | (530) (1,788)
Repayment of long term bank loans & RHERTE X (150,190) (123,714)
Long term bank loans raised g REEITE R 134,603 13,369
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

GeEHTRER(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #iZ — T —+F T+ A =+—HILFE

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—REF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
k3 F T FEIT
Net cash used in financing RIEEEREZIRE
activities B (208,937) (36,421)
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN HeERZERRLIER
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (D) HEmigia (55,026) 48,954
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS W®R—A—HMRER
AT 1 JANUARY ZHHALIEH 296,008 263,130
Effect of foreign exchange rate EXREeg e
changes 3,012 (16,076)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS W®+—-—A=+—8#®
AT 31 DECEMBER He2RZERBEEIEH 243,994 296,008
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH H&R&ERRLIER
EQUIVALENTS ki
Bank and cash balances RITRB e &8 26 243,994 296,008
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands. The address of its registered office is Clifton
House, 75 Fort Street, P.O. Box 1350 GT, George
Town, Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands. The address
of its principal place of business is Room A, 29/F.,
Tower B, Billion Centre, 1 Wang Kwong Road,
Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The
Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out
in note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, as
at 31 December 2017, Precisefull Limited, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
(“BVI"), is the ultimate parent and Mr. LEE Yuen Fat
(“Mr. Lee”) is the ultimate controlling party of the
Company.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”). HKFRSs comprise
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRS”); Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKAS”); and Interpretations. These consolidated
financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”) and with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622). Significant accounting policies adopted by the
Group are disclosed below.

GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ T —+F+_A=+—HILFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B R R MY R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #iZ — T —+F T+ A =+—HILFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the
Group. Note 3 provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that
they are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these

consolidated financial statements.

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

(a) Application of new and revised
HKFRSs

The HKICPA has issued a number of new and
revised HKFRSs that are first effective for
annual periods beginning on or after
January 2017. Of these, the following new or
revised HKFRSs are relevant to the Group:

Amendments to HKAS 7 Statement of Cash

Flows: Disclosure Initiative

The amendments require entities to provide
disclosure of changes in their liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both
changes arising from cash flows and non-cash
changes (such as foreign exchange gains or
losses). The Group has provided this

information in note 36(e).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective

The Group has not early applied new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective for the financial year
beginning 1 January 2017. These new and
revised HKFRSs include the following which
may be relevant to the Group.

Effective for
accounting
periods beginning
on or after

HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments

1 January 2018

HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with
Customers

1 January 2018

HKFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019

The Group is in the process of making an
assessment of what the impact of these
amendments and new standards is expected
to be in the period of initial application. So far
the Group has identified some aspects of the
new standards which may have a impact on
the consolidated financial statements. Further
details of the expected impacts are discussed
below. While the assessment has been
substantially completed for HKFRS 9 and
HKFRS 15, the actual impacts upon the initial
adoption of the standards may differ as the
assessment completed to date is based on the
information currently available to the Group,
and further impacts may be identified before
the standards are initially applied in the
Group’s interim financial report for the six
months ended 30 June 2018. The Group may
also change its accounting policy elections,
including the transition options, until the
standards are initially applied in that interim
financial report.

Se BRI E(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ T —+F+_A=+—HILFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ma B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #iZ — T —+F T+ A =+—HILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 will replace HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.
HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for
classification and measurement of financial
assets, new rules for hedge accounting and a
new impairment model for financial assets.

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018 on a
retrospective basis. The Group plans to adopt
the new standard on the required effective
date and will not restate comparative
information.

Based on an analysis of the Group’s financial
assets and financial liabilities as at 31
December 2017 on the basis of the facts and
circumstances that exist at that date, the
directors of the Company have assessed the
impact of HKFRS 9 to the Group’s
consolidated financial statements as follows:

(i) Classification and measurement
The Group expects to irrevocably
designate those unlisted equity securities
currently classified as available-for-sale as
at fair value through other comprehensive
income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but

not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

(Continued)

(i) Classification and measurement
(Continued)
Fair value gains and losses on these
instruments will no longer be recycled to
profit or loss on disposal. Impairment
losses on equity securities will no longer
be recognised in profit or loss but rather
in other comprehensive income. In
addition, the Group currently measures
certain unlisted equity securities at cost
less impairment. Under HKFRS 9 these
instruments will be measured at fair
value. The Group expected that such
change will not have significant impact to
the consolidated financial statements
since the available-for sale investment
has been fully impaired due to the fact
that the investee has already ceased
business.

(ii) Impairment

HKFRS 9 requires the Group to
recognise and measure either a
12-month expected credit loss or lifetime
expected credit loss, depending on the
asset and the facts and circumstances.
The Group expects to apply the
simplified approach and record lifetime
expected credit losses on all trade and
other receivables. The lifetime expected
credit losses is estimated based on the
historical default rate and forward-
looking estimates. According to a
preliminary assessment, the impact of the
adoption of HKFRS 9 to the consolidated
financial statements is immaterial.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ma B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #iZ — T —+F T+ A =+—HILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive
framework for recognising revenue from
contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will
replace the existing revenue standards, HKAS
18, Revenue, which covers revenue arising
from sale of goods and rendering of services,
and HKAS 11, Construction contracts, which
specifies the accounting for revenue from
construction contracts.

HKFRS 15 is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The
standard permits either a full retrospective or a
modified retrospective approach for the
adoption. The Group intends to adopt the
standard using the modified retrospective
approach which means that the cumulative
impact of the adoption will be recognised in
retained earnings as of 1 January 2018 and
that comparatives will not be restated.

Based on the assessment completed to date,
the Group has identified the following areas
which are expected to be affected:

(i) Timing of revenue recognition
Currently, revenue from the sale of
manufactured goods is generally
recognised when the risks and rewards
of ownership have passed to the
customers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but

not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with

Customers (Continued)

(i) Timing of revenue recognition
(Continued)
Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised
when the customer obtains control of the
promised good or service in the
contract. HKFRS 15 identifies three
situations in which control of the
promised good or service is regarded as
being transferred over time:

(@) When the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the entity’s
performance, as the entity
performs;

(b)  When the entity’s performance
creates or enhances an asset (for
example work in progress) that the
customer controls as the asset is
created or enhanced; and

() When the entity’s performance
does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the entity and the
entity has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed
to date.

If the contract terms and the entity’s
activities do not fall into any of these
three situations, then under HKFRS 15
the entity recognises revenue for the sale
of that good or service at a single point
in time, being when control has passed.
Transfer of risks and rewards of
ownership is only one of the indicators
that will be considered in determining
when the transfer of control occurs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B R R MY R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #iZ — T —+F T+ A =+—HILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but

not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with

Customers (Continued)

(i) Timing of revenue recognition
(Continued)
For contracts with customers in which
the sale of manufactured goods is
generally expected to be the only
performance obligation, adoption of
HKFRS 15 is not expected to have any
impact on the Group’s revenue or profit
or loss. The Group expects the revenue
recognition to occur at a point in time
when control of the asset is transferred
to the customer, generally on delivery of
the goods.

(i) Warranty obligations

The Group generally provides for
warranties for repairs to any defective
products and does not provide extended
warranties in its contracts with
customers. As such, most existing
warranties will be assurance-type
warranties under HKFRS 15, which will
continue to be accounted for under
HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets,
consistent with its current practice.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases and
related interpretations. The new standard
introduces a single accounting model for
lessees. For lessees the distinction between
operating and finance leases is removed and
lessees will recognise right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities for all leases (with optional
exemptions for short-term leases and leases of
low value assets). HKFRS 16 carries forward
the accounting requirements for lessors in
HKAS 17 substantially unchanged. Lessors will
therefore continue to classify leases as
operating or financing leases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

HKFRS 16 is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2019. The
Group intends to apply the simplified transition
approach and will not restate comparative
amounts for the year prior to first adoption.

Based on a preliminary assessment, the
standard will affect primarily the accounting for
the Group’s operating leases. The Group’s
leases of office premises, factories, warehouses,
staff quarters and office equipment are
currently classified as operating leases and the
lease payments (net of any incentives received
from the lessor) are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Under HKFRS 16 the Group may need to
recognise and measure a liability at the
present value of the future minimum lease
payments and recognise a corresponding
right-of-use asset for these leases. The
interest expense on the lease liability and
depreciation on the right-of-use asset will be
recognised in profit or loss. The Group’s
assets and liabilities will increase and the
timing of expense recognition will also be
impacted as a result.

As disclosed in note 37, the Group’s future
minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases for its office
premises, factories, warehouses, staff quarters and
office equipment amounted to HK$16,728,000
as at 31 December 2017. These leases are
expected to be recognised as lease liabilities,
with corresponding right-of-use assets, once
HKFRS 16 is adopted. The amounts will be
adjusted for the effects of discounting and the
transition reliefs available to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #iZ — T —+F T+ A =+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention,
unless mentioned otherwise in the accounting
policies below (e.g. leasehold land that are
measured at fair value).

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in note 5.

The significant accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below.

(a) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries made up to 31 December.
Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group
has control. The Group controls an entity
when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. The Group has
power over an entity when the Group has
existing rights that give it the current ability to
direct the relevant activities, i.e. activities that
significantly affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers
its potential voting rights as well as potential
voting rights held by other parties. A potential
voting right is considered only if the holder
has the practical ability to exercise that right.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

Consolidation (Continued)

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They
are de-consolidated from the date the control
ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a
subsidiary that results in a loss of control
represents the difference between (i) the fair
value of the consideration of the sale plus the
fair value of any investment retained in that
subsidiary and (i) the Company’s share of the
net assets of that subsidiary plus any
remaining goodwill and any accumulated
foreign currency translation reserve relating to
that subsidiary.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised
profits are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in
subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly,
to the Company. Non-controlling interests are
presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position and consolidated statement of
changes in equity within equity. Non-controlling
interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of
profit or loss and total comprehensive income
for the year between the non-controlling
shareholders and owners of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ma B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 H ZE =%

4.

—tF+ZA=t+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling shareholders even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest
in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of
control are accounted for as equity transactions
(i.e. transactions with owners in their capacity
as owners). The carrying amounts of the
controlling and non-controlling interests are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted and the fair
value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to
the owners of the Company.

In the Company’s statement of financial
position, investments in subsidiaries are stated
at cost less impairment losses, unless the
investment is classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified
as held for sale).

Business combination and goodwill
The acquisition method is used to account for
the acquisition of a subsidiary in a business
combination. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at the
acquisition-date fair value of the assets given,
equity instruments issued, liabilities incurred
and any contingent consideration. Acquisition-
related costs are recognised as expenses in
the periods in which the costs are incurred
and the services are received. Identifiable
assets and liabilities of the subsidiary in the
acquisition are measured at their acquisition-
date fair values.

112 Ka Shui International Holdings Limited = B ZRER AT

4.

(a)

(b)

TESFBERGE)

ZE&RAE (&)
WEAﬁﬁ#T%%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%
g BahEM2E NS vl
FBNAR T%EA&%?&&%

ZANYN BEEK AT E M
EQTZWE%V*“ it A
%ﬂw%ﬁA%‘ﬁ%ﬁAﬁﬂ
RG) EEREGE RIFERER
%Eﬁaﬂﬁ% VA 2 B EL 74 B BB
REl 2R E S - SRR
ZHABEHADNHDKRREZLR
FEMERZEMERERRNED
MR WHARBEAE ADI -

RARAZHBERRRA - R B
D)2 AE T AN A0 R R (B JES 18 B
BN RIEZREWDBRFF
HEGBRERIBEARIEHEZ
HEAR) -

EEHREE

REBA G P RBHE QR TTRK
BetiRE REBEHTER
ZREBRXSGBEMXNEE %
TERATE MELASAEZEE
REARBZRFEFE - BUE
BRZRARELERARESRS
ZHBER /X - KRB E R
AZAB#NEERABRKEERR
ZRFHERE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b)

Business combination and goodwill
(Continued)

The excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred over the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets
and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. Any
excess of the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
over the sum of the consideration transferred
is recognised in consolidated profit or loss as
a gain on bargain purchase which is attributed
to the Group.

In a business combination achieved in stages,
the previously held equity interest in the
subsidiary is remeasured at its acquisition-date
fair value and the resulting gain or loss is
recognised in consolidated profit or loss. The
fair value is added to the sum of the
consideration transferred in a business
combination to calculate the goodwill.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary
are initially measured at the non-controlling
shareholders’ proportionate share of the net
fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets
and liabilities at the acquisition date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ma B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 H ZE =%

4.

—tF+ZA=t+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

Business combination and goodwill
(Continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured
at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination is
allocated to each of the cash-generating units
(“*CGUs”) or groups of CGUs that is expected
to benefit from the synergies of the
combination. Each unit or group of units to
which the goodwill is allocated represents the
lowest level within the Group at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes. Goodwill impairment reviews are
undertaken annually or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate a
potential impairment. The carrying value of the
CGU containing the goodwill is compared to
its recoverable amount, which is the higher of
value in use and the fair value less costs of
disposal. Any impairment is recognised
immediately as an expense and is not
subsequently reversed.

Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group
has significant influence. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of an entity but is
not control or joint control over those policies.
The existence and effect of potential voting
rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible, including potential voting rights
held by other entities, are considered when
assessing whether the Group has significant
influence. In assessing whether a potential
voting right contributes to significant influence,
the holder’s intention and financial ability to
exercise or convert that right is not considered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)

Associates (Continued)

Investment in an associate is accounted for in
the consolidated financial statements by the
equity method and is initially recognised at
cost. ldentifiable assets and liabilities of the
associate in an acquisition are measured at
their fair values at the acquisition date. The
excess of the cost of the investment over the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the
associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities is
recorded as goodwill. The goodwill is included
in the carrying amount of the investment and
is tested for impairment together with the
investment at the end of each reporting period
when there is objective evidence that the
investment is impaired. Any excess of the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost
of acquisition is recognised in consolidated
profit or loss.

The Group’s share of an associate’s post-
acquisition profits or losses and other
comprehensive income is recognised in
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income. When the
Group’s share of losses in an associate equals
or exceeds its interest in the associate (which
includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the associate), the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate. If the associate
subsequently reports profits, the Group
resumes recognising its share of those profits
only after its share of the profits equals the
share of losses not recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ma B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #iZ — T —+F T+ A =+—HILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

Associates (Continued)

The gain or loss on the disposal of an
associate that results in a loss of significant
influence represents the difference between (i)
the fair value of the consideration of the sale
plus the fair value of any investment retained
in that associate and (i) the Group’s entire
carrying amount of that associate (including
goodwill) and any related accumulated foreign
currency translation reserve. If an investment
in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture, the Group continues to apply the
equity method and does not remeasure the
retained interest.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the
Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interests in the
associates. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of associates
have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

Foreign currency translation

(i) Functional and presentation currency
[tems included in the financial
statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$”), which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Se BRI E(R)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

Foreign currency translation

(Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Transactions and balances in each
entity’s financial statements
Transactions in foreign currencies are
translated into the functional currency on
initial recognition using the exchange rates
prevailing on the transaction dates. Monetary
assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are
translated at the exchange rates at the end
of each reporting period. Gains and losses
resulting from this translation policy are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured
at fair value in foreign currencies are
translated using the exchange rates at
the dates when the fair values are
determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary
item is recognised in other comprehensive
income, any exchange component of that gain
or loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income. When a gain or loss on a non-
monetary item is recognised in profit or
loss, any exchange component of that
gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss.

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all
the Group entities that have a functional
currency different from the Company’s
presentation currency are translated into
the Company’s presentation currency as
follows:

— Assets and liabilities for each
statement of financial position
presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ma B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #iZ — T —+F T+ A =+—HILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

Foreign currency translation
(Continued)

(iii)

Translation on consolidation

(Continued)

— Income and expenses are
translated at average exchange
rates for the period (unless this
average rate is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are
translated at the exchange rates on
the transaction dates); and

— All resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the foreign
currency translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences
arising from the translation of monetary
items that form part of the net investment
in foreign entities are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated
in the foreign currency translation reserve.
When a foreign operation is sold, such
exchange differences are reclassified to
consolidated profit or loss as part of the
gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments
arising on the acquisition of a foreign
entity are treated as assets and liabilities
of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment, other than
leasehold land (classified as finance leases),
held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services, or for administrative
purposes (other than properties under
construction as described below), are stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost, less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance are recognised in
profit or loss during the period in which they
are incurred.

Leasehold land held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes, are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at
their revalued amounts, being the fair value at
the date of revaluation, less any subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses. Revaluations
are performed with sufficient regularity such
that the carrying amounts do not differ
materially from those that would be
determined using fair values at the end of
each reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ma B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 H ZE =%

4.

—tF+ZA=t+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

Any revaluation increase arising on the
revaluation of such land is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in
land revaluation reserve, except to the extent
that it reverses a revaluation decrease for the
same asset previously recognised in profit or
loss, in which case the increase is credited to
profit or loss to the extent of the decrease
previously expensed. A decrease in the
carrying amount arising on the revaluation of
such land is recognised in profit or loss to the
extent that it exceeds the balance, if any, held
in the land revaluation reserve relating to a
previous revaluation of that asset.

Depreciation of revalued land is recognised in
profit or loss. On the subsequent sale or
retirement of a revalued land, the attributable
revaluation surplus remaining in the land
revaluation reserve is transferred directly to
retained earnings.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
is calculated at rates sufficient to write off their
cost or revalued amounts less their residual
values over the estimated useful lives on a
straight-line basis. The principal useful lives are
as follows:
Buildings 5 to 20 years or over the
unexpired term of lease
over the unexpired term of
lease

Leasehold land

Leasehold over the shorter of 3 years

improvements and the unexpired term of
the lease

Plant and machinery 5 to 10 years

Computer equipment 3 to 5 years

Furniture, fixtures and 3 to 5 years
office equipment

Motor vehicles 3 to 5 years
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e)

(f)

(9)

Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

The residual values, useful lives and
depreciation method are reviewed and
adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

Construction in progress represents buildings
under construction and plant and equipment
pending installation, and is stated at cost less
impairment losses. Depreciation begins when
the relevant assets are available for use.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of
the relevant asset, and is recognised in profit
or loss.

Leases

The Group as lessee

(i) Operating leases
Leases that do not substantially transfer
to the Group all the risks and rewards of
ownership of assets are accounted for as
operating leases. Lease payments (net of
any incentives received from the lessor)
are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessor

(i) Operating leases
Leases that do not substantially transfer
to the lessees all the risks and rewards
of ownership of assets are accounted for
as operating leases. Rental income from
operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease.

Research and development
expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is
recognised as an expense in the period in
which it is incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ma B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 H ZE =%

—tF+ZA=t+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)

(i)

)

Club membership

Club membership with indefinite useful life is
stated at cost less any impairment losses.
Impairment is reviewed annually or when there
is any indication that the club membership has
suffered an impairment loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using
the weighted average basis. The cost of
finished goods and work in progress
comprises raw materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of all production
overhead expenditure, and where appropriate,
subcontracting charges. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary
to make the sale.

Recognition and derecognition of
financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position when the Group becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the
contractual rights to receive cash flows from
the assets expire; the Group transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets; or the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the assets but
has not retained control on the assets. On
derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration
received and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised in other comprehensive
income is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

)

(k)

Recognition and derecognition of
financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires. The
difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid is recognised in profit or
loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis where the purchase or
sale of an financial asset is under a contract
whose terms require delivery of the financial
assets within the timeframe established by the
market concerned, and are initially measured at
fair value, plus directly attributable transaction
costs except in the case of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss.

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: loans and receivables and
available-for-sale. The classification depends
on the purpose for which the financial assets
were acquired. Management determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition.

(i) Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an
active market. These assets are carried
at amortised cost using the effective
interest method (except for short-term
receivables where interest is immaterial)
minus any reduction for impairment or
uncollectibility. Typically trade and other
receivables, bank balances and cash are
classified in this category.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B R R MY R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #iZ T —tF+-_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k) Financial assets (Continued)

(i) Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are
non-derivative financial assets that are
not classified as loans and receivables or
financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss. Available-for-sale financial
assets are subsequently measured at fair
value. Gains or losses arising from changes
in fair value of these investments are
recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the investment
revaluation reserve, until the investments
are disposed of or there is objective
evidence that the investments are
impaired, at which time the cumulative
gains or losses previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified
from equity to profit or loss. Interest
calculated using the effective interest
method and dividends on available-for-
sale equity investments are recognised in
profit or loss.

Investments in equity instruments that do
not have a quoted market price in an
active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured and
derivatives that are linked to and must
be settled by delivery of such unquoted
equity instruments, are measured at cost
less impairment losses.

() Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from
customers for merchandise sold or services
performed in the ordinary course of business.
If collection of trade and other receivables is
expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they
are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

(m)

(n)

Trade and other receivables
(Continued)

Trade and other receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less allowance for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents represent
cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits
with banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term highly liquid investments which are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and subject to an insignificant risk of change
in value. Bank overdrafts which are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management are also included
as a component of cash and cash equivalents.

Financial liabilities and equity
instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are
classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument under HKFRSs. An equity
instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group
after deducting all of its liabilities. The
accounting policies adopted for specific
financial liabilities and equity instruments are
set out below.

(i) Borrowings
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value, net of transaction costs incurred,
and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Se BRI E(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ T —+F+_A=+—HILFE

TESFBERGE)

()

(m)

(n)

FE Wt Bl 0 e 3L it FE W SR I (48)

J& AR 3 B B At FE MR IR ) iR
FEER HRABERN R ERHE
BB G R ERETE -

BERREFED

PRRERERMS RERBAEF
EWREBRTATFERS FRRR
1T RE M I 75 B 8 B3 17 5UA K
RS ACMBEER S B A
XEEEPEARTIANESRSER
BRE - BRERKEEIBAAE
EReEETZMOMNRITE
AARBRELRBASEEBY & -

EMERERKRFIR

ERMABEMBRATANREMEL
MANTHEEERREE BV R
SEASEREBBEREATANE
BEMABR - BMATAREANAE
EEMGEMARBERNEETT
FerES W EREQ REESH
BEMEATAMRMNN S EEK
BT

i) fE&
EENFRAFENGRMEL
MR ZRAMER - LRAIAE
BRA ORI AEE -

Annual Report 2017 ZZ— t & F iR

125



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ma B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ =T —tF+-_A=+—HILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)

Financial liabilities and equity
instruments (Continued)

U]

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Borrowings (Continued)

Borrowings are classified as current
liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after
the reporting period.

Financial guarantee contract
liabilities

Financial guarantee contract liabilities are
measured initially at their fair value and
are subsequently measured at the higher
of:

— the amount of the obligations
under the contracts, as determined
in accordance with HKAS 37
“Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets”; and

—  the amount initially recognised less
cumulative amortisation recognised
in profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the terms of the
guarantee contracts.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised
initially at their fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method unless the effect
of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(o)

(p)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and is
recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably.

Revenue from the sales of manufactured
goods and trading of raw materials is
recognised on the transfer of significant risks
and rewards of ownership, which generally
coincides with the time when the goods are
delivered and the title has passed to the
customers.

Interest income is recognised on a time-
proportion basis using the effective interest
method.

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

Employee benefits

(i) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave
and long service leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service
leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the
reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until
the time of leave.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ma B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE =%

4.

—tF+ZA=t+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(p)

(a)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii) Pension obligations
The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by
the Group and employees are calculated
as a percentage of employees’ basic
salaries. The retirement benefit scheme
cost charged to profit or loss represents
contributions payable by the Group to
the funds.

(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at
the earlier of the dates when the Group
can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits, and when the Group
recognises restructuring costs and
involves the payment of termination
benefits.

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based
payments to certain employees. Equity-settled
share-based payments are measured at the
fair value (excluding the effect of non-market
based vesting conditions) of the equity
instruments at the date of grant. The fair value
determined at the grant date of the equity-
settled share-based payments is expensed on
a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
based on the Group’s estimate of shares that
will eventually vest and adjusted for the effect
of non-market based vesting conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(r)

(s)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets,
until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed
generally and used for the purpose of
obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is
determined by applying a capitalisation rate to
the expenditures on that asset. The
capitalisation rate is the weighted average of
the borrowing costs applicable to the
borrowings of the Group that are outstanding
during the period, other than borrowings made
specifically for the purpose of obtaining a
qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there
is reasonable assurance that the Group will
comply with the conditions attaching to it and
that the grant will be received.

Government grants relating to income are
deferred and recognised in profit or loss over
the period to match them with the costs they
are intended to compensate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ma B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 H ZE =%

—tF+ZA=t+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s)

(t)

Government grants (Continued)
Government grants that become receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already
incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with
no future related costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they become
receivable.

Taxation
Income tax represents the sum of the current
tax and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
profit recognised in profit or loss because of
items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences and
deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses or
unused tax credits can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or
from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(t)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
taxable temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries and associates,
except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period when the
liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except when it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the deferred
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and
liabilities reflects the tax consequences that
would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting
period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the
Group intends to settle its current tax assets
and liabilities on a net basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ma B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 H ZE =%

4.

—tF+ZA=t+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u)

Impairment of non-financial assets
The carrying amounts of non-financial assets
are reviewed at each reporting date for
indications of impairment and where an asset
is impaired, it is written down as an expense
through the consolidated statement of profit or
loss to its estimated recoverable amount
unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
decrease. The recoverable amount is
determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets
or groups of assets. If this is the case,
recoverable amount is determined for the CGU
to which the asset belongs. Recoverable
amount is the higher of value in use and the
fair value less costs of disposal of the
individual asset or the CGU.

Value in use is the present value of the
estimated future cash flows of the asset/CGU.
Present values are computed using pre-tax
discount rates that reflect the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset/
CGU whose impairment is being measured.

Impairment losses for CGUs are allocated first
against the goodwill of the unit and then pro
rata amongst the other assets of the CGU.
Subsequent increases in the recoverable
amount caused by changes in estimates are
credited to profit or loss to the extent that
they reverse the impairment unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount,
in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is treated as a revaluation increase.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v)

Impairment of financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
assesses whether its financial assets (other
than those at fair value through profit or loss)
are impaired, based on objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition, the
estimated future cash flows of the (group of)
financial asset(s) have been affected.

In addition, for trade receivables that are assessed
not to be impaired individually, the Group assesses
them collectively for impairment, based on the
Group’s past experience of collecting payments,
an increase in the delayed payments in the
portfolio, observable changes in economic
conditions that correlate with default on
receivables, etc.

Only for trade receivables, the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited
against the allowance account. Changes in the
carrying amount of the allowance account are
recognised in profit or loss.

For all other financial assets, the carrying
amount is directly reduced by the impairment
loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised
cost, if the amount of the impairment loss
decreases in a subsequent period and the
decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed (either directly or
by adjusting the allowance account for trade
receivables) through profit or loss. However,
the reversal must not result in a carrying
amount that exceeds what the amortised cost
of the financial asset would have been had the
impairment not been recognised at the date
the impairment is reversed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B R R MY R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #iZ — T —+F T+ A =+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(w) Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised for liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group
has a present legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated
at the present value of the expenditures expected
to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow is remote.
Possible obligations, whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow is remote.

(x) Events after the reporting period
Events after the reporting period that provide
additional information about the Group’s
position at the end of the reporting period are
adjusting events and are reflected in the
consolidated financial statements. Events after
the reporting period that are not adjusting
events are disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements when
material.

5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY

The key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
end of the reporting period, that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year, are discussed below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Allowance for inventories

The directors identify obsolete and slow-
moving inventory items that are no longer
probable for use in production or to be sold
out at the end of each reporting period. The
directors estimate the net realisable value for
such inventories based primarily on the latest
selling prices and costs of completion and
selling expenses estimated at current
operation conditions. The directors carry out
an inventory review on a product-by-product
basis at the end of each reporting period and
makes allowance for obsolete items.

Where the actual outcome in future is different
from the original estimate, such difference will
impact the carrying value of inventories and
allowance charge/write-back in the period in
which such estimates have been changed.

The allowance on inventories as at 31 December
2017 was approximately HK$18,564,000 (2016:
HK$22,774,000).

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

The Group determines the estimated useful
lives, residual values and related depreciation
charges for the Group’s property, plant and
equipment. These estimates are based on the
historical experience of the actual useful lives
and residual values of property, plant and
equipment of similar nature and functions. The
Group will revise the depreciation charge
where useful lives and residual values are
different to those previously estimated, or it will
write-off or write-down technically obsolete or
non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned.

The carrying amount of property, plant
and equipment as at 31 December 2017
was approximately HK$770,592,000 (2016:
HK$834,389,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ma B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #iZ — T —+F T+ A =+—HILFE

5.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Impairment loss for bad and doubtful
debts

The Group makes impairment loss for bad and
doubtful debts based on assessments of the
recoverability of the trade and other receivables,
including the current creditworthiness and the
past collection history of each debtor. Impairments
arise where events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the balances may not be collectible.
The identification of bad and doubtful debts, in
particular of a loss event, requires the use of
judgement and estimates. Where the actual
result is different from the original estimate,
such difference will impact the carrying value
of the trade and other receivables and
doubtful debt expenses in the year in which
such estimate has been changed.

The allowance on trade receivables as at 31
December 2017 were approximately HK$764,000
(2016: HKS$NIl). No allowance was made on
other receivables as at 31 December 2017
(2016: HKS$NIl).

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in
several jurisdictions. Significant estimates are
required in determining the provision for
income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which
such determination is made. During the year,
HK$45,862,000 (2016: HK$46,252,000) of
income tax was charged to profit or loss
based on the estimated profit from operations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Income taxes (Continued)

Recognition of deferred tax assets, which
principally relates to deductible temporary
differences and tax losses, depends on
whether it is probable that future taxable
profits or taxable temporary differences will be
available against which deferred tax assets
can be utilised. In cases where the actual
future taxable profits or taxable temporary
differences generated are less than expected,
a reversal of deferred tax assets may arise,
which will be recognised in profit or loss for
the period in which such a reversal takes
place. The directors considered that, based on
the profit forecast of the group companies
with tax losses, it is probable that the tax
losses can be utilised in the foreseeable
future. The profit forecast required the use of
judgement and estimates.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets
with respect to tax losses as at 31 December
2017 was approximately HK$1,109,000 (2016:
HK$1,032,000).

Fair value of leasehold land

The Group appointed an independent
professional valuer to assess the fair value of
the leasehold land. In determining the fair
value, the valuer has utilised a method of
valuation which involves certain estimates. The
directors have exercised their judgement and
are satisfied that the method of valuation is
reflective of the current market conditions.

The carrying amount of leasehold land as at
31 December 2017 was approximately
HK$202,030,000 (2016: HK$244,474,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B R R MY R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #iZ — T —+F T+ A =+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: foreign currency risk, credit risk,
liquidity risk and interest rate risk. The Group’s
overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance.

(@) Foreign currency risk

The Group has certain exposure to foreign
currency risk as most of its business
transactions, assets and liabilities are
principally denominated in HK$, United States
dollars (“USD”) and Renminbi (“RMB”). The
Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy in respect of other
foreign currency transactions, assets and
liabilities. The Group monitors its foreign
currency exposure closely and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

At 31 December 2017, if HK$ had weakened
0.5 per cent (2016: 0.5 per cent) against USD
with all other variables held constant,
consolidated profit after tax for the year would
have been approximately HK$1,521,000 (2016:
HK$1,350,000) higher, arising mainly as a
result of the foreign exchange gain on trade
receivables and bank balances denominated in
USD, but partly offset by the foreign exchange
loss on trade and other payables denominated
in USD (2016: foreign exchange gain on trade
receivables and bank balances denominated in
USD, but partly offset by the foreign exchange
loss on trade and other payables and bank
borrowings denominated in USD). If HK$ had
strengthened 0.5 per cent (2016: 0.5 per cent)
against USD with all other variables held
constant, consolidated profit after tax for the
year would have been approximately
HK$1,521,000 (2016: HK$1,350,000) lower,
arising mainly as a result of the foreign
exchange loss on trade receivables and bank
balances denominated in USD, but partly
offset by the foreign exchange gain on trade
and other payables denominated in USD
(2016: foreign exchange loss on trade
receivables and bank balances denominated in
USD, but partly offset by the foreign exchange
gain on trade and other payables and bank
borrowings denominated in USD).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(a)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2017, if HK$ had weakened
5 per cent (2016: 5 per cent) against RMB
with all other variables held constant,
consolidated profit after tax for the year would
have been approximately HK$4,220,000 (2016:
HK$1,027,000) lower, arising mainly as a result
of the foreign exchange loss on trade
receivables and bank balances denominated in
HK$ held by the subsidiaries operating in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), but
partly offset by the foreign exchange gain on
bank balances denominated in RMB held by
the Hong Kong subsidiaries (2016: foreign
exchange loss on trade receivables and bank
balances denominated in HK$ held by the
subsidiaries operating in the PRC, but partly
offset by the foreign exchange gain on other
receivables and bank balances denominated in
RMB held by the Hong Kong subsidiaries). If
HK$ had strengthened 5 per cent (2016: 5 per
cent) against RMB with all other variables held
constant, consolidated profit after tax for the
year would have been approximately
HK$4,220,000 (2016: HK$1,027,000) higher,
arising mainly as a result of the foreign
exchange gain on trade receivables and bank
balances denominated in HK$ held by the
subsidiaries operating in the PRC, but partly
offset by the foreign exchange loss on bank
balances denominated in RMB held by the
Hong Kong subsidiaries (2016: foreign
exchange gain on trade receivables and bank
balances denominated in HK$ held by the
subsidiaries operating in the PRC, but partly
offset by the foreign exchange loss on other
receivables and bank balances denominated in
RMB held by the Hong Kong subsidiaries).

A B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ T —+F+_A=+—HILFE

B B ()

(a)

o EE 2L P (48)
RZEBE—+tF+=-A=+—H
BILTRARERE%(ZF — X
F5%) MEMATEZEHERTT
B AFRNREELEE R ER D
#94,220,000% (= T — X F:
1,027,000 7L) - TEHMRKFEA
REMBE(HE])EEZHNERF
LAV T B 2 B W 3008 K 3R 17 45 84
EEIEBEBRS HBHTER
LREBEEZWNBRARUARE
STEZRITHABELE ZIINERZAT
W (ZE—RNF - R EE K
BRABINBTHEZE S EWFE
MERITH R EEINERIE - HE1H
VEWURBEBEEEZWNB AR
ARBFE 2 b B GRIE R IRTT
HEREA 7 IMNEUWZSFTIEE) o B
THAREFER(ZT—NF:
5%) MEMAEEHERSTE
Bl ABRB&ERAE T T 8N4
4,220,000 (= & — X F:
1,027,000/ 70) + T2 HRNFEE
BYWBARINELAEZESRE
U SR TE K SR 1T 45 B E A N IE W & P
BOMBOEERUNRNETBEEZ
MEARUARBIEZRITER
EEZHEBBREHE(ZZ—N
FRAPRHEECWBRARUET
AECBE SRR GBERIRITESRE
2 INEM G FT B R & B
LR EBEEZHBARNUARE
TEZHEMERGFBRIRITEGE
HZINE BB ATED ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B R R MY R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #iZ — T —+F T+ A =+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. HKEMRER(E)

(Continued)

(@) Foreign currency risk (Continued) (a)
At 31 December 2017, if RMB had weakened
5 per cent (2016: 5 per cent) against USD with
all other variables held constant, consolidated
profit after tax for the year would have been
approximately HK$515,000 (2016: HK$265,000)
lower, arising mainly as a result of the foreign
exchange loss on trade payables of the PRC
subsidiaries denominated in USD (2016:
foreign exchange loss on trade payables of the
PRC subsidiaries denominated in USD). If RMB
had strengthened 5 per cent (2016: 5 per
cent) against USD with all other variables held
constant, consolidated profit after tax for the
year would have been approximately
HK$515,000 (2016: HK$265,000) higher,
arising mainly as a result of the foreign
exchange gain on trade payables of the PRC
subsidiaries denominated in USD (2016:
foreign exchange gain on trade payables of the
PRC subsidiaries denominated in USD).

(b) Credit risk (b)
The percentage of trade receivables due from
the Group’s largest customer and due from
the Group’s five largest customers in
aggregate to the Group’s total trade
receivables are as follows:

Y EE LB (48)
RZE—+F+ZA=+—8 M
ARE IS ETEER(ZF — X
F:5%) MEMAEERERT
B AFARBRES RMER D
#9515,000% (= T — X F:
265,000 7C) TEHRRFHE
BB ARNETEZESE
NRBEEEINEBEMB(ZZ—R
FoRPEEEZHBRARUET
AECBEZEMNRBELEIINENE
FTE0 - W ARB R ETHES (=
T—NF  5%) MEMATAEEH
BRTE BIFABRKELSEE &
15 1 h0 49515,0008 L (= & — X
12650008 0) EFEHRRAF
HegBEsHBERAAINETHEZE
SFENFEBEEINENGHAB(ZZ
—RNFRAREEE KB AR
ENFEZEZREMNREELEIINE
W ZEFTER) °

S5 E
AEERATEPRAEBERLKREP
WEZEEFBEREEREEES
EUGRHEENB D LT

2017 2016
—¥—-tF —E—R
% %
=74 A 77t
Due from the Group’s largest JERAEEZERE P
customer FKIA 32 19
Due from the Group’s five largest W ALEB R AEF
customers I 64 67

The Group has policies in place to ensure that
sales are made to customers with an
appropriate credit history.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk (Continued)

The credit risk on restricted bank balance and
bank and cash balances is limited because the
counterparties are well-recognised banks in
Hong Kong and the PRC and licensed banks
in the United States of America (the “USA”).

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its
liquidity requirements, its compliance with
lending covenants and its relationship with its
bankers to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and readily realisable
marketable securities and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions
to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining
contractual maturities at the end of the reporting
period of the Group’s bank borrowings and
other financial liabilities, based on undiscounted
cash flows (including interest payments computed
using contractual rates or, if floating, based on
rates currently at the end of the reporting
period) and the earliest date the Group can be
required to pay.

Specifically, for bank loans which contain a
repayment on demand clause which can be
exercised at the bank’s sole discretion, the
analysis shows the cash outflow based on the
earliest period in which the entity can be
required to pay, that is if the lenders were to
invoke their unconditional rights to call the
loans with immediate effect. The maturity
analysis for other financial liabilities is prepared
based on the scheduled repayment dates.

Bt %5 B B B 22 (4

(b)

(c)

A B R Y ()
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R E B R R A R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ =T —tF+-_A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

6. MBREREREGE)

(c) RHELEME(EH)

Trade payables U b 89,059 278,335 - - - 367,394
Other payables and EEMRER

accruals EHER 3 68,119 - - - 68,122

Due to associates EABELANFE 617 - - - - 617

Due to a related company fE BB 1A A 508 4,465 - - _ _ 4,465

Bank borrowings FITER 189,575 141,616 27,634 15,191 - 374,016

283,719 488,070 27,634 15,191 = 814,614

2016
—E-5F
Maturity Analysis — Undiscounted cash outflows
HABAN - RFARR LR

More than 1 More than 2 Total

Within -~ year but less  years but less More than  undiscounted

On demand 1year  than 2 years  than 5 years 5years  cash outflows

—FhE MEN £ ANERE

BEX —FR  EBIRBE  BIRLE AENE iohaf k-

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

AT AT AT AT AT AT

Trade payables ECLLES: 98,795 214,293 - - - 313,088
Other payables and EtENTER

acoruals EHER 3 79,576 - - - 79579

Due to associates EMBENEE 636 - - - - 636

Due 10 a related company JEff BB A A1 508 2,020 - - - - 2,020

Bank borrowings RITER 380,680 83,747 58,884 53,114 - 576,425

482,134 377,616 58,884 53,114 - 971,748
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ T —+F+_A=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following table summarises the maturity
analysis of bank borrowings with a repayment
on demand clause based on agreed scheduled
repayments set out in the loan agreements.
The amounts include interest payments
computed using contractual rates. As a result,
these amounts were greater than the amounts
disclosed in the “on demand” time band in the
maturity analysis contained above.

6. MBEREREE)
(c) RBELEE (R

TR ARIE M A % B REEGR

HER 1T 8 BUIR B S &

I M ETE

EFXAHNIHABEON - RELR
BREREZADMERFTENF B RIA -
At 25 BR EXAHIHAAR
oM R [ R B Sk B A 80 [ 7 0 ER Y

TEAD

Maturity Analysis — bank borrowings subject to a repayment on
demand clause based on scheduled repayments

MBS - RECERYAMARERAERRNRTHEE

More than 1  More than 2 Total
On demand or vyear but less years but less More than undiscounted
within 1 year than 2 years than 5 years 5 years cash outflows
BRERS —£lE MEL ATHE &
£k (ELREME EBLREE EENE RHEH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
31 December 2017 Z—F—+t&
+-HA=+-H
Bank borrowings RITE R 161,812 23,090 7,353 - 192,255
31 December 2016 =T — R F
+-A=+—-H
Bank borrowings |ITER 338,980 26,490 19,698 - 385,168
(d) Interest rate risk (d) FIZ=pE &

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk
arises from its bank deposits, short term and
long term borrowings. These deposits and
borrowings bear interests at variable rates
varied with the then prevailing market
condition.

AEBEWNMEXERKEERTHE

R EHERER

HETERR

fERRBREER M SRR MEBH

TRAME A -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ma B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #iZ T —tF+-_A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. MBEREREE)
(Continued)
(d) Interest rate risk (Continued) (d) FIHREEE)
At 31 December 2017, if interest rates at that R—ZE—+F+=-_A=+—8" fl”uﬁ
date had been 10 basis points (2016: 10 basis FETEAOBEER (ZF—RF
points) lower with all other variables held T E2) - M E P B & & ?—rT
constant, consolidated profit after tax for the B RF AR LSS R AE M
year would have been approximately HK$152,000 #9152,000%8 T(=Z T — X F:
(2016: HK$320,000) higher, arising mainly as a 320,000 70) r F 2 B R RITHERK
result of lower interest expenses on bank B SR TR R R
borrowings but partly offset by lower interest 2 HIRITESRHF B U AR D FTIK
income on bank balances. If interest rates had 8 o fi A E £ F100E K (=
been 100 basis points (2016: 100 basis points) —NFI00EES) c mMEME
higher, with all other variables held constant, BHERTE BAFARBEES
consolidated profit after tax for the year would i B ¥ Rt A 491,524,000 T (=&
have been approximately HK$1,524,000 (2016: —RNFE-BRBEEESBEEMN
HK$3,201,000) lower, arising mainly as a result 3,201,000/ 70) * T EMARRIRITERK
of higher interest expenses on bank borrowings B EFRZIEMETE - DR
but partly offset by higher interest income on 2HEFITHEKOF S WAL MK
bank balances. 8 ©
(e) Categories of financial instruments at (e R=F—tFE+=-H=+—H
31 December 2017 ERMITRZNE
2017 2016
—F—t= ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Financial assets: SREE:
Loans and receivables (including Bk EWSRIE
cash and cash equivalents) (BEAeEER
REe|EE) 680,568 772,466
Financial liabilities: SRBRE:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost & $pk N5t & ~
TREE 808,876 961,275
(f)  Fair values ( AFEE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial rEBEZeREERERBENE
assets and financial liabilities as reflected in the EUBRARRE 2 REEREE
consolidated statement of financial position EREBE2RTE-

approximate their respective fair values.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ T —+F+_A=+—HILFE

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 7. AF¥EFE

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell NEEEMS208E  BRGTERBEAR
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly FRXRHSPHELES RIS EEEESS
transaction between market participants at the MHER  TXHRERAAFESRTE
measurement date. The following disclosures of fair WATE: AEtERATFENHERES
value measurements use a fair value hierarchy that B D B =EHKA

categorises into three levels the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs: guoted prices (unadjusted) in F1E REFEARFEBBRESZ
active markets for identical assets HREERBGERGEEMS
or liabilities that the Group can ZHECREAE) -
access at the measurement
date.

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices F28E F—EABERWEUIN -
included within Level 1 that are BEENBEEEIMHERR
observable for the asset or liability, "SHZz28 -

either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs:  unobservable inputs for the asset FIE - BESBETIHER S
and liability. o

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and REBENBRKAEREEZS 4 E LA H

transfers out of any of the three levels as of the EREENCEN-_EARNEARELE

date of the event or change in circumstances that S e

caused the transfer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ =T —tF+-_A=+—HILFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 7. AFEFE(E)
(Continued)
(a) Disclosures of level in fair value (a) A2FEFREEWE:
hierarchy:

Description I5EH
Recurring fair value EEMAFEET=E:
measurements:
Leasehold land HEL
Commercial — Hong Kong (Sl > - - 55,630 55,630
Commercial — the PRC BE - hE = = 146,400 146,400
Total A&t - = 202,030 202,030
Fair value measurement using: Total
REEFENA: B
Description B H Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2016
£ E) FIE —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET FET
Recurring fair value EEMATEENE:
measurements:
Leasehold land HELTH
Commercial — Hong Kong B % — &4 - - 37,860 37,860
Commercial — the PRC EE — - - 206,772 206,772
Total &% - - 244,632 244,632
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZE =T —tHF+-_A=+—HILFEF

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 7. AFESTE(E)
(Continued)
(b) Reconciliation of assets/(liabilities) (b) MBE=ZELAFHAENEE
measured at fair value based on level (BfE)HER :
3:

At beginning of year F 1) 244,474 244,474
Additions NE 15,380 15,380
Disposal of a subsidiary HEHBR A (76,116) (76,116)
Recognised in profit or loss: RIEZPER
Depreciation charge for the year FARAREEKRR R —
recognised in cost of sales and M RATB R X
general and administrative RZITERX
expenses (5,882) (5,882)
Deficit in revaluation of leasehold HMETHEEEMGZ
land &8 (578) (578)
Recognised in other comprehensive 7 H it & & Y 25
income: R
Exchange differences on translating &GN EHEL Z
foreign operations fEH =58 9,735 9,735
Surplus on revaluation of leasehold &t BEE (G2
land B8 15,017 15,017
At end of year FR 202,030 202,030
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ma B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #iZ T —tF+-_A=+—HILFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 7. AVEITEE
(Continued)
(b) Reconciliation of assets/(liabilities) (b) REBE=ZEAFEIENEE
measured at fair value based on level (BfE)HER : (8)
3: (Continued)
Properties held
for own use Contingent
— Leasehold consideration 2016
land payable Total
HIEERAY —T—RE
¥-HEti EAIAAE @at
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FiET FiET
At beginning of year F9) 215,900 (7,166) 208,734
Settlements Bt - 7,166 7,166
Recognised in profit or loss: W18 R :
Depreciation charge for the ~ FERRIHERK A K —
year recognised in cost of BREITHRASPE
sales and general and RITERZ
administrative expenses (5,862) - (5,862)
Recognised in other R E M2 E WP
comprehensive income: R
Exchange differences on BREBIEBEEZ
translating foreign 5=
operations (10,710) - (10,710)
Surplus on revaluation of HETHEBER
leasehold land Z B 45,146 - 45,146
At end of year FR 244,474 - 244,474
The total gains or losses recognised in other REME2EKERBR 2 ERRK
comprehensive income are presented in EEDREEEEREMEEKE
surplus on revaluation of leasehold land and KPCHELTHEBEEHZCBHRR
exchange differences on translating foreign MBI ERELEZEREZREZY o

operations in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive

income.

The total gains or losses recognised in profit REZANERzEe kS BB TR
or loss are presented in cost of sales, general EABEERPIIMEERRNUAR—5
and administrative expenses and other RABEY (—F—NE ek A
operating expenses and income (2016: the BB RATRES) 25 .

total gains or losses recognised in profit or
loss are presented in cost of sales and
general and administrative expenses) in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

Reconciliation of assets/(liabilities)
measured at fair value based on level
3: (Continued)

All the gains or losses recognised in profit or
loss for the year were attributable the
unrealised gain and loss of the leasehold land
(2016: all the gains or losses recognised in
profit or loss for the year were attributable the
unrealised gain and loss of the leasehold land)
held at the end of the reporting period.

Disclosure of valuation process used
by the Group and valuation
techniques and inputs used in fair
value measurements at 31 December
2017:

The Group’s financial controller is responsible
for the fair value measurements of assets and
liabilities required for financial reporting purposes,
including level 3 fair value measurements. The
financial controller reports directly to the Board
of Directors for these fair value measurements.
Discussions of valuation processes and results
are held between the financial controller and
the Board of Directors at least twice a year.

For level 3 fair value measurements, the Group
will normally engage external valuation experts
with the recognised professional qualifications
and recent experience to perform the
valuations.

Key unobservable inputs used in level 3 fair
value measurements are mainly adjusted
accommodation value/price per square metre/
square feet of the PRC and Hong Kong
leasehold land estimated based on recent
market transactions.

Se BRI E(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZE T —+F+-_A=+—AILFE

»NFEFE (&)

(b)

(c)

RBEE=ZBAFEIAEBNEE
(BfR) iR (&)

FT A B F N8 25 A e 30 1 Uk 25 ok J&5
BYBARBEPRRMFH2HE L
ZABBRRSZRBEMB(ZZ—X
FRARFTFRNIBENERN K=
REEYARBAEL 2 RER KRS
N EETED o

R-F—t&E+=-A=+—-H%K
SEFRERANGEEFRAFE
SFEFEANGESEZRSHH
WEE -

AEENPHREABERMBERE
ETENEERBBNRFER
E(BRFIEBRFEE) YHAE
EREERFEFAEERANESS
ER -MBREREETEEFED
MR I mbEREF LA AR

BEZEAFENBMNE  A%ME
CBERAMRTSKAGASS
i EERO B EER

F-EATEFEMAEETAH
R T EVERBERONTMHER

SEFHPEEREERELIHNE
BEFEHAEBER " SFEHK
FHRER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ =T —tF+-_A=+—HILFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 7. AFEFE(E)
(Continued)
(c) Disclosure of valuation process used (c) R=ZFT—t&HE+=-HA=+—HXK

SERMEANGEEFRATE
SFEFRANGERERZ2HD

by the Group and valuation
techniques and inputs used in fair

value measurements at 31 December

2017: (Continued)

Level 3 fair value measurements

W (@)
B=ELFHEIE
Fair value

AT
Effect on fair

Valuation value for increase
Description technique Unobservable inputs ~ Range of inputs 2016
2ymy
B fER & FURENSY L] ATENZE “T-RE
HK$'000
TEr
Land use rights in Direct comparison  Adjusted accommodation  RMB1,527/square metre  Increase 14,400 11,200
Egongling Vilage, ~ approach value per square — RVB1,743/square 311
Pinghu Town, ERNLEE metre taking into metre (2016:
Shenzhen City, account the RMB1,185/square
the PRC differences from the metre — RMB1,494/
RERIT R comparables with square metre)
BRERMLS respect to location, BT HARARELS27T
fe g quantum, and tenure 2T A AXARME
BZEANEIH 1743 (ZF R
LOEBREREE £ BYARARE
EENBYARER  116TEETHX
EREEHK ARB1,4947T)
Land use rights in Direct comparison  Adjusted accommodation ~ Nil (2016: RMB1,753/ Increase = 72,972
Phoenix Avenue, approach value per square square metre — bl
Pinghu Town, EGA A metre taking into RMB1,844/square
Shenzhen City, account the metre)
the PRC differences from the  &(ZE—-~E: 5
RERNT LA comparables with KAREI753LEE
BEXENLH respect to location, THRARE 844
fe R quantum, facilties, )
and tenure
BERALRTHH
% OEE RARE
RERZENGTR

150 Ka Shui International Holdings Limited 3 & BB 42 RA R D A



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A B R Y ()

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
(Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ T —+F+_A=+—HILFE

7. DVEFEE)

(c) Disclosure of valuation process used (c) R-ZT—tEFE+=ZH=+—H=XK
by the Group and valuation SEMEANEEEFRAEE
techniques and inputs used in fair FTEMFERAMGEAFERZ2ED
value measurements at 31 December 5% - (8])

2017: (Continued)
Level 3 fair value measurements E=EBAFEFTEE)
(Continued)
Fair value
ATE
Effect on fair
Valuation value for increase
Description technique Unobservable inputs ~ Range of inputs 2017 2016
SyEmH
58 tERE FIRENSY #E ATFENZE —F-t& -_T-5%
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FET AT
Land use rights in Direct comparison  Adjusted price per RMB522/square metre  Increase 125,600 116,700
Western District of approach square metre (2016: — RMB535/square 321
Daya Bay, EREBE Adjusted metre (2016:
Huizhou City, the accommodation value RMB221/square
PRC per square metre) metre — RMB503/
mEEMNATERR taking into account square metre)
Colb:cA iy the differences from ~ SFHFRARBE2LE
the comparables with ~ &F 7K AR 535
respect to location, T(ZE-R%F:
quantum, and tenure A KARB21T
EEEOLBRTMIE EETARARE
B EEREREH 5037L)
EENBTIRESR
BER(ZE-R
EGYHRERE
BEER)
Land use rights in Direct comparison  Adjusted price per RMB144/square metre  Increase 6,400 5,900
Wuhu City, Anhui ~ approach square metre (2016: — RVB180/square &I
Province, the PRC  ER M 8% Adjusted metre (2016:
REZYEENTH accommodation value  RMB132/square
ThiERR per square metre) metre — RMB173/

taking into account
the differences from
the comparables with
respect to location,
Quantum, and tenure
BEEALTLHH
5 ABRREREH
ZENGTAREE
BER(ZE-
E Y HAEIE
BEER)

square metre)

BYAAARE MR
BEAKARE180
T(ZE—RE:
THRAREI3T
EETRRARE
17370)

Annual Report 2017 —Z—tF£ &% 151



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ =T —tF+-_A=+—HILFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 7. AFEFE(E)
(Continued)
(c) Disclosure of valuation process used (c) R=ZTF—tEFE+=-HA=+—8B=%

by the Group and valuation
techniques and inputs used in fair
value measurements at 31 December
2017: (Continued)

Level 3 fair value measurements

SERMEANGEEFRATE
SFEFRANGERERZ2HD
WeE (&

BZEAFEFEGER)

(Continued)
Fair value
ATE
Effect on fair
Valuation value for increase
Description technique Unobservable inputs ~ Range of inputs 2016
2ymy
58 tEHE FIRENLSY i ATENHE ZE-RF
HK$000
AT
Land use rights in Direct comparison  Adjusted price per HK$11,480/square feet  Increase 39,930 37,860
Billion Centre, approach square feet taking ito~~ — HK$13,906/square £ 1
Kowloon Bay, — ERLEZ account the feet (2016:
Hong Kong differences from the HK$9,224/square
FENEEERTL comparables with feet — HK$15,365/
NEERE respect to location square feet)
and quantum BEARN 480 TE
BULGLHZHER BEARI306% T
HEZENBTHIR (ZE-RE: 8T
BREER TR 204ETEET
7R15,3655 70
Land use rights in Direct comparison  Adjusted price per HK$4,856/square feet —  Increase 15,700 -
Kinetic Centre, approach square feet (2016: Nij ~ HKS6,689/square feet 3£ 70
Kowloon Bay, ERNEE taking into account (2016: Nil
Hong Kong the differences from ¥ 7 R4,8568 L2
BBNEEL) the comparables with & /7 1R6,689% 1T
TERLMLH respect to location (ZE—1E:8)
FRE and quantum
EagELi R
HEZENBTHR
BREER(ZE
—NEE)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
(Continued)

(c) Disclosure of valuation process used
by the Group and valuation
techniques and inputs used in fair
value measurements at 31 December
2017: (Continued)

Level 3 fair value measurements
(Continued)

The fair value of leasehold land held for own
use located in the PRC and Hong Kong is
determined using direct comparison approach
by reference to recent sales price of comparable
leasehold land on an accommodation value per
metre or price per square metre/square feet
basis, adjusted for a premium or a discount
specific to the quality of the Group’s leasehold
land compared to the recent sales. Higher
premium for higher quality land will result in a
higher fair value measurement.

During the two years, there were no changes
in the valuation techniques used.

REVENUE

The Group is principally engaged in the sale and
manufacture of zinc, magnesium and aluminium alloy
die casting and plastic injection products and
components, trading of lighting products and home
appliances.

Revenue represents the net amounts received and
receivable for goods sold, net of returns and
allowances to customers during the year.

Se BRI E(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ T —+F+_A=+—HILFE

»NFEFE (&)

(c)

A

R-ZF—tF+ZA=+—HBX
SEFMEANGEEFRATE
SFEFRANGERERZ2HD
WeE (|

F=ZEAFHETEGER)

NRFEEEESFAFEANEE
TR FEDERERLEAE
E-ERC2ERNHLBREE ST
HEENEY T ABEERAET
TR FHRER TRASEEHME
BT E 8 H R E BT
B EERTEFELBE -5EE
THAFEAESEE YAELAR
BHAFEFEHE-

BOTRE 4 B PR 0 1 (B % 3
R -

AEBTIENELENKEEN HREA
TEE BRIBEMMETRME  RAE
miMKEREES -

WA F A E S M 2 U R BUYRIA
FR(EMBRERGETERNIM) -

2017 2016

—F—tH NS

HK$’000 HK$°000

FET FET

Sales of goods HEEm 1,738,738 1,742,476
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ma B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 H ZE =%

10.

—tF+ZA=t+—HILFE

OTHER INCOME 9. Hfttlg A
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RHF
HK$’000 HK$°000
F#ET FET
Exchange differences PE X =% - 9,095
Interest income on bank deposits RAT I SKF B WA 354 868
Rental income el A 140 789
Reimbursement from customers E PR K E 9,955 8,023
Sales of scrap materials BE K3 & 1,565 615
Government grants Y SEEEA 3,260 3,967
Others HAh 1,396 2,320
16,670 25,677
Government grants mainly comprised unconditional HEHEE T ERERGEIBEREE Y
support for subsiding the Group’s research and Mz &EB -
development.
SEGMENT INFORMATION 10. 2 HER

For management purposes, the Group’s operation is
currently categorised into six (2016: five) operating
divisions — zinc, magnesium, aluminium alloy die
casting, plastic injection products and components,
as well as trading of lighting products and home
appliances. These divisions are the basis of the
Group’s five reportable segments. The Group’s
reportable segments are strategic business units that
offer different products. They are managed
separately because each business requires different
technology and different cost measurement.

The Group’s other operating segments include
trading of lighting products and home appliances.
None of these segments meets any of the
quantitative thresholds for determining reportable
segments. The information of these other operating
segments is included in the ‘others’ column.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Se BRI E(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZE =T —tHF+-_A=+—HILFEF

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 10. D EBER (E)
Segment profits or losses do not include interest AEHEMKEETBRIEFSWA m%qﬁl
income, corporate income, gain or loss from moRETETAZIEZ HENEBEAR
derivative instruments, gain on disposal of a Hﬂlfm RIEHEMB AR BHBE

NAEER - EERAX
P o

BB A K P S AR

subsidiary, gain on deemed disposal of subsidiaries,
share of loss of associates, corporate expenses,

finance costs and income tax expense.

Information about reportable segment

profit or loss:

ERSBBAIBEZEFNT ¢

Year ended 31 December 2017 &E-F-t%£+=R
S+-BLEE
Revenue from external customers ~ RESNREEHIRA 203,685 588,843 201,928 712,210 32072 1,738,738
Segment profit/{loss) AHEH/ (BR) 6,476 (24,566) 2,149 41,362 (3,110) 22,311
Depreciation and amortisation NEREH 5,297 33,970 6,319 39,576 217 85,439
Restructuring expenses (nofe) BRRRWZ) - 25,696 - - - 25,696
Impairment loss on property, nE EERRERE
plant and equipment Bi - 8,752 - - - 8,752
Magnesium Aluminium
Zinc alloy alloy die alloy die Plastic Lighting
die casting casting casting injection products Total
HeeEE  HAeBE  BR4EH il i RAER 2%
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET AT FET AT FET FET
Year ended 31 December 2016 HEZZ-RE+ZR
St-BIEEE
Revenue from extemal customers —— REJVREPHHA 230,614 691,104 195,763 601,267 23,638 1,742,476
Segment profit/{loss) AHEH/ (BB 16,737 30377 5,404 78,663 (11,005) 120,176
Depreciation and amortisation Tﬁ% REH 8,038 38,717 7,969 33,730 190 89,144
Note: The amount was included in general and administrative Bet: Z—RMREEFA—REITHREASSP -

expenses which is one-off in nature.

Annual Report 2017 =&

—tE5% 155



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R E B R R A R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ =T —tF+-_A=+—HILFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 10. &

Reconciliation of reportable seg
revenue, profit or loss:

ment BRI - B FIHEE ZHER -

BE R (E)

2016
—E—RF
HK$’000
FET
Revenue (' PN
Total revenue of reportable segments 2 ¥k 7 %8 2 £ Uk A 1,738,738 1,742,476
Unallocated amounts o EEE = -
Consolidated revenue e A 1,738,738 1,742,476
2016
—E—RF
HK$’000
FET
Profit or loss iR sy B 18
Total profit of reportable segments 2 ¥R 7 ZF 485 7 22,311 120,176
Unallocated amounts: THEHE -
Gain on deemed disposal of RIELEM B QAR
subsidiaries = 4,635
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEWB QR W= 96,011 —
Share of loss of associates BOMENREE (325) (3,400)
Interest income B A 354 868
Gain on financial liabilities at fair value EAFEFABZFZENS
through profit or loss BB fE 2 W = 14,767
Finance costs b & Bk AR (16,115) (17,489)
Income tax expense Fr 8= (45,862) (46,252)
Corporate income ERA 86 9,262
Corporate expenses TERE (20,329) (22,665)
Consolidated profit for the year FRNEE & T 36,131 59,902
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10.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Se BRI E(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ T —+F+_A=+—HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 10. o HER (E)
Reconciliation of reportable segment SR - BRI ESE 2 HER -
revenue, profit or loss: (Continued) (#8)
2017 2016
¥t ZT—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Other material items — HhEXEH — FER
depreciation and amortisation e
Total depreciation and amortisation of 2 ¥ 5 2B 48 4T & K # 54
reportable segments 85,439 89,144
Unallocated amounts: THBEE
Depreciation of property, plant and (M3 AW ¥ B RHRE
equipment for corporate use e 1,735 1,356
Consolidated depreciation and RETTE KB
amortisation 87,174 90,500
Geographical information: WEEE :
Revenue
' PN
2017 2016
—EF—tHF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Hong Kong 5B 264,145 307,492
The PRC except Hong Kong FE (BRI 705,186 822,741
Japan AR 34,891 23,063
USA ES 587,384 472,291
Others HAh 147,132 116,889
Consolidated total e BB 1,738,738 1,742,476

In presenting the geographical information, revenue
is based on the locations of the customers.

The Group’s non-current assets by geographical
areas are not presented as the aggregate amount of
the geographical segments other than the PRC is
less than 10% (2016: less than 10%) of the
aggregate amount of all segments.

2R ERE - WARNE PR R

ARBEREN 2RO BZIFRBDEER
CTHREMBDAZEBL MR (ZF
—NEFEDR0%) FTAREEREZ
@25 e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B R R MY R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ =T —tF+-_A=+—HILFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 10. 2 EBER (&)
Revenue from major customers: RKEEEERZKA:
2017 2016
—F—tH —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
Zinc alloy die casting segment HE EE
Customer a ®Pa 103,742 117,678
Customer b EFPb 39,066 55,394
Customer ¢ BFc 2,367 4,518
Magnesium alloy die casting segment %4 & B E
Customer ¢ BPc 87,378 256,053
Customer e ®Fe 253,514 144,177
Aluminium alloy die casting segment 84 & E & D 30
Customer a = Fa 114,663 110,367
Customer e ZFe 2,265 7,814
Customer ¢ EFc - 145
Plastic injection segment BRBIFE D ED
Customer b = Pb 106,196 115,718
Customer a %Pa 1,177 1,120
Customer d ZFAd 518,229 408,833
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZE =T —tHF+-_A=+—HILFEF

11. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES AND 11, HKLEIRIKA
INCOME
2016
—E-RF
HK$°000
FET
Allowance for inventories FERE 415 12,110
Allowance for amounts due from JE U B = N B SRIE B
associates 2,934 —
Bad debts written off 2 0R 8 61 275
Gain on financial liabilities at fair BAFEFAERZ
value through profit or loss THBEENRS - (14,767)
Impairment loss on property, plant W HEREHEZ
and equipment BEEE 8,752 1,122
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEWE  HER
and equipment Bz WS (84) (45)
Deficit in revaluation of land THEBEHZEE 578 —
Property, plant and equipment ERE TV E L E
written off 8,632 4,515
Allowance for/(Reversal of allowance for) & B # & (¥ [a)
doubtful debts 764 (53)
22,052 3,157
12. FINANCE COSTS 12.
2016
—E-RF
HK$’000
FET
Interest expenses on bank borrowings 42 & & fk A< 16,115 17,933
Amount capitalised AR &8 - (444)
16,115 17,489
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B R R MY R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #iZ — T —+F T+ A =+—HILFE

12. FINANCE COSTS (Continued)

The analysis shows the finance costs of bank
borrowings including bank borrowings which contain
a repayment on demand clause, in accordance with
the agreed scheduled repayments dates set out in
the loan agreements. For the years ended 31
December 2017 and 2016, the interest on bank
borrowings which contain a repayment on demand
clause before the capitalisation of borrowing costs
amounted to approximately HK$9,347,000 and
HK$10,392,000 respectively.

The weighted average capitalisation rate on funds
borrowed generally is at a rate of Nil% (2016: 3.2%)

12.

L& KA (4)

BRI RIBITEROBERAE - B3
BEERBEMENZTETERB 2N
BREREZRTINBOTER -BEZZT
—tFRZFE-AFTA=+—AHLF
B WHEEREREEGRINBITERRE
BRI F] B 5 B 4 A9,347,00078 7T &
10,392,000/ JT °

HEES 2 MBTIEALFHELER
T(ZF R 32%) 0

per annum.
13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 13. FTBHHX
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FHET
Current tax — Hong Kong BNEg®i A —
Profits Tax BEAMEFH
Provision for the year KF[E R 16,936 7,653
Under/(Over)-provision in prior years BEFEREBERE
(EBEEEE) 294 (1,723)
Current tax — Income tax outside BVERRRIE — FAELASN
Hong Kong Frig i
Provision for the year KEZREE 11,435 14,770
Capital gain tax arising from disposal i & W B A 7 & 4+
of a subsidiary ZEREER 13,727 —
Withholding tax arising from dividend i & Kt B 2 8] 32 f+
payment of a disposed subsidiary I BEAZ B 3,118 —
Under/(Over)-provision in prior years ®EFEBEERTE
(EBEERAE) 265 (833)
Deferred tax (note 31) IEERIE (K 7231) 87 26,385
Income tax expense Frig®i = 45,862 46,252
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13.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at a rate
of 16.5% (2016: 16.5%) on the estimated
assessable profits of Hong Kong incorporated
subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2017.

Under the PRC Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT”)
Law, the statutory tax rate for the Group’s
subsidiaries established and operating in Mainland
China is 25% (2016: 25%). One of the Group’s
subsidiaries has been recognised as a “New and
High Technology Enterprise” in the PRC for the year
ended 31 December 2016 and was therefore
subject to a preferential tax rate of 15% for that
year.

Income tax on overseas profit has been calculated
on the estimated assessable profit for the year at
the rates of taxation prevailing on the overseas
countries in which the Group operates.

According to the PRC EIT Law, withholding income
tax at a rate of 10% would be imposed on dividend
payment relating to profits earned from year 2008
onwards to foreign investors for the companies
established in the PRC. Such tax rate may be
further reduced by applicable tax treaties or
arrangements.

Capital gain tax of the PRC was charged at a
withholding tax rate of 10% based on the surplus of
the sales proceed from the disposal of a subsidiary
over the investment cost of that subsidiary.

13.

A B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ T —+F+_A=+—HILFE

FreBim X (5)
BE-_ZT—+F+-A=+—HILEFEZ
EFNESHREBEESAMMBERAR 2 Gt
JE SR B35 K A B B16.5% (—F — N & -
16.5% ) fEHH & f& -

BIEFBRCEMBRE  REEBRFREX
ERIREEZHBRARZEEREA
25%(ZZFE—NE:25%) ERHEE-F
—RNEF-_A=+—BILEE KAEHHE
P — I B A R EREE AR B [ e 5T B
] ARETEZFEATZHI5%2E
BRE -

A SNE M 2 BT S BRI F Al 5 SR B i
MUREEELBE 2 BINER 2 RITHE

o
Al &= °

RIEFBECEMAERE  INEREER -
ZTN\FRERP KL Z AR RIS
B 2 BB SN BB A10% TR 12 AR 1%
T o %M R A] BE IR IE A AR K IR ) 3 & BE
#E—PRE-

IR I 5 B 25 965 A B DA S
BRANRARAHE  FENAAYE
BIR10% K TR IR B 6 51 5
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ma B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #iZ — T —+F T+ A =+—HILFE

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 13.
The reconciliation between the income tax expense
and the product of profit before tax multiplied by the
Hong Kong Profits Tax rate is as follows:

Frig i ()
FIT 15 50 B S B2 B 75 BT SR A BB RIS 0
MEFEMBSERNERMT

2017 2016
—T—-tE —T-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
Profit before tax B 52 A A 81,993 106,154
Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate 12 &8 B 5 £16.5%
at 16.5% (2016: 16.5%) —ZE—XF :16.5%)
FAAEHHRIE 13,529 17,515
Tax effect of expenses that are not A HIF B L 9T IS 52 &
deductible 12,847 8,893
Tax effect of income that is not BERBWMANBEZE
taxable (6,102) (4,113)
Tax effect of temporary differences KR E I = E N5
not recognised wa (354) (290)
Tax effect of share of loss of BomeE NFBEZHB
associates za 54 561
Tax effect of tax losses not RERVEBEB 2B®
recognised me 35,446 16,605
Utilisation of tax losses not previously ) 5t Al K #E52 2 T 18
recognised BEzxE (4,678) (6,973)
Withholding tax arising from dividend 2K & /& Bl Bff /& & &) X 1+
payment/undistributed profits of a e el o L
PRC subsidiary FRESZFERMEN 3,118 15,852
Under/(Over)-provision in prior years BEEEEETRE,
(HBEEEE) 559 (2,556)
Over-provision for current year NEZHERE 1,027 157
Effect of different tax rates of o= b SRR R
subsidiaries e (9,584) 601
Income tax expense Frisfi A X 45,862 46,252
In addition to the amount charged to profit or loss, FREBRDRIEN REARNKEZHRE

deferred tax relating to the

revaluation of the
Group’s leasehold land during the year has been

A IIER -

charged to other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ T —+F+_A=+—HILFE

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 14. F W= F
The Group’s profit for the year is stated after AEEBFRNZHZFENE, (GHA) T
charging/(crediting) the following: T8 -
2017 2016
—F—tHF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FAET
Allowance for inventories (note (a)) GFEREWHEE) 415 12,110
Allowance for amounts due from JE A B o N B SRTE B AR
associates (note (a)) (K1 it(a)) 2,934 —
Allowance for doubtful debts (note (a)) Bk # #& (47 7%(a)) 764 —
Auditor’s remuneration % SEM BN & 1,750 1,660
Bad debts written off (note (a)) ZRME (W itE) 61 275
Cost of inventories sold (note (b)) EEFERA (K itwm) 1,360,457 1,288,458
Deficit in revaluation of land (note (a)) LM (BEE 2 EE
(Bt it (a)) 578 -
Depreciation of property, plant and ~ %1% - B R REITE
equipment 87,174 90,500
Gain on financial liabilities at fair value & A FEFF ABFIER 2
through profit or loss (note (a)) B EWRsE (W itaE) = (14,767)
Impairment loss on property, plant VI3 W REHERE
and equipment (note () B8 (HitE)) 8,752 1,122
Net exchange loss/(gain) PEH FE B (W) 2,038 (9,095)
Net gain on disposal of property, HEYE - WS REE
plant and equipment (note (a)) FWas (B itaE) (84) (45)
Property, plant and equipment L E IV E
written off (note (a)) (H1it(a)) 8,632 4,515
Operating lease charges in respect  tHIREFRLEALH LT H
of land and buildings 7,487 8,860
Other fees paid to the auditor of (NEWNCIE % ¢l
the Company HuE A 443 399
Research and development MR EREES S ()
expenditure (note (c)) 8,479 23,994
Restructuring expenses (note (d)) EABA W) 25,696 —
Reversal of allowance for doubtful RO REREE W HZE)
debts (note (a)) = (583)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B R R MY R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ =T —tF+-_A=+—HILFE

14. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (Continued) FRRF (E)

Note: i -

(a) These amounts were included in other operating expenses (a) ZERHEEFAEMBEERST RIRAR
and income.

(b) Cost of inventories sold includes staff costs and depreciation (o) EEFENABEEIRARNTEDN
of approximately HK$408,098,000 (2016: HK$421,952,000), 408,098,000/ 7t (== — /N 4 : 421,952,000/
which are included in the amounts disclosed separately L) BEEEBD AR EX KM F15EE -
above and in note 15.

() Research and development expenditure includes staff costs (0) MEERAZEZ P RERMF15BLEENE
of approximately HK$2,267,000 (2016: HK$11,828,000), T B A #92,267,000%8 L(= T — X F:
which are included in the amounts disclosed separately in 11,828,000/ 7t.) °
note 15.

(d) The amount was included in general and administrative (d) Z—RERBEFA—REITERALF -
expenses which is one-off in nature.

15. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE EERFIX
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—KEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Employee benefits expense (excluding EE®FIH X (TBEEE
directors’ emoluments): B &)

Salaries, bonuses and allowances BN - FEAT RROERL 437,643 434,674

Retirement benefit scheme RONTE T ET &4
contributions 30,973 28,655
Other benefits H 48 A 33,783 35,566
502,399 498,895
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ T —+F+_A=+—HILFE

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE 15. lEE R FIB X (&)

(Continued)

Five highest paid individuals ZTEaREFHFMAL

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during AEEBHNAEERTMALTEE=2(Z
the year included three (2016: three) directors T-—RNF ZREES FEMNSHFBH
whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis R 16D - REBE=T—+F+ =
presented in note 16. The emoluments of the A=T—HLEFEHTME(ZE—X
remaining two (2016: two) individuals for the year F WA EaTMALHOMSOT

ended 31 December 2017 are set out below:

2017 2016
—T-tE —T-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FAET
Basic salaries and allowances FLRH N % Bh 2,935 2,807
Discretionary bonus I TE AL - 194
Retirement benefits scheme R RAE B FT & R
contributions 36 36
2,971 3,037
The emoluments fell within the following bands: Bl N F AT &5 ¢
Number of individuals
A
2017 2016
—T—-tH —T—RF
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001%8 L =
1,500,000 7T 1 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001% T &
2,000,000/ 7T 1 1
During the year, no emoluments were paid by the FA - AEETERAZSESZSTMALTE
Group to any of these highest paid individuals as an TR VE 2 hn B8 7R &= B B ok« 18 ) 42 B ok
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as BEBEAOmEZHNE -

compensation for loss of office.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B R R MY R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #iZ — T —+F T+ A =+—HILFE

16. BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF

16. EFEBA R A=

DIRECTORS
(a) Emoluments of directors EEME
The emoluments of each director were as BFEEHNMeT
follows:
Estimated Retirement
money value benefits
Salaries and  Discretionary of other scheme
Fees allowances bhonus benefits  contributions Total
Name of director EEfiz Rib AN BHEH .
e HeREE BERL HHE%ERE HEE @t
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FET AT FET AT FET AT
(note i)
(W)
Year ended 31 December 2017 HBE-%-1t
+ZR=+-8
Executive directors HTEES
Mr. Les BRE ) = 3,008 = 199 18 3,220
Dr. WONG Cheong Yiu frote )~ EERE L) - 2,175 - - 37 2,212
Mr. WONG Wing Chuen BEkRLE 1,614 139 18 1,771
Independent non-executive ~ BAEHITES
directors
Professor SUN Kal Lit, Cliff s3s, o 7151 Raas -
At 180 = = = = 180
Ir Dr. LO Wai Kwok ss, Wi, op EfEE B 985 w4 -
At 180 = = 180
Mr. KONG Kal Chuen, Frankie  [TRI% %% 180 - - - - 180
M. Andrew LOOK BEiE 180 - - 180
Total for 2017 ZT-vEgH 720 6,792 - 338 73 7,923
Year ended 31 December 2016 HZEZE-7%
t-F=1t-H
Executive directors Hi1E%
Mr. Lee T4 ) - 2,955 209 206 18 3,388
Dr. WONG Cheong Yiu frote )~ & BB+ (ki) - 2,140 146 - 37 2323
Mr. WONG Wing Chuen EABLE ) - 1,588 109 ? 18 1,807
Mr. CHAN Tat Cheong, Alan REEXEWHi)
(note i) - 654 - - 6 660
Independent non-executive BUE#TES
directors B
Professor SUN Kai Lit, Cliff 8BS, oo 7.1 Ress -
@t 180 - - - - 180
Ir Dr. LO Wai Kwok s3s, i, o~ BB E oS Mt
ATt 180 - - - - 180
Mr. KONG Kai Chuen, Frankie ~ IHI2 %% 180 - - - - 180
Mr. Andrew LOOK BEREE 180 - - - - 180
Total for 2016 ZE-REFaH 720 7,387 464 298 79 8,898
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

16. BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF
DIRECTORS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Emoluments of directors (Continued)
Note:

(i) Dr. Wong Cheong Yiu is also the chief executive of
the Company and his emoluments disclosed above
include those services rendered by him as chief
executive.

(i) Mr. Chan Tat Cheong, Alan was resigned as an
executive director of the Company on 23 May
2016.

(iif) Estimated money values of other benefits include cars
of the Group used by the directors.

There were no arrangements under which a
director waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments during the year (2016: Nil).

During the year, no emoluments were paid by
the Group to any of the directors as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office.

Directors’ material interests in
transactions, arrangement or
contracts

Save as the continuing connected transactions
as disclosed in note 39 to the consolidated
financial statements, no significant transactions,
arrangements and contracts in relation to the
Group’s business to which the Company was
a party and in which a director of the
Company and the director’s connected party
had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or
at any time during the year.

17. DIVIDENDS
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, final
dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December
2017 of HK1.0 cent (2016: HK1.0 cent) per share
has been proposed by the Board of Directors of the

Company and

is subject to approval by the

shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

Se BRI E(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ T —+F+_A=+—HILFE

16. EF®AK A= ()

(a) EFEWE (&)
Hist -

(i) HERBL T RARRITHRAER  £X
PR 2 % BN B IR R AE RIT IR AR LR
HRBOBE -

(ii) REEEER_TE—R"FRAA=-+=
ARAARABNITES -

(i) Ht@EMOGBAESEEREESRHE
RMAEESE-

EENAFARBELERELRE
HEEAMENRZH (ZFT—RF:
&)

FRA - AEEAERNEMESTIN
EAERMBEREEELZ R E
BBEREENME -

(b) EFERXD ZHASHPHE
K

bR 85 10 AR B B 5 R AR I RE39Z %
BREZXSBEEIN  RFRK
FREMRER NABBHEF LA
MBEAEEXBEEMARAES
REBEBEATRETERXEZE
BEEREEZNEARS THEA
]

17. B2
RBREMRTHEER ARAEZTGEES
EEZ-_T—+F+-_A=+—HIFE
ZREBEBER1I.0BI(BE T —RF
TZA=1T—HALEFERBERE 1.08
i) - e S AFAR B BRRREERER
BERNE LHE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B R R MY R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #iZ T —tF+-_A=+—HILFE

18. EARNINGS PER SHARE
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per
share is based on the following:

18. ZREAR
BREARBERFETIIFE

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FA&ET
Earnings a2F
Profit attributable to the owners of AR EEBREARARF 2
the Company, used in the basic KAl E=RFER AEG
earnings per share calculation il 33,998 59,243
Effect of profit attributable to the WHEEBRIERE
non-controlling interest assuming ZHE - R E AT B
300 shares of a subsidiary, RAZEREERK
Katchon Precision Holdings ERRAI(ZED 2
Company Limited (“Katchon”) were ~ 300A% % {7 2% ﬁﬁﬁfﬂ
issued to the seller of Goodly EERLERBRAT
Precision Industrial Limited (fﬁﬁﬂ)zgﬁﬁ
(“Goodly”), pursuant to the FE 128 % 5 FE A s A
contingent consideration -7
arrangement of the business
combination = (664)
Profit attributable to owners of the AR EEEERER
Company, used in the diluted ARz ARE #Em
earnings per share calculation A AEIEE R 33,998 58,579
Number of shares & E
Weighted average number of ordinary ARGTEESREAREF] 2
shares used in basic earnings per D0 #E - 15 i AR
share calculation 893,761,400 893,761,400
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary ERESRECHS LB
shares arising from share options -2 27,931 30,353
Weighted average number of ordinary AR T EZSREFAET ~
shares used in diluted earnings per  HN#E ¥ 3 % 8 A% A% B
share calculation 893,789,331 893,791,753
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19.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZE =T —tHF+-_A=+—HILFEF

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

19. % - #EKRE

Furniture,
fixtures and
Leasehold Leasehold Plant and Computer office Motor ~ Construction
land Buildings  improvements machinery ~ equipment  equipment vehicles  in progress Total
‘[
HELH Bf  BERE  RERGRE  IERRE RBAEIR e BRIE a3t
RS0 HRS 000 HR$000 HKS000 HKS000 RS 000 RS0 HRS 000 HR$000
AL AT 1223 7T AL AL AL AT 1223
Cost o valuation BAHEE
At 1 January 2016 NZ5-nE-A-1 215,900 U743 173,049 609,955 9343 11,908 15,481 10,008 1393218
Transfer &y - 2559 2036 - - RV - (4919 -
Addions hE - - 16,541 19,543 2 52 194 85 3917
Surplus on revaluation e 45,146 - - - - - - - 45,146
Depreciaion eliminated aganst cost KA AHEHE [5t1) - - . - - - - B5t)
Disposalfwit off HE/Hs - 1857) - (.25 k3 3 (640 - (10819)
Exchange differences EizE (1090 (20,584) (9,624) (33820) (113 (663) (687) (0) (17,014)
At 31 December 2016 and S
1 Janvary 2017 t-f=1-BR
“E-tE-3-R 21463 31,550 181,002 503,428 9485 12,080 14,38 5558 1,382,083
Trengfer &p - - 4 - - - - 024 -
Addtions RE 15,380 5204 949 2,867 820 3030 1534 863 6,264
Surplus on revaluation EftRR 15,017 - - - - - - - 15017
Defict in revaluation EfiER 679 - - - - - - - (79
Depreciation eiminated against cost ~ REAEATE (6,169 - - - - - - - (6.169
Disposalwrte off e/ - - (21,128) (15020 (104 (1,726 (6,966) (16) (45,560)
Disposal of a subsidiary HENBLH (76,116) (34672 - - - - - - (110,789
Exchange differences EiZE 9,864 20,138 10,705 37,798 206 754 3 % 80,286
At 31 December 2017 RZE-tE+ZR
=t-f 202,030 312,200 180,399 646,068 9,807 14108 9,307 6,516 1,380,525
Accumulated depreciation and EAfERAE
impairment
At 1 January 2016 RR-RE-A-8 - 66,726 84,33 317,881 8118 5,766 11419 - 49438
Charge for the year Enis 5,862 14,6% 28,287 1352 664 1104 1363 - 90,500
Disposal/wrie off e/ - (3,536) - (1,869) (19 29 (640) - (6,099)
Adjustment on revaluation ELiE L [511) - - - - - - - B511)
Impaiment A - - - - - - - 112 112
Exchange diferences EiZE (199) [4478) (459 (16,354) (143) (297) (486) ] (26,592)
At 31 December 2016 and RZ5-7E
1 January 2017 t-f=1-BR
“E-tE-F-§ 158 73408 103,029 343,182 8616 6,543 11,656 1018 547 864
Charge for the year Emik 5,882 13,898 2,375 40,304 456 1287 972 - 87,174
Disposalwrte off e/ - - (17,748 (10,390 (839) (1579 (6,966 - (36,518)
Disposal of a subsidiary HENBLA - (22250) - - - - - - (22250)
Adjustment on revaluation EfH% 6169 - - - - - - - (6,169)
Impaiment A - - - 4557 - - - 41% 8750
Exchange differences EXZE 19 4213 5800 20,102 13 300 20 21 312680
At 31 December 2017 i
tZR=1+-A = 69,329 115,456 307,755 831 6,551 6,952 5519 609,933
Carrying amount FEE
At 31 December 2017 NI%-tE
tZR=1-A 202,030 242,91 64943 18313 1,436 17,957 2,355 97 110592
At 31 Deoemoer 2016 RZF-%
tZR=1+-A 4474 218,142 7913 250,246 870 5507 2,69 4485 834,389
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ma B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #iZ — T —+F T+ A =+—HILFE

19.

20.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

The Group’s leasehold land was revalued on 31
December 2017, 12 July 2017, 31 December 2016
and 30 September 2016 respectively using the
direct comparison approach by reference to market
evidence of recent transactions for similar properties
by independent surveyors.

The carrying amount of the Group’s leasehold land
would have been approximately HK$54,091,000
(2016: HK$44,893,000) had it been stated at cost

less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses.
The carrying amount of property, plant and

equipment pledged as security for the Group’s
banking facilities amounted to approximately
HK$44,326,000 (2016: HK$42,405,000).

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December
2017 are as follows:

Issued and fully paid

19.

20.

3 - HeR Rt (&)

AEBZHAEL AR _T—LF+ =
A=t—HA - ZZ—+tF+tA+=-B =
E-RE+TA=+—BRZZ—X"FAh
A=Z+HHBYAEMRERLEEAEE
S2EMHRUNEIRORHFRER -

EERAREFTITE LREEEYIER - &
EEHEE A EREEL A54,091,0007%
7T (ZZF — X : 44,893,000/ 7T) °

AN B R E A # 444,326,000/ 7T (=
T — X4 1 42,405,00058 7T) B - e

LB EREATEEETEENK
ﬁ o

RELRNRE
RZZE—tF+-A=+—8 WBAHF
ZHBEMT

Percentage of ownership

Place and date of up share capital/ interest/voting
Name incorporation registered capital power/profit sharing Principal activities
EETRER FEikER
&% RIBEREY  RE/ZRESF RER/BNEHL  ETEEE
Direct Indirect
EE Gk
Ka Shui (Holdings) Company Limited BVI US$36,909 100% — Investment holding
EREEERLA EBRIEE 36,909% 7 RERR
Ample Wealth Developments Limited BVI US$1 - 100% Investment holding
EEERERDA EERAES %7 RERR
Ka Fung Metal Manufactory Company Limited  Hong Kong HK$74,487,660 - 100% Sale of plastic injection products and
RECEERRERAR Bk 74,487 6607 7T components
HWEZBRIZEMRERHY
Ka Shui Manufactory Co., Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100% Sale of zinc, magnesium and
EhEmBERLA B 10,000 7T aluminium alloy die casting and
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20.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ T —+F+_A=+—HILFE

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

20.

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December
2017 are as follows: (Continued)

Issued and fully paid

RE B R RHRE ()

RZE—tF+=

ZEBWT - (8)

Percentage of ownership

A=+—8B KEBAA

Place and date of up share capital/ interest/voting
Name incorporation registered capital power/profit sharing Principal activities
ERTRAR feis#s
&% RIBEREY  RE/HRER RER/BHEHE EEEB
Direct Indirect
EE B#
Ka Shui Technology (Huizhou) Company The PRC Registered capital - 100% Sale and manufacture of magnesium
Limited* # HK$430,000,000 alloy die casting products and
RREIREMERRE 7 1 & 7430,000,0007 10 components
HEREERA S RBERRTHHY
Elegant Shine Investments Limited BVI US$1 - 100% Investment holding
EBREEBRAA RREXHS e RERR
Ample Wealth Property Developments The PRC Registered capital - 100% Inactive
(Huizhou) Limited* H HK$6,800,000 EmER
EENERE(BMERRA 1 & 76,800,000 1
Ka Shui Technology Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100% Investment holding
FRMRERLA B 10,000 7T RERR
Wing Yu (Far East) Industries Company Hong Kong HK$6,900,000 - 100% Investment holding
Limited Bk 6,900,000/ 7T REZR
XRER)ELBRAA
Huizhou Wing Yu Metal and Plastic The PRC Registered capital - 100% Provision of surface finishing
Manufactory Company Limited* HE HK$4,500,000 treatment services and sale and
BNk RASERERERAR & 74,500,000% 7T manufacture of zinc alloy die
casting products and components
RERARBRERHFEREESS
SERER RIS
Ka Yi Technology (Huizhou) Company The PRC Registered capital - 100% Sale and manufacture of zinc and
Limited* H HK$20,000,000 aluminium alloy die casting
REMR(EMNERAR 1  A20,000,000% 7T products and components
HEREEFRBASGEREERR
T
Ka Fung Industrial Technology (Huizhou) The PRC Registered capital - 100% Sale and manufacture of products
Company Limited* H HK$132,000,000 and components with plastic
RETERR(BEMERARA 14 A132,000,000% 7T contents
HEREERERIAZEMR
THH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B R R MY R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #iZ — T —+F T+ A =+—HILFE

20.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

20. RMBRARAWEKRE (&)

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December
2017 are as follows: (Continued)

Place and date of

Issued and fully paid
up share capital/

RZZE—tF+=
ZEENT (&)

Percentage of ownership
interest/ voting

A=+—H WEBXQF

Name incorporation registered capital power/profit sharing Principal activities
BRTRAR fels#s
&% RIBEREY  RE/HRER RER/BUEHE EEER
Direct Indirect
EE Gk
Alphalite Company Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100% Trading and marketing of LED and
ENRAERLA 0 1T plasma lighting products
REEDRERTRAERZEHR
T5EE
Ka Shui Metal Manufactory (Shenzhen) The PRC Registered capital - 100% Sale and manufacture of zinc,
Company Limited* H HK$40,000,000 magnesium and aluminium alloy
heBER(RI)BRAE 7 1 & 440,000,000 70 die casting products and
component
HEREES BRBAGEEER
RERBH
Alphalite Incorporation USA US$100 - 100% Trading and marketing of LED and
ES 100E 7T plasma lighting products
REEDRERTRAERZEHR
T5EE
Ka Shui (USA) Incorporation USA US$5,000 - 100% Marketing of zinc, magnesium and
£ 5,000% 7T aluminium alloy die casting and
plastic injection products and
components, trading of LED and
home appliance products
28 BREACEEREBIZ
EmREPH 2 THEELRLED
kEEEEZES
Kalok Technology Investment Limited BVI US$50,000 - 100% Investment holding
BENBREFRAT RERTHE 50,000% 7T REAR
Wuhu Lenka Technologies Company Limited ~ The PRC Registered capital - 100% Sale and manufacture of magnesium
(“Wuhu Lenka")* H RMB50,000,000 alloy die casting products and
BHBEIEMBARAR (HABE] s & & A K 550,000,000 components
HEREERSCERERRTHMY
Ka Shui Metal Company Limited Hong Kong HK$100,000 - 100% Sale of magnesium alloy die casting
EREBERAR Bk 100,000% 7 products and components
HWEERCREERRT IS
Katchon BVI US$1,000 - 70%  Investment holding
1= RERTHE 1,000% T REAR
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20.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ =%

20.

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December

2017 are as follows: (Continued)

Place and date of

Issued and fully paid
up share capital/

A B R Y ()

—tF+A=t+—HLFE

il

RE B R RHRE ()

R_Z—tF+=A=T—0 HELH
ZHEDT ()

Percentage of ownership
interest/ voting

Name incorporation registered capital power/profit sharing Principal activities
ERTRAR it 3
&% RUBEREY  BRE/ZRES RER/BNERL  EEEE
Direct Indirect
E# el &
Ka Shui Plastic Technology Company Limited  Hong Kong HK$1 - 100% Inactive
(formerly known as Katchon Industrial B 18T WK
Company Limited)
EREBHRARAT
(FIE[EEIEERAR])
Goodly Hong Kong HK$50,000 - 70%  Investment holding
a5 B 50,000% 7T REAR
Goodly Precision (Suzhou) Industrial Limited ~ The PRC Registered capital - 70% Research, manufacture and sale of

(“Goodly Suzhou")* H
SHEEIEEHM BRAREHEM)

Qiginaer Northern Ka Shui Light Alloy The PRC
Technology Gompany Limited" i

EERBEAERERAERBEERAA

Huizhou Ka May New Material Technology The PRC

Company Limited* $
EMNEEMVEREERAA

US§5,000,000
1 & 75,000,000% 7

Registered capital
RMB12,000,000
i 1t & A A K #12,000,0007C

Registered capital
RMB1,000,000
&R AR 1,000,000

* English translation of the name is for identification purpose

only.

Ka Shui Technology (Huizhou) Company Limited,
Ample Wealth Property Developments (Huizhou)

Limited, Ka Yi Technology (Huizhou)

Company

Limited, Ka Fung Industrial Technology (Huizhou)

Company Limited, Ka Shui Metal

Manufactory

(Shenzhen) Company Limited, Huizhou Wing Yu
Metal and Plastic Manufactory Company Limited and
Goodly Suzhou are wholly-foreign owned enterprises

established

in the PRC. Wuhu Lenka, Qigihaer

Northern Ka Shui Light Alloy Technology Company
Limited and Huizhou Ka May New Material
Technology Company Limited are registered as a
company with limited liability under the law of the

PRC.

As at 31 December 2017,
balances and

the bank and cash
restricted bank deposits of the

Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC denominated in
RMB amounted to approximately HK$130,612,000

(2016: HK$123,272,000).

Conversion of RMB into

foreign currencies is subject to the PRC’s Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange

Regulations.

plastic injection moulding and
components of car-related
products
RERBERIZBTEZRERMZ
e EEREE
Research and development, trading of
aluminium related products

EHRERCHBRBE

Inactive

TEEH

- 51%

- 70%

* BB BEXBERHEHA -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ma B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #iZ — T —+F T+ A =+—HILFE

20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 20. RMIBARIMNKE (B)
(Continued)
The following table shows information on the TRETHAEAFTERER ([FEERE

subsidiary that has non-controlling interests (“NCI”) HNEHAEEMEBERCHWBARZE
material to the Group. The summarised financial B-UBERABERBMARMBEKHE®
information represents amounts before inter- o

company eliminations.

Goodly Suzhou

2 EFER I
Name 2017 2016
&8 —EF—tHF —E—RF
Principal place of business/country of I Z4& %2 ~ PRC/PRC PRC/PRC
incorporation A B R FEhE FEF
% of ownership interest/voting right ~ JEIERRAEZS R~
held by NCI KEEB DL 30%/30% 30%/30%
HK$’000 HK$°000
F#ET FET
At 31 December: W+=A=+—8:
Non-current assets ERBEE 16,358 12,930
Current assets mENEE 45,094 33,280
Current liabilities MEAEE (14,491) (9,937)
Net assets FEE 46,961 36,273
Accumulated NCI E el g 14,088 10,882
Year ended 31 December: BE+=-H=+—HL=FEE:
Revenue WA 71,748 55,199
Profit il 7,675 5,421
Total comprehensive income rEW S AE 10,688 3,067
Profit allocated to NCI DT IR R 2 R T 2,303 927
Dividends paid to NCI R TFHEERERZRE = —
Net cash generated from operating & &2 EHSHE & F5
activities 2,743 4,512
Net cash used in investing activities & & XS AR S FHE (5,883) (2,196)
Net cash used in financing activites Ft & /EBFTAIR S /FE (276) (860)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and R&MZERIEELIHEEB
cash equivalents CR ),/ s 5 (3,416) 1,456
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21.

22.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

CLUB MEMBERSHIP

Se BRI E(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ T —+F+_A=+—HILFE

HK$°000
FAET
Cost BAE
At 31 December 2016 and 2017 RZE—REFER_E—+F
+=-ZA=+—H 718

The Group’s club membership of HK$718,000
(2016: HK$718,000) at 31 December 2017 is
assessed as having indefinite useful life because
there is no time limit that the Group can enjoy the
services provided by that club.

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

AEBR-ZFE—tF+-A=+—RHzE
Fre f#E@E718,0008 T (=T — X F ¢
718,000 M E T AEERAFEHF
B RARAEEZHZEAMRERS
2 B ] I 4 BR ) o

22. REFERAZRE

2017 2016
—EF—tHF —T— N
HK$’000 HK$’000
F T FEIT

Unlisted investments: JELEMIRE
Share of net assets BOFEE 704 1,046
Goodwill EES 632 632
1,336 1,678

The amounts due from/to associates are unsecured,
interest free and repayable on demand.

JEU BB E R R REREER 28
NBEERRRER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ma B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #iZ — T —+F T+ A =+—HILFE

22. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 22. REEERNRZ2IRE (8)
(Continued)

Details of the Group’s associates at 31 December RZE—+tF+_A=T—HAEEH

2017 are as follows: ERRERMAT
Place of Issued and fully paid up Percentage of ownership
incorporation/ share capital/registered interest/voting
Name registration capital power/profit sharing Principal activities
ERTRYRE TihEs REE/
&l g/ B kx/#HREX B TEEH
Topanga Asia Limited Hong Kong HK$127,373,638 38.9% Inactive
(“Topanga Asia’) EA 127,373,638 T LEEK
DRENMHERAFN(SRE])
Topanga USA Inc. USA US$1 38.9% Inactive
% EI TEXH
Topanga Technology (Huizhou) ~ The PRC Registered capital HK$6,500,000 38.9% Inactive
Limited” G i1 fft & 746,500,000 T TEXH

YRENK(BMERAT

B2 EXBFERHEA -

English translation of the name is for identification purpose
only.

TR AEBUREGHEARZAE
ERIFEER SRR EY SRAR:

The following table shows, in aggregate, the
Group’s share of the amounts of all individually
immaterial associates that are accounted for using
the equity method.

2017 2016
—ET—tHF —E— X
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET

At 31 December: R+=-ZH=+—H:
Carrying amounts of interests EmREE 1,336 1,678

Year ended 31 December: w+=-A=+—H
SEHZEE

Loss from operations KEIBE (325) (3,400)
Other comprehensive income H 2w s (16) -
Total comprehensive income 2HENEREE (341) (3,400)

As at 31 December 2017, the bank and cash RZE—+F+-_A=+—8 XEHER

balances of the Group’ associates in the PRC
denominated in RMB amounted to approximately
HK$65,000. Conversion of RMB into foreign
currencies is subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations.
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23.

24.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Se BRI E(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZE =T —tHF+-_A=+—HILFEF

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS

23. AAHHEETHEE

2016
ZE—RF
HK$’000
FAET

Unlisted equity, at cost
Impairment loss

B 18 &5 1R

FLEMBEARGRRAGH)

8,303

8,303

(8,303) (8,303)

Unlisted equity is carried at cost. The investee company
has ceased business and the management has made
full impairment loss for the investment.

FLETRARETIERAALR - HIRER
FEREEBLEREEHHRREER
EEREERE-

INVENTORIES 24. BE
2016
—E-REF
HK$’000
FET
Raw materials RYRs 48,908 54,451
Consumables supplies and EREmRERZ M
spare parts 10,984 10,240
Work in progress EE R 101,673 64,593
Finished goods RIAK T 109,405 89,652
270,970 218,936
Less: Allowance for inventories BT ERE (18,564) (22,774)
252,406 196,162

Annual Report 2017 —Z—tE 3% 177



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ma B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #iZ — T —+F T+ A =+—HILFE

25.

TRADE RECEIVABLES

During the year 2016 and 2017, the Group obtained
finance for part of its trade debtors with full
recourse from financial institutions. In the event of
default by the debtors, the Group is still obliged to
pay the financial institutions the amount in default.
As at 31 December 2016, interest is charged on
average at 2.64% per annum on the proceeds
received from the financial institutions until the date
the debtors pay. The Group is therefore exposed to
the risks of credit losses and late payment in
respect of the secured debts. All such bank
borrowings were repaid as at 31 December 2017.

The trade receivables in respect of the financed
transactions do not meet the de-recognition
conditions in HKAS 39 as the Group retains
substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financed trade debts. At 31
December 2016, trade debts of approximately
HK$95,076,000 continue to be recognised in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements. The
proceeds of the financed transactions are included
in borrowings as asset-backed financing (note 29)
until the trade debts are collected and the Group
settles the borrowings to the financial institutions. At
31 December 2016, the asset-backed financing
liability amounted to HK$92,675,000.
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25.

B 5’
RIZB-RER-_ZE—tF AEERT
MEBRREAEZ2ERENEDESE
WEER - W EBABEBARLY  AKEE
AEMEBEINENESRE R_FT—RF
T-A=1+—H AEMNBRESREE
RS0 A RN F192.64%F ) X5t
B EZAHBEBAXNZERR - E
b NEBEBAERERAEEEERRIE
HEMER R-T—+F+=-A=+—
B FAEZEFRITEBERCDEE -

l

ERESERFBZMBERGUIHFEE
BEFTERFEREHIEEREREE
MBRTE AEAEBEREIIRE ZEWEE
HATERORZEHERKIER R=2F
—RNFET_AZ+—HB BZEKEZRY
95,076,000/ T EN A EELR AT
HERPHER BRI IGNMEREERE
ERXERE (M) AEE B2 RE
EoEHBRAEBEECRHEEZEE -
RZE—RNE+-A=+—8 EEEKH
B & B (& 592,675,000 JT °



25.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Se BRI E(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ T —+F+_A=+—HILFE

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 25. B 5 BWFIE(E)
The Group’s trading terms with customers are REBEBHREFP 2 RZEENUEERNE
mainly on credit. The credit terms generally ranged T EEH—RBNTHEE AEREINE
from 30 to 120 days (2016: 30 to 120 days) after 120K (ZE—7NF : 308120K) - BEE
the end of the month in which the invoices issued. FEEREERRE - ANEB BN BEREIZE
Each customer has a maximum credit limit. The REEERWFIE AESTHRTBHRR
Group seeks to maintain strict control over its a6k o EUBRFX (B fR) R B = A 5
outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are Z R TEIIT
reviewed regularly by the directors. The ageing
analysis of trade receivables, based on the invoice
date, and net of allowance, is stated as follows:
2017 2016
—ET—tF AN
HK$’000 HK$000
FETT FETT
0 to 30 days 0£30H 173,319 147,131
31 to 60 days 31£260H 108,282 145,047
61 to 90 days 61%90H 46,714 63,980
91 to 180 days 91£180H 86,705 93,794
Over 180 days 180H LA £ 372 7,462
415,392 457,414
At 31 December 2017, an allowance was made for R-ZF—tF+=-A=+—8  BEA"T
estimated irrecoverable trade receivables of A Yz el Z 5 FE UK AR 3R 7 5 £9764,000
approximately HK$764,000 (2016: HK$Nil). BIL(ZE—RF:EBIT) -
Reconciliation of allowance for trade receivables: B 5 MW GRIA B 2 T BR -
2017 2016
—E—tHF ZE—RF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
At 1 January n—H—H - 53
Allowance for the year charged to RENBEBEXEREZEER
profit or loss 764 —
Reversal upon write off of bad debts 7 it # 12 BR B [o] $ - (53)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8H 764 —

Annual Report 2017 ZZ—tF F

179



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B R R MY R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #iZ — T —+F T+ A =+—HILFE

25. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)
As of 31 December 2017, trade receivables of
approximately HK$64,022,000 (2016: HK$84,721,000)
were past due but not impaired. These relate to a
number of independent customers for whom there
are no recent history of default. The ageing analysis
of these trade receivables, based on the due date,

25.

B 7 EWE(E)
—ET—+ttF+ZA=+—8"'#%
64,022,000/ 7T (ZZ — 734 : 84,721,000
7B 7L) B B 5 & WK IR /& B HI B R (E B
o R FEFIRERSZ B B R LN
BYEFPAR ZERHMEZRBRER
EHMBENRKREDTOT

2l

is as follows:
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$°000
F T FET
Up to 3 months SEAMUA 63,521 76,580
4 to 6 months 472 61E A 254 6,703
Over 6 months 61& B A £ 247 1,438
64,022 84,721

The carrying amount of the Group’s trade
receivables is denominated in the following

AEBEEZRUGKANKREEATIERE
FIE

currencies:
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FEIT FET
HK$ BT 31,653 29,769
UsD e 332,159 371,108
RMB AR 48,341 54,126
Others E 3,239 2,411
415,392 457,414
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26.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES AND
BANK AND CASH BALANCES
The Group’s restricted bank balances represent:

(@) Balance of RMB950,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$1,140,000) (2016: RMB1,400,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$1,564,000)) to
guarantee for the use of natural gas in the
PRC (2016: guarantee for the use of natural
gas in the PRC);

(b) Balance of RMB1,744,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$2,094,000) (2016: Nil) to
guarantee to the customs office in the PRC
(2016: Nil).

The cash at banks earned interest at floating
interest rates ranging from 0.01% to 0.25% per

annum (2016: 0.01% to 0.54% per annum).

The carrying amounts of bank and cash balances

A B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ T —+F+_A=+—HILFE

26. BERFIBITERERITRESE
BR

AEBEOERBRITHFERIE

(@) A B ¥950,0007t(#H & B &
1,140,000 ) (ZE —RF: AR
#1,400,0007T (48 & 7 491,564,000
BIINIEBRTRERRARZIE
ROCZE—RF RAPEFERARAK
2R

b) A E #1,7440007t (4 & B &
2,094,000 ) (ZE—XF : T)A
ERFESENER(ZT—XF:
) o

RITFHRREF0.01EER0.26E (ZF—X
F - §F0.01/E E0.54/F ) 6% B R EX
FE e

RITNBECERZEEENATIEERE

are denominated in the following currencies: A7 :

2017 2016
—T-tE —T-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
HK$ ABTT 21,035 79,923
usD ETT 92,495 93,925
RMB AR® 128,877 122,062
EURO BX 7T 1,529 59
Others H Aty 58 39
243,994 296,008

Under the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control RIE P BECONEE BRI R(EE - &

Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sales
and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the
Group is permitted to exchange RMB for foreign
currencies through the banks that are authorised to
conduct foreign exchange business.

ERMEERERE) NEBEARFATE
BERERRIMNEXEBHRITAARE R
BONES o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ =T —tF+-_A=+—HILFE

27. TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES 27. EZEMNRE HttENFIERE
AND ACCRUALS STEH
The ageing analysis of trade payables, based on the B ZRENFIBIRNE BB E/ERER DT

date of receipt of goods, is as follows: m
2016
—E—RF
HK$’000
FET
0 to 30 days 0£30H 102,808 66,692
31 to 60 days 31260H 85,317 66,520
61 to 90 days 61%290H 69,284 64,974
91 to 180 days 91£180H 104,211 103,265
Over 180 days 180H LA E 5,774 11,637
367,394 313,088

The carrying amount of the Group’s trade payables
is denominated in the following currencies:

AEBEZRNFAREENNIEERR

B

2016
—E—REFE

HK$’000

FAET

HK$ BT 7,797 7,645
usb ETT 60,929 51,489
RMB AR #& 298,596 253,225
Others A 72 729
367,394 313,088
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZE =T —tHF+-_A=+—HILFEF

27. TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES 27. BESEMNFIE HMENSRERE
AND ACCRUALS (Continued) SFERE)
Other payables and accruals comprise the following: HMEMNRERESBABEATSIE:
2016
—E-RF
HK$'000
TFET
Accrued wages JEETTE 34,519 33,374
Other accrued expenses HEtEER 18,075 27,165
Other payables H At E 5B 30,475 26,825
83,069 87,364
The carrying amount of the Group’s other payables REEAMENKIBRESERANEEE
and accruals is denominated in the following BATE®TIE :
currencies:
2016
ZE—RF
HK$’000
FET
HK$ BT 5,351 7,757
usb ETT 16,042 6,236
RMB ARE 61,652 73,354
Others H Aty 24 17
83,069 87,364
28. DUE TO A RELATED COMPANY 28. FE{JREE: N RIRIE
Particulars of the amount due to a related company FENBEE AR REFBOT
are as follows:
2016
—E-RF
HK$’000
FET
Chit Shun Machinery Limited FEAEMBEBRAR 4,465 2,020
The amount due to a related company is of trade JE A BA S R R8O SRIE A TS 1 E R A R
nature and is unsecured, interest free and repayable BB RALEEREEHER -TE4E
on demand. Mr. Lee has joint control in the related BB AR A LR -
company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B R R MY R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #iZ T —tF+-_A=+—HILFE

29. BANK BORROWINGS
The analysis of the carrying amount of bank
borrowings is as follows:

7rA
ﬁEfﬂa HEBEEES AT :

2017 2016
—E—tHF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FETL
Current liabilities mENE &
Portion of bank borrowings due for — 7BF — 4 A & &
repayment within one year TEREBS 245,364 321,088
Portion of bank borrowings due for 8 — F 14 F Jﬂai&ﬁ’]
repayment after one year which ERERKEERKS
contains a repayment on demand TTEFK i)
clause 81,247 44,945
Asset-backed financing (note (a)) BEEERERE (Wita@) - 92,675
326,611 458,708
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Portion of bank borrowings due for ZBR—F#ZEHERZHT
repayment after one year which do B &% BRE B EHH
not contain repayment on demand IRITEZEB D
clause 41,667 107,244

The interest-bearing bank borrowings, including the
bank borrowings repayable on demand, are carried
at amortised cost. None of the portion of bank
borrowings due for repayment after one year which
contain a repayment on demand clause that is
classified as current liabilities is expected to be
settled within one year.
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29.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZE =T —tHF+-_A=+—HILFEF
BANK BORROWINGS (Continued) 29. IRITE (&)
At 31 December 2017, interest-bearing bank loans RZE—tF+ZA=+—80 " ZHE:E
were due for repayment as follows: MErBRITERAT :
2017 2016
—E—+tF —ET—RE
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FET

Portion of bank borrowings due for ZBER —FREEEEHIR

repayment within one year TEREBS 245,364 321,088
Asset-backed financing (note (a)) BEERARE (WitaE) = 92,675
245,364 413,763
Portion of bank borrowings due for ZBR—E%FHEE (B
repayment after one year which REKEBBKRIR HIRIT
contains a repayment on demand BRI (Hitw))
clause (note (b)):
After 1 year but within 2 years —FZBEMFZA 59,905 25,608
After 2 years but within 5 years MEZBBRFZA 21,342 19,337
81,247 44,945
Portion of bank borrowings due for B —F % F|HEE T8
repayment after one year which do &% BB E &) AR
not contain a repayment on demand fTE &5 -
clause:
After 1 year but within 2 years —FZEREMEZA 26,667 55,682
After 2 years but within 5 years MEZEBRAFEZAN 15,000 51,562
41,667 107,244
368,278 565,952
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #iZ — T —+F T+ A =+—HILFE

29.

BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

Note:

(a) The asset-backed financing represents the amount of
financing obtained in invoice financing transactions which do
not meet the de-recognition requirement in HKAS 39. The
corresponding assets are included in trade receivables
(note 25).

(b) The amounts due are based on the scheduled repayment
dates set out in the loan agreements and ignore the effect
of any repayment on demand clause.

Seven (2016: eight) of the bank facilities are subject
to the fulfillment of covenants relating to certain of
the Group’s financial ratios, as are commonly found
in lending arrangements with financial institutions.
Should the Group breach the covenants, the drawn
down facilities would become repayable on demand.
In addition, some of the Group’s bank loan
agreements contain clauses which give the lenders
the right at their sole discretion to demand
immediate repayment at any time irrespective of
whether the Group has complied with the covenants
and met the scheduled repayment obligations.

The Group regularly monitors its compliance with
these covenants, and is up to date with the
scheduled repayments of the bank borrowings.
Further details of the Group’s management of
liquidity risk are set out in note 6(c). There have
been no breaches in the financial covenants of any
interest-bearing borrowings for the years ended 31
December 2016 and 2017.
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29.

RITHE (&)
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(@) EEEARERSBTREERGTEUSE
KM BUEMRRE L EMERHMER
MRESBE - BHREEINAE S EKER M
5$25) °

(b) BRPFBATIRERMERBNTREERD R
A WEA REMREREEZHRRNZE -

EE(ZF-R"F: NE)RTREEES
NEARAREE THMBHL R 2 RE - &%
ERHEBENES BB L2 ERLH
PR - MAKBRZREBERE  RIEH
RZBMEBEAREREE I KK
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EREMIBRERR ERNFEEEROE
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EEEBE -
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29.

30.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Se BRI E(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ T —+F+_A=+—HILFE

BANK BORROWINGS (Continued) 29. IRITE (&)
All bank borrowings were arranged at floating FrERITEARIIZZEHEGTE - RZE
interest rate. The range of the interest rates per —tHF+_A=+—BMERNEHEEDN
annum at 31 December 2017 was as follows: ™
2017 2016
—T-tE —T-RF
% %
per annum per annum
(=13 BF
Floating rate VF B = 2.9% to 4.5% 2.1% to 5.3%
The carrying amount of the bank borrowings is RITEFRABENA T ESE BT EEM
denominated in the following currencies:
2017 2016
—E—tE —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
HK$ BT 332,264 517,060
RMB AR 36,014 26,546
UsD ETT — 22,346
Total it 368,278 565,952
BANKING FACILITIES 30. RITHEE

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had available
banking facilities of approximately HK$799,000,000
(2016: HK$788,000,000), which were utilised to the
extent of approximately HK$368,000,000 (2016:
HK$566,000,000). These banking facilities were
secured by the following:

(@) corporate guarantees provided by the
Company and certain subsidiaries of the
Group;

(b) a property situated in Hong Kong owned by
the Group; and

(c) all monies assignment of rental over the
property situated in Hong Kong owned by the
Group.

R-E—tF+-_A=Z+—H ' A£E7
) MR 1712 B 49 4799,000,0007 7T (=
=T — X4 : 788,000,000/ 7T) - M 2 B A
#) 21 %8 49 £368,000,0005 7T (= & — /X
F : 566,000,000 7T) © L ERITEE MU
TFEE EAEE

@ ARARAEERXLHEARFRME
B R BIHELR

b) AEEBEN—HEEUWE R

© AEBEEFEHEZMEXAEDE
BIFTBETRE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ma B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #iZ — T —+F T+ A =+—HILFE

31. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES 31. EEBEBBEE B
The following is the deferred tax liabilities and NTAAEERFACERNELEHRIES
assets recognised by the Group, and the BEREEHIGRE

movements thereon, during the year:

Deferred tax liabilities: FEEFRIEE E

Undistributed Revaluation of Accelerated

earnings of a leasehold tax
subsidiary land depreciation Total
MEAS HELH MEHIE
K5 ik F BEEER e @zt
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET T TET
At 1 January 2016 R-ZF—R%F
—H—H - 35,217 31 35,248
Charge to other REAZEEEAM
comprehensive income & W
for the year - 8,184 - 8,184
Charge/(Credit) to profit ~ RERNZ K,/ (AEK)
or loss for the year E8&m(Hi#13)
(note 13) 15,852 (208) (31) 15,613
Exchange differences bE 3 E - (1,889) - (1,889)

At 31 December 2016 RZZE—RF+=A

and 1 January 2017 =+t—Ak=%
—+t%—-H—H 15,852 41,304 - 57,156
Disposal of a subsidiary & f B2 & - (10,0086) - (10,0086)
Withholding tax paid B ERE (15,852) - - (15,852)
Charge to other RERTEEEM
comprehensive income & ®E ¥ %
for the year - 1,576 — 1,576
Exchange differences &N E5E — 1,997 - 1,997

At 31 December 2017 RZZ—+t&F
+=-A=+—H - 34,871 - 34,871
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ T —+F+_A=+—HILFE

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES 31. EERBEEE BB (E)
(Continued)
Deferred tax assets: BRI TEE E
Financial
liabilities at Fair value

fair value adjustment on

Tax through profit business
losses or loss combination Total
BRAFE
sFABRZ EBEHY
BIEEE EA =R AFEHAE @t
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
At 1 January 2016 RZZE—RF
—HA—H - 11,756 526 12,282
Credit/(Charge) to profit ~ RERARE,/ (&)

or loss for the year EHEm(WiF13)

(note 13) 1,080 (11,756) (96) (10,772)
Exchange differences fE 5 =% (48) — (57) (105)
At 31 December 2016 and RZZE—~F+ = A

1 January 2017 =+—AKk=%

—tF—H—H 1,082 — 373 1,405
Charge to profit or loss HRFRALEEZEZR

for the year (note 13) (B et13) - - (87) 87)
Exchange differences EH =% 77 - 24 101
At 31 December 2017~ RZZT—+&+=A

=+—H 1,109 = 310 1,419
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax MiZEWBMRRERME  BELEHIBELH
balances (after offset) for consolidated statement of (BB 2w T :
financial position purposes:
2017 2016
—EF—tH —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FAET
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFHIERE 33,762 56,124
Deferred tax assets FEERIEE E (310) (373)
Total T 33,452 55,751
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ma

For the year ended 31 December 2017 H ZE =%

31.

8% 9 R Y R (AR

—tF+ZA=t+—HILFE

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES
(Continued)

At 31 December 2017, the Group had unused tax
losses of approximately HK$295,415,000 (2016:
HK$150,142,000) which are available for offset
against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of approximately
HK$4,437,000 (2016: HK$4,130,000) of such losses.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of the remaining tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in
the wunrecognised tax losses are losses of
approximately HK$11,361,000 (2016:
HK$17,174,000) which may be carried forward
indefinitely. The remaining unrecognised tax losses of
approximately HK$279,617,000 (2016: HK$128,838,000)
will expire as follows:

31.

E*i

EERIRERE BE (&)

RZZE—tF+_A=+—H x%£E8FH
2R B B BT B 18 49295,415,0008 T (=&
— 734 1 150,142,00058 7T) ] {4 K $4 oK 7K
i o Bt S B 18 494,437,0008 T (=&
— 7N 1 4,130,000 0) HER A E TR 1E
BE BERZEHNHHREBERRAE
ERIBEEE - A AKREERETE R K &R
A RAERBREBEERREBEY
11,361,000 7T (=& — 74 : 17,174,000
BIr)  JERIBAEE BT 2 RERBE
TH J§5 18 49279,617,000/8 7T (=& — /XN F ¢
128,838,000/ 7t) #§ 7 T 71 A & 21| A5 -

2017 2016

—ET—tF AN

HK$’000 HK$’000

FETT FEIT

Year 2018 —EF-N\F 145 135
Year 2019 T—NF 22,876 21,615
Year 2020 —E-EF 51,473 47,908
Year 2021 T4 54,958 51,381
Year 2022 - 2 —_—F 142,698 —
Year 2034 —EZF 1,561 2,030
Year 2035 —E-hF 2,955 2,837
Year 2036 TE=RE 2,951 2,932
279,617 128,838

At 31 December 2017, the aggregate amount of
temporary differences associated with undistributed
earnings of subsidiaries operated in the PRC is
approximately HK$214,404,000 (2016:
HK$345,435,000). No liability has been recognised
in respect of temporary differences of approximately
HK$214,404,000 (2016: HK$186,913,000) because the
Group is in a position to control the timing of
reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that such differences will not be reversed
in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ T —+F+_A=+—HILFE

32. SHARE CAPITAL 32. AR
Number
of shares Amount
& E &8
HK$’000
FET
Authorised: JETE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each SFREEC.1E LA L B
At 1 January 2016, 31 December RZTE—RF—H—H =
2016, 1 January 2017 and 31 E-RFE+A=+—
December 2017 B —E—+tF—HF—H
rZZE—+F+=A
=+—H 5,000,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: BETERHRE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each R EECAE LA LT @A
At 1 January 2016, 31 December RZE—R"F—H—H =
2016, 1 January 2017 and 31 T—RFt+-_A=+—
December 2017 H —ZE—+tF—H—H
rZZE—+F+=A
=+—H 893,761,400 89,376

The Group manages its capital to ensure that
entities in the Group will be able to continue as a
going concern while maximising the return to
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from the previous year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of cash
and cash equivalents and total equity, comprising
issued share capital, reserves, retained earnings and
non-controlling interests. The directors of the
Company review the capital structure on a semi-
annual basis. As part of this review, the directors
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital. Based on recommendations
of the directors, the Group will balance its overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends,
new share issues and share buy-backs as well as
the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing
debt.

FEBEBHERAUBBRAEEAN 2 B
BRI EEE  MshERAIEBELE
BREZAEBDNERADR ARENE
REREEEFESR -

AEENEARBEERENERREA
BREDARE BREETRA &E-
REBNEIEEEED - ARAREFEEF
FRE—RERARE - NETRAE &
FEREAKRARBHSBERNNRR -
REEENEZ A5EKERRNK
B BITHBREERRODARETHER
SFEOREER EUNTFHEEREAR
e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ma B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #iZ — T —+F T+ A =+—HILFE

32. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)
The net gearing ratio at the year end is as follows:

32. BRA(48)
RELFEELEMT

2017 2016

—ET—tH —ZE—RHF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FETT FET

Debt (note (a)) BE N @E)) 368,278 565,952
Less: Restricted bank deposits B BREHIRITER (3,234) (1,564)
Bank and cash balances RITRIE & &% (243,994) (296,008)

Net debt BEFHE 121,050 268,380
Equity (note (b)) ez (K itm)) 866,643 771,507
Net debt to equity ratio BEFHEERILE 14.0% 34.8%

Note:

(@)  Debt is defined as bank borrowings as detailed
in note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements.

(b)  Equity includes all capital and reserves of the
Group.

The only externally imposed capital requirements for
the Group are (i) in order to maintain its listing on
the Stock Exchange it has to have a public float of
at least 25% of its shares, and (i) to meet financial
covenants attached to the interest-bearing
borrowings. The Group receives reports from major
shareholders and other connected persons on any
changes in shares held by them to ensure the
continuing compliance with the 25% limit throughout
the year. As at 31 December 2017, 29.64% (2016:
29.64%) of the shares were in public hands. There
have been no breaches in the financial covenants of
any interest-bearing borrowings as at 31 December
2016 and 2017.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ T —+F+_A=+—HILFE

33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 33. RATRIMBMRRARRFHEE
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE
COMPANY
(a) Statement of financial position of the (@) F2ATMBRARE
Company
2017 2016
—EF—t& TN
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
g3 F T FET
Non-current assets EREEE
Investments in subsidiaries A KB QA FHEE 84,282 75,179
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments, deposits and {318 4 K HAtb
other receivables & I R 50 50
Due from subsidiaries JE U BT /B~ B SR IR 373,277 373,277
Bank and cash balances R 77 IR & & &4 181 179
373,508 373,506
Current liabilities ik I=K
Other payables and H b B A 5008 K JE AT
accruals £ M 8 8
Due to subsidiaries FEASTHT B 2 B 5K IE 93,180 83,081
Financial guarantee MERRAEHVARE
contracts liabilities 29,477 28,501
122,665 111,590
Net current assets RBEEEE 250,843 261,916
NET ASSETS BEFE 335,125 337,095
Capital and reserves BEFHE
Share capital BERRHE 89,376 89,376
Reserves [N 33(b) 245,749 247,719
TOTAL EQUITY i 335,125 337,095
Approved by the Board of Directors on 26 TEFEeRN _T—N\NF=ZA=-+8it
March 2018 and are signed on its behalf by: HECWANTESREES
Lee Yuen Fat Wong Cheong Yiu
FEE =8
Director Director
BZE BZE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ =T —tF+-_A=+—HILFE

33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

33. AATARBRARREHER

AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE (88
COMPANY (Continued)
(b) Reserve movement of the Company (b) XATZHEESH
Share Share option Retained
premium reserve earnings Total
B 153 it 8 BB REBER g
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
At 1 January 2016 R -ZT—XF
—HA—H 204,650 10 30,482 235,142
Profit for the year & i 7 - - 12,577 12,577
At 31 December RZ-ZT—ARF+ A
2016 =+—H 204,650 10 43,059 247,719
At 1 January 2017 R-ZT—+t4F
—HA—H 204,650 10 43,059 247,719
Profit for the year 4 A3 7l - - 6,968 6,968
Dividend paid BRI E - - (8,938) (8,938)
At 31 December HRZZE—+F
2017 +-A=+—H 204,650 10 41,089 245,749
34. RESERVES 34. f##E
(a) The Group (a) EFHE

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein are presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income and consolidated
statements of changes in equity.

(b)

Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

Share premium

Share premium represents premium
arising from the issue of shares at a
price in excess of their par value per
share. Under the Companies Law of the
Cayman lIslands, the funds in the share
premium account of the Company are
distributable to the shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend
is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off
its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ T —+F+_A=+—HILFE

34. RESERVES (Continued)

(b)

Nature and purpose of reserves

(Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the
aggregate of (i) the nominal value of the
shares issued by Ka Fung Metal
Manufactory Company Limited on 18
January 2005 in exchange for the
business of Ka Fung Metal Manufactory,
an unincorporated partnership established
in Hong Kong and controlled by Mr. Lee;
and (i) the nominal value of the shares
issued by the Company in exchange for
the entire shareholdings of Ka Shui
(Holdings) Company Limited.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents (i) the
amount of minority interests in Ka Fung
Metal Manufactory Company Limited and
Ka Fung Metal Manufactory acquired by
the Group, (i) the adjustment of non-
controlling interest arising from further
acquisition of the equity interest up to
79.7% in Topanga Asia and up to 100%
in Wuhu Lenka during the year ended
31 December 2015, and (iii) the
adjustment of non-controlling interest
arising from the deemed disposal of
Topanga Asia.

Foreign currency translation reserve
The foreign currency translation reserve
comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of
the financial statements of foreign
operations. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies
set out in note 4(d)(iii) to the consolidated
financial statements.

34. f#1E (&)
(b) EEZHERBMN(E
(i) &S

(iii)

(iv)

AOREBEIRLTMENARN
(=L2LeBRAMAR QTR
—ZETRF A+ B AEHBR
me2sBREMAR(—HEIEER
AIEAMKRYNEE AR &
EFEKT W ARTAAEEH)
ZEBMBTHORGEME: &
i RA AR EHEEER
NAEFRE M EITHRSD
R

BAHE
EXRABEEO)NEB KBRS
TEBEMNRERARIEZES
BERHmOBEREETAOR
B ()RNEHE-_Z—AF+=
A=Z+—BIHFEARE—FIK
B ) = 32 279.7% M HEH B 52
ZE=100% % 4 M = £ 2 FEIE R
R Rii)ARIEHESD
SamENETERERZH
go

BE 7 % 8
EREERIEREREGINE
S HRENELENMEER
EZH R ERHBEREBEERAVI
] M A T R 8 5T IR
BRIE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ma B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #iZ — T —+F T+ A =+—HILFE

34. RESERVES (Continued)

(b)

Nature and purpose of reserves
(Continued)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Share option reserve

The share option reserve represents the
fair value of the actual or estimated
number of unexercised share options
granted to employees of the Group
recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for equity-
settled share-based payments in note
4(q) to the consolidated financial
statements.

Statutory reserve

The statutory reserve comprises the PRC
statutory reserve fund which is non-
distributable.

As stipulated by the relevant laws and
regulations for foreign investment
enterprises in the PRC, the Company’s
PRC subsidiaries are required to transfer
10% of their profit after taxation
calculated under PRC accounting rules
and regulations to the statutory reserve
fund, until the accumulated total of the
statutory reserve fund reaches 50% of
their registered capital. The statutory
surplus reserve fund can be used to
make up prior year losses or applied in
conversion into capital.

Land revaluation reserve

The land revaluation reserve has been
set up and is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policies adopted for
leasehold land in note 4(e) to the
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(@) Share Option Scheme

(i)

Share option scheme adopted in 2007

Pursuant to written resolutions of all the
shareholders passed on 2 June 2007, a
share option scheme (“2007 Scheme”)
was approved. The purpose of the 2007
Scheme is to recognise and acknowledge
the contributions that eligible participants
had made or may make to the Group.
Eligible participants include (i) employees,
directors, consultants, professionals,
customers, suppliers, agents, partners or
advisors of or contractors to the Group
or a company in which the Group holds an
interest or a subsidiary of such company
(“Affiliate”), or (i) companies beneficially
owned by any director, employee, consultant,
professional, customer, supplier, agent,
partner, adviser of or contractor to the
Group or an Affiliate. The 2007 Scheme
became effective on 2 June 2007 and,
unless otherwise cancelled or amended,
will remain in force for 10 years from that
date.

The maximum number of shares which
may be issued upon the exercise of all
outstanding share options granted and
yet to be exercised under the 2007
Scheme or any other schemes involving
the grant of options over shares of the
Company must not, in aggregate,
exceed 30% of the shares of the
Company in issue at anytime. The
maximum number of shares issuable
under share options to each eligible
participant in the 2007 Scheme within
any 12 month period, is limited to 1% of
the shares of the Company in issue at
anytime. Any further grant of shares
options in excess of this limit is subject
to shareholders’ approval in a general
meeting.

A B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ T —+F+_A=+—HILFE

35. UREEE 2RE

(a) FEBRx#ERTE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ma B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #iZ — T —+F T+ A =+—HILFE

35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

U]

Share option scheme adopted in 2007
(Continued)

Share options granted to a director, chief
executive or substantial shareholder of
the Company, or to any of their associates,
are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive directors.
In addition, any share options granted to
a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the Company,
or to any of their associates, in excess
of 0.1% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any time or with an aggregate
value (based on the closing price of the
Company’s shares at the date of the
grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000, within
any 12-month period, are subject to
shareholders’ approval in advance in a
general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options
shall remain open for acceptance by the
eligible participant concerned for a
period of not less than three business
days from the date of offer, except for
any offer which is made within the last
three business days of the life of this
scheme, the offer shall remain open for
acceptance on a business day by the
eligible participant concerned for a
period of not longer than the remaining
life of this scheme. An offer cannot be
accepted by an eligible participant who
ceases to qualify as an eligible
participant after the offer has been
made. No offer shall be capable of or
open for acceptance after the expiry of
10 years for the effective date of this
scheme.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

(@) Share Option Scheme (Continued)

U]

Share option scheme adopted in 2007
(Continued)

The offer of a grant of share options
may be accepted upon payment of a
nominal consideration of HK$10 in total
by the grantee. The exercise period of
the share options granted is determinable
by the directors, and commences after a
certain vesting period as determined by
directors at each grant and ends on a
date which is not later than ten years
from the date of the offer of the share
options.

The exercise price of the share options
is determinable by the directors, but may
not be less than the highest of (i) the
Stock Exchange closing price of the
Company’s shares on the date of the
offer of the share options; (i) the average
Stock Exchange closing price of the
Company’s shares for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of
the offer; and (iii) the nominal value of
the Company’s shares on the date of the
offer.

Share options do not confer rights on
the holder to dividends or to vote at
shareholders’ meetings.

Se BRI E(R)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #iZ T —tF+-_A=+—HILFE

35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 35. UREEE 2KHE (&)
(a) Share Option Scheme (Continued) (a) EEBR#ESHEI(E)
() Share option scheme adopted in 2007 i) R-TFTtFERPZERE

(Continued)
Details of the specific categories of
options are as follows:

=t &l (&)
BRENRBERFBOT

Category of Fair value at Exercise ~ Number of share options
grantee Date of grant ~ Vesting date ~ Exercise period grant date price outstanding
R
RRAEN  RHBH FERY T8 ZATE fieE Wi ERERE
HK$ HK$ 2017 2016
73 A1 8-t -T-RE
Junior staff 13 March 2008 13 March 2009 13 March 2009 to 0.11 0415 40,800 40,800
12 March 2018
858 “TENE ZEThE “ESNFZATZRE
=A+=H ZAt+=H “T-\5=A+zH
Junior staff 13 March 2008 13 March 2010 13 March 2010 to 012 0415 20,600 20,600
12 March 2018
NREE ZEENE “E-%% “5-SF=ffZHE
ZAt+zH ZHJLE “E-N\EZAfZH
Junior staff 13 March 2008 13 March 2011 13 March 2011 to 012 0415 40,600 40,600
12 March 2018
458 —2ENE “F--% Z5-—F-ff-HE
=At=H ZRtZH “Z-N\EZAfZH

The fair values of the options were
determined at the dates of grant using
the Black-Scholes option pricing model.

The following assumptions were used to
calculate the fair values of shares

options:

Share price HK$0.400
Exercise price HK$0.415
Expected life 3.5-6.5 years
Expected volatility 55.42%
Dividend yield 5.25%

Risk-free interest rate 2.005%-2.176%

Expected volatility was determined by
calculating the historical volatility of share
prices of comparable companies with
shares listed on the Stock Exchange and
engaged in the similar business of the
Group. The expected life used in the
model has been adjusted, based on the
Group’s best estimate, for the effects of
non transferability, exercise restrictions
and behavioural considerations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZE =T —tHF+-_A=+—HILFEF

35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 35. URHEEE 27IE (&)
(a) Share Option Scheme (Continued) (a) HERRHESHEI(E)
(i) Share option scheme adopted in 2007 () R-FTLtEFEHEMNZERE

(Continued) sHEI(8&)
Details of the share option movements T ERESERNF AR
during the year and share options etz EERNFERBRITE
outstanding at the end of the year under BEREZFBEOT
the 2007 Scheme are as follows:

2016
—E-REF

Weighted

Number of average

share options  exercise price

mET

BREYE T E

HKS

AT
Outstanding at the beginning & #1 K17 {E

of the year 102,000 0.415 102,000 0.415

Forfeited during the year FRR Y - 0.415 - 0.415

Exercised during the year ERTIR - 0.415 - 0.415
Qutstanding at the end FRRITHE

of the year 102,000 0.415 102,000 0.415
Exercisable at the end ERUIE

of the year 102,000 0.415 102,000 0.415

No (2016: No) share options were FAEBEREESFE(CZS

exercised during the year. The options
outstanding at the end of the year have
a weighted average remaining contractual
life of 0.3 years (2016: 1.3 years) and the
exercise price of HK$0.415 (2016:
HK$0.415).

Save as disclosed above, no further
options were granted under the 2007
Scheme.

—RNEE) FRRITER
A& HE B N T R & 4 HR
BOSF(Z T — XN F£:13
F) R 17T F B B0.415E T
(ZZ—REF: 04158 ) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #iZ — T —+F T+ A =+—HILFE

35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

(i)

Share option scheme adopted in 2017

Pursuant to a resolution passed in the
annual general meeting of the Company
held on 19 May 2017, a new share
option scheme (2017 Scheme”) was
adopted. The 2007 Scheme has been
terminated upon the adoption of 2017
Scheme, except that the provisions in
relation to the exercise of any options
granted under the 2007 Scheme prior to
its termination shall remain in force and
such options shall continue to be valid
and exercisable.

The purpose of the 2017 Scheme is to (i)
motivate the eligible participants to
optimise their performance and efficiency
for the benefit of the Group; and (i)
attract and retain or otherwise maintain
ongoing business relationship with the
eligible participants whose contributions
are, will or expected to be beneficial to
the Group. Eligible participants of the
2017 Scheme include (i) any director,
employee, consultant, professional,
customer, supplier, agent, partner or
adviser of or contractor to the Group or
a company in which the Group holds an
interest or a subsidiary of such company
(the “Affiliate”); or (i) the trustee of any
trust the beneficiary of which or any
discretionary trust the discretionary
objects of which include any director,
employee, consultant, professional,
customer, supplier, agent, partner or
adviser of or contractor to the Group or
an Affiliate; or (iii) a company beneficially
owned by any director, employee,
consultant, professional, customer,
supplier, agent, partner, adviser of or
contractor to the Group or an Affiliate.
The 2017 Scheme became effective on
19 May 2017 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in
force for 10 years from that date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ T —+F+_A=+—HILFE

35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 35. UREEE 2KHE (&)

(a) Share Option Scheme (Continued) (a) EEBR#ESHEI(E)

(ii)

Share option scheme adopted in 2017
(Continued)

The maximum number of unexercised
share options currently permitted to be
granted under the 2017 Scheme is an
amount equivalent, upon their exercise,
to 10% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time. The maximum number
of shares issuable under share options
to each eligible participant in the 2017
Scheme within any 12-month period is
limited to 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. Any
further grant of shares options in excess
of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief
executive or substantial shareholder of
the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval in
advance by the independent non-
executive directors. In addition, any share
options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-
executive director of the Company, or to
any of their associates, in excess of
0.1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time or with an aggregate
value (based on the price of the
Company’s shares at the date of the
grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within
any 12-month period, are subject to
shareholders’ approval in advance in a
general meeting.

(ii)

R-T—tFEHRPZBRE
=t &l (&)

REARE — T — B
ERHZRTTRBRERITRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ma B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #iZ — T —+F T+ A =+—HILFE

35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 35. ARRREA E 2 FE (8)
(a) Share Option Scheme (Continued) (a) FERRMESHEI(E)

(ii) Share option scheme adopted in 2017 i) R-ZFT—tERNZBERE
(Continued) =T &l (&)
The offer of a grant of share options B IR 2 B4 TR R
may be accepted within 30 days from A E A0 NEE &K
the date of the offer, upon payment of a EBEABERBYORASTNRE
nominal consideration of HK$10 in total AREEHIOBT - BEEEE
by the grantee. The exercise period of M2 TEBRESETE - I
the share options granted is determinable RHEFETRERE TERE
by the directors, and commences after BiZsE THBAERERT
meeting certain performance targets or ERIEREREL AR+
certain vesting period that may be set by FRAK - —EBERETEE
the directors, and ends on a date which WAB(LREERE)ER -

is not later than ten years from the date
of the offer of the share options or the
expiry date of the 2017 Scheme, if

earlier.

The exercise price of the share options ERECTHERESET
is determinable by the directors, but may MENBERUTRSE ()2
not be less than the highest of (i) the LR ERNE BARFRG
Stock Exchange closing price of the RBRAZWmE: (i BEX
Company’s shares on the date of the AEARAERSBARRFR
offer of the share options; (i) the average DRz FHRTE: &
Stock Exchange closing price of the (iR EBARAFRMGHAE
Company’s shares for the five trading B(wm@EmA) -

days immediately preceding the date of
the offer; and (iii) the nominal value of
the Company’s shares on the date of the
offer, when applicable.

Share options do not confer rights on ERETER TIHE ABIRRKR
the holder to dividends or to vote at B RBRERGRAIHEN -

shareholders’ meetings.

No share options have been granted BT — R SR
under the 2017 Scheme since its PAZR » 3 M AR ¥R B i R
adoption. A% 4 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Share Award Scheme

The Company adopted a share award scheme
(the “Share Award Scheme”) on 10 January
2013 (“Adoption Date”) for a period of 10
years. The purpose and objective of the Share
Award Scheme are to recognise the
contributions by certain employees and
persons of the Group and to provide them
with incentives in order to retain them for the
continued operation and development of the
Group and to attract suitable personnel for
further development of the Group. The
Company has set up a Share Award Scheme
Trust. Pursuant to the Share Award Scheme,
new awarded shares may be allotted and
issued to the independent trustee under
general mandates granted or to be granted by
the shareholders at general meetings of the
Company from time to time and be held in
trust for relevant participants until such shares
are vested with the relevant participants in
accordance with the provisions of the Share
Award Scheme.

Subject to any early termination as may be
determined by the Board of the Company, the
Share Award Scheme shall be valid and
effective for a period of ten years commencing
on the Adoption Date.

The maximum number of shares awarded
under the Share Award Scheme shall not
exceed 5% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the Adoption Date.

The maximum number of shares which may be
awarded to a selected person under the Share
Award Scheme shall not exceed 1% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the
Adoption Date.

A B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ T —+F+_A=+—HILFE

35. ARELR 2B (&)

(b)

B 53 88 Bh =t &1
AARRZZE—=ZF—A+H&K
R ED) R Ay R R A 81 (TR {0
KEstE)) SE+F R RE
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FBENRBITHEBRD  LIAEFE
HAREB2EERE EEZAH
B 2 AR R B 40 22 Y 5T 81 Y 1R X SR B
REBSEERL -

ERRBEZGRARERERILD
MR - By 2By &t 8145 3R 4 B
HE+FHRARMER -

BRERNBBFIARENEOES
BETHEBNRKMEBMEALRFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ma B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ =T —tF+-_A=+—HILFE

35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

On 28 April 2014, the Company granted
210,000 shares to an eligible participant
pursuant to the Share Award Scheme. The
shares were vested immediately. The Company
has recognised a share-based payment of
approximately HK$292,000 and credited the
share capital and share premium of
approximately HK$21,000 and HK$271,000
respectively, representing the fair value of the
shares awarded. The fair values of the
awarded shares were measured by reference
to the closing market price of the shares at
grant date. Subsequent to this grant of
awarded shares, no awarded share was
granted pursuant to the Share Award
Scheme.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZE =T —tHF+-_A=+—HILFEF

36. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 36. mMEBEERERMTE
OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Cash flows from operating activities (a) WEEXEBZRERE
2017 2016
—F—tF ZE-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Profit from operations g i A 2,422 122,408
Adjustments for: 2ELE 5T -
Interest income B WA (354) (868)
Allowance for/(Reversal of allowance RERE/(E#)
for) doubtful debts 764 (63)
Bad debt written off 122 R M 8 61 275
Allowance for inventories FEREE 415 12,110
Net gain on financial assets/liabilities ?E’A:FTE FFABEE
at fair value through profit or loss SRMEE/BEZFRH = (14,767)
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEME MR REY
and equipment U 28 (84) (45)
Property, plant and equipment W EE - S AR S TSR
written off 8,632 4,515
Impairment loss on property, plant and 1% - R R R EREEE
equipment 8,752 1,122
Allowance for amounts due from JE UL B 2 A B FROB BB
associates 2,934 —
Deficit in revaluation of land THEBEHR2EE 578 -
Depreciation of property, plant and ME BERRETE
equipment 87,174 90,500

Operating profit before movements in R EEECEHAMNEERF

working capital 111,294 215,197
Increase in inventories FEEM (57,181) (33,453)
(Increase)/Decrease in restricted bank  HR #I8R 17 7F X () /@D

balance (2,257) 2,714
Decrease/(Increase) in trade receivables & 5 fE U s8R/ 2/ (& hn) 25,945 (96,220)
Increase in prepayments, deposits and ~ FBTFIE - R Kk H b E U B

other receivables #Zhn (8,960) (827)
Increase in trade payables B SRS HIELM 74,467 87,062
Increase in deposits received, other BURS - £ RN RIE R

payables and accruals fET & A jJD 30,951 625
Decrease in amounts due from JE < B & A B SRR

associates = 1,175
Repayment to a former fellow subsidiary &R R ZH B A (78,583) -
Increase in amount due to a related fE 1T B B A R0R i‘ 7][1

company 403 125
Payment for financial liabilities at fair BERAVTEFAEZENSREE

value through profit or loss g - (56,435)
Cash generated from operations REMBRSE 96,079 119,963
Income tax paid Eﬁ s (55,682) (19,040)
Interest paid =APELES) (16,115) (17,933)
Net cash generated from operating BEXBRBEREFE

activities 24,282 82,990
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ma B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #iZ T —tF+-_A=+—HILFE

36. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b) Disposal of a subsidiary

On 24 October 2016, the Group entered into
an equity transfer agreement with a company
controlled by Mr. Lee to dispose of the
Group’s 100% entire equity interest in MG
Technology (Shenzhen) Company Limited (“MG
Technology”). MG Technology was principally
engaged in sale and manufacture of
magnesium and aluminium alloy die casting
products and components. The disposal was
completed on 12 July 2017.

Net assets at the date of disposal were as

36. FERTMERMKZE ()

(b) HEMBAST
RZBE—-—XR"FE+AZ+HME &%
EREFEEEFMQ RG] LREE
EE o UWHEASERZCRYD
BRAE (TAl€ERE]) 2100% 2
BRAERS - AEERETENSE
HWEREEERRASESER R
ERHF -HESHEHER T —LF
+A+—-—HBH=HK -

REERMOFEENT

follows:
HK$’000
FH#T
Property, plant and equipment ¢’/7J ES 1%%% g 88,538
Trade receivables 25 J"g WSk IE 16,079
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables iﬁ\ 318 - e % B A W5k 5,484
Due from related companies & Uk 8 Bt N B /T/\ XI5 138,428
Restricted bank balances AR HIRITHF R 508
Cash and cash equivalents RehERER {f HH 29,106
Trade payables B S e RIE (20,161)
Other payables and accruals H b B K IE&JT‘;@H EH (24,150)
Due to related companies FE A BB B R B 5RIE (37,035)
Deferred tax liabilities EXERIEE {f (10,006)
Net assets disposed of HEFEE 186,791
Expenses incurred for the disposal HEEERX 1,080
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary el B 96,011
Release of foreign currency translation N EZFED
differences 6,118
Total consideration wRE 290,000
Consideration satisfied by: RELTIHFRXEZA
Cash Be 250,000
Deposit received in previous year EFBWET 40,000
290,000
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: REEER 2 FHRESMA
Cash consideration received 2HER e RE 250,000
Less: Bank balances and cash disposed of B HERITEHRKES (29,106)
Expenses incurred for the disposal HEEENAX (1,080)
219,814
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

36. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(c)

Deemed disposal of subsidiaries

On 5 February 2016, the Group entered into a
share purchase agreement, according to which
a total of 1,912,069 shares were allotted to a
third party and a non-controlling shareholder
of Topanga Asia, representing 51.1% of
Topanga Asia immediately after the share
allotment. The Group’s equity interest in
Topanga Asia was diluted to 38.9% after the
allotment, and resulted in a loss of control in
and deemed disposal of Topanga Asia.

Net assets at the date of deemed disposal
were as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ =%

Se BRI E(R)

—tF+A=t+—HLFE

36. mEBTMEBRME (HE)

(c) HRIEHEMBAT

RZE—XRNF-_ARBAEEG L
f% 0 B8 B 5% 0 35 it B2 ¥61,912,069
D F—Z2E=ERY T
B% A% B 4 5w 52 0 EX BB AR o Bid B
%51 1% m - B R AEERNS =
2 EREEE38.9% ¢ WAL K E
THERBEREY R -

RBELERMZFEEHIIMT ¢

Net assets disposed: HK$’000
HEZEE: FAET
Inventories TE 2,603
Trade receivables 2 ZEWHRIE 551
Other receivables, prepayment and HEMERFRIE BN RERIEZS

deposit paid 1,283
Amount due from a related company P& UL B B N B BUR 589
Bank and cash balances ﬁETT&fﬁﬁm 1,630
Trade payables =Y Ak (42)
Amount due to a holding company FERTTERR A B 5RIA (1,686)
Other payables and accruals H e 51 Iﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬁ' = (2,093)
Net assets disposed of HEFEE 2,835
Fair value of the equity interest retained in N mFpRE A FE

Topanga Asia 5,078
Net assets disposed of HEFEE (2,839)
Non-controlling interests FEIE R AE 2,355
Release of foreign currency translation reserve [& 3 &1 H 37
Gain on deemed disposal BRAE & W= 4,635
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: REEEH 2 FHRSML
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of HERERERRELEE 1,630
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ma B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #iZ T —tF+-_A=+—HILFE

36. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 36.

OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(d) Major non-cash transaction
Included in the additions of property, plant and
equipment was an amount of approximately
HK$6,244,000 (2016: HK$3,072,000) which
was transferred from deposits paid for
acquisition of property, plant and equipment.

(e) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities
The table below details changes in the
Group’s liabilities arising from financing
activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing
activities are those for which cash flows were,
or future cash flows will be, classified in the
Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows
as cash flows from financing activities.

GeRTRERME (B

(d EEHFRE&XSH
AARNEME BERZXENA
6,244,000 T(= & — X F:
3,072,000 L) AR ENEE Y
¥ OBBERIENRESTEA -

() MEETHELENEFEHR

TRAMAERERE LD AELN
EEEH(BERRERIIFRSE
B MEZDFELANABELER
HERNAKBEGEERERERAD
BRBRELTHRERE -

1 January Interest Exchange 31 December
2017 Cash Flows expenses  Impairment differences 2017
(Notg)
“%-tf
—%-t% +ZA
-A-H Reng HERX BiE ERzH =t+-8
(Hz)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
AT AT FAT FAT FAT AT
Bank borrowings (nofe 29) 1T (/f/fﬂ#zy) 565,952 (215,929) 16,115 - 2,134 368,278
Due from associates NG (2.346) (511) - 2,934 (77 -
Due to associates ENEEAR 636 (19 - - - 617
564,242 (216,453) 16,115 2,934 2,057 368,8%

Note: Included in cash flows was interest paid which was
included in cash flows from operating activities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

37. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group as lessor

The Group leases its property under operating lease
arrangements, with leases negotiated for a term of
one year (2016: one year). The terms of the leases
generally provide for periodic rent adjustments
according to the then prevailing market conditions.

At 31 December 2017, the Group had total future
minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable
operating leases with its tenants falling due as

Se BRI E(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZE =T —tHF+-_A=+—HILFEF

37. WEMYAE
FREEALEBAA
AEBREEHOLHEHEEYE - BY

R—F(ZT—RF:—F) HOREH—
MABRTHEBEREERESABRZ K

Eo
/N

RZZE—+F+-_HA=+—8 XEHR
BRI REALEAOmMN T BB B
FEW AR EEEREEENOT ¢

follows:
2016
—E-REF
HK$’000
FET
Within one year —F R 8 85
In the second to fifth year, inclusive HE_-FEZFERHF
(BHEEREMF) = 76
8 161
The Group as lessee AEREEEBRBEAN

At 31 December 2017, total future minimum lease
payments of the Group under non-cancellable
operating leases are payable as follows:

RZZE—tHF+A=+—H AKEHR
BT RS ERNNEN RRKIEEE

Jn =)

RAAREMT

2016

ZE—RF

HK$’000

FET

Within one year —F RN 4,927 5,512
In the second to fifth year, inclusive & —F&EF AF

(BEEEMSE) 11,801 6,523

After five years hF & - 35,522

16,728 47,557
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B R R MY R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ =T —tF+-_A=+—HILFE

37. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

(Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable
by the Group for certain of its office premises,
factories, warehouses, staff quarters and office
equipment. Leases for office premises, factories,
warehouses, staff quarters and office equipment and
except one warehouse and certain factory premises
are negotiated, and rentals are fixed, for an average
term of 1 to 5 years. As at 31 December 2016,
lease for certain factory premises are fixed with a
term of 34 years.

Lease arrangement of one warehouse (2016: one)
has been subject to contingent rent by reference to
monthly usage throughout the lease period.

The lease payments recognised as expenses are as
follows:

37.

i

REHAEE (8)

\

XEEERZRBAE)
REMNNREAKREARETHAE
¥ IR B BIBSRBAER
XANOEE -WAEWE - ITHER F
TEEMMAERENHO(—HERR
ETImYMERINEHEMI L Be
REEMEMFHS—ERF-R_-F
—ARETZA=1t—H IBEYWENHEY
BENFRR=THE -

m #

A

—HCE-RF: B RENEERH
REEHEHRRANESAERABRZMHK
AR -

MERBERRBA L MR :

2017 2016

—EF—tHF —E—RF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Minimum lease payments =EBEERE 7,412 8,848
Contingent rent HAES 75 12
7,487 8,860

212 Ka Shui International Holdings Limited =B IZERER AT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Se BRI E(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZE =T —tHF+-_A=+—HILFEF

38. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 38. BEARAEIE
The Group’s capital commitments at the end of the REHBTER  AEBE/EREEN
reporting period are as follows: N
2017 2016
—T—tF g ANCS
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET TFET

Commitment in respect of acquisition W B3 « # 22 LR

of property, plant and equipment A& (Hita))

(note (a)) 23,914 15,611
Other commitment (note (b)) H o A& (K752 (b)) 11,044 —
Note: Htat -

(a) The amount represents the unpaid contractual commitment (@) AARBRBEEY R - ez KRB RN A K%
for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment after o WM B A AdR S M B R R RIS
netting off with the deposits paid for acquisition of property, W M REHENE RS -
plant and equipment included in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

(o) REAEEEEMMETNSTLOBESHA

(b) Pursuant to an agreement dated 29 November 2017 entered
into by the Group and two other parties, a new company in
which the Group has 46% equity interest was set up in
January 2018. The amount of commitment represents the
capital that is required to be injected by the Group to the
new company according to the agreement.

—ELEt-A-tABMEGE AEEA
BA6%BARENFH NN =T —N\F—
PR « R R R S BRI X B 9T 2
AEEMAR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ma B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #iZ — T —+F T+ A =+—HILFE

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 39. EBBALIRS
(@) In addition to those related party translations (a) BREEVEHRREMITMHAEE
and balances disclosed elsewhere in the M A TR REGRIN FAKR
consolidated financial statements, the Group EEDEFBALTETUATRS

had the following transactions with its related
parties during the year:

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FETT FET
Rental income from associates EH Bt % A 8] & W A - 331
Rental expenses paid to an g AT EeIT T
associate 1,318 1,727
Purchase of machinery and m) 8 Bt N B 4 A AR
machinery parts from and ERAFIBEME  #
maintenance cost to a related 22 T EF 14 & 4 (& AR
company, Chit Shun Machinery  (#/3%())
Limited (nhote (i) 5,088 2,417

Amount due to a related JE A<F B B X &) B AR W RR

company, Chit Shun Machinery # AR A RFIE

Limited (note (i) (H&0)) 4,465 2,020
Deposit paid to a related M) B8 B~ A 3 LB R ER 1

company, Chit Shun Machinery BR AR I HiZE

Limited (note (i) (H170)) 6,331 —

Note: Bt -

0] Mr. Lee has joint control in the related company. 0] FHAY I AR E ERIES ot
These transactions are made between the RGHAARRBZWE R A R @B AT
Company’s subsidiaries and the related company BT -hE+-AtHABBHAA
under a master agreement dated 7 December 2015 RARBEIN 2 B AT - WHERK
between the related company and the Company, ETRAZHERERS -
and are continuing connected transactions under the
Listing Rules.

(b) The above transactions were entered with the b) LAXRFHUHEBEATERETE
related parties on terms mutually agreed by R ENERET AEEBEER
individual parties. In the opinion of the R REFRBISIBEE-—REE
directors of the Group, these related party RN ARNEE B B EBBIERHET -

transactions were conducted on normal
commercial terms and in the ordinary and
usual course of the Group’s business.

214 Ka Shui International Holdings Limited Z= B ZERER AT



39.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

(c) During the year, compensation paid by the
Group to the key management personnel,
which were the directors of the Company, was
disclosed in note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.

(d) On 24 October 2016, the Group disposed of
entire interest of a subsidiary (as set out in
note 36(b)) to a company controlled by Mr.
Lee at a consideration of HK$290,000,000.
The consideration was paid by three
instalments, of which HK$40,000,000 was
received before year ended 31 December
2016 and was included in deposits received in
the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2016. The remaining was
received during the year ended 31 December
2017. The transaction was a connected
transaction under the Listing Rules and was
approved by independent shareholders in an
extraordinary general meeting held on 7
December 2016. The transaction was
completed on 12 July 2017 and a gain of
approximately HK$96,011,000 was recorded in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss for
the year ended 31 December 2017.

40. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING

41.

PERIOD

On 26 March 2018, the Board of Directors
proposed to declare a final dividend of HK1.0 cent
(2016: HK1.0 cent) per ordinary share to its
shareholders, as further disclosed in note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements.

APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 26 March 2018.

39.

40.

49.

Se BRI E(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ T —+F+_A=+—HILFE

EEALTRRS (&)

© FA AFBMENTIBEEEAR(R
ARBER) M HINEEMBIRER
BT FE164% 55 -

d RZE-—XR"FT+AZ+WHA X&E
EHE—MBAR 2R GER
MizE36(b)) TR EZERIZ AT - R
& /&290,000,0005% 7T ° {X 8 5 = Hf
S5 - HH40,000,0008 T E R EE
TE-XNFE+-_A=+—HILEEE
AMBRBEEREE —E—RF+ =
A=+T—BLtFEHFEUBHBNRLE
FARABERET S BAEREE
—E—+E+-_A=+—HILEE
AUEL o 3% FTAR B R 5 R E
REHEMR_E—RNF+_AtHZ
RRERASEBIRERS - I
RPER_TE—+tFLA+ZHZE
K- IYTrn8Bzz_ZF—+tF+=A
—t+—HIEFEZREBERRTE
596,011,000/ JT 2 Y 25 °

WEHHEBEIE
R-ZE—N\E=A=-+, A £z
BIREFREBER1I.OBM(ZZ—7RF 1.0
BN 2 KBRS EFBHRGEME
WMARMET7 -

#HEGRE MR E

rGgEMBRERENR_ZE-NF=A
“tARAEESSHIELRETIE-
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

LIEHEHRE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-H=+—HILEE

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
—T—= —T-WEFE ZT-hF —ZZE-RF Z|—tH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FEIT
RESULTS E
Revenue ON 1,806,585 1,582,333 1,539,344 1,742,476 1,738,738
Profit/(Loss) before B i Al & #
tax (E#E) 90,651 86,059 (71,756) 106,154 81,993
Income tax expense FTE (34,539) (26,707) (5,410) (46,252) (45,862)
Profit/(Loss) FREH,
for the year (E518) 56,112 59,352 (77,166) 59,902 36,131
Attributable to AN AL FESR
R
— Owners of the — A RaEREE
Company A 60,542 77,246 (63,489) 59,243 33,998
— Non-controlling ~ — JEIZA% #E 25
interests (4,430) (17,894) (13,677) 659 2,133
56,112 59,352 (77,166) 59,902 36,131
As at 31 December
w+=RA=+—H
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
—T-=F —T-WNF ZT-HF T F ZB—t#H
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FAETT FAETT FET FET F T
ASSETS AND BERERE
LIABILITIES
Total assets WA E 1,700,608 1,829,980 1,791,602 1,865,747 1,768,096
Total liabilities waE (847,045) (980,437)  (1,060,102)  (1,094,240) (901,453)
Net assets FEE 853,563 849,543 731,500 771,507 866,643
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